
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 01, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via Videoconference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://youtu.be/fmTQixorGMo  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of May 18, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on amendments to the Citizen Participation Plan for the City's Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program relative to the 
CARES Act. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 22, 2020) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving amendments to the Citizen Participation Plan for the City's Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program relative to the 
CARES Act. 

3. Public hearing on amendments to the FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program funding relative to the CARES Act. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 22, 2020) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 

1



 

Page 2 of 4 

c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving amendments to the FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program funding relative to the CARES Act. 

4. Public hearing on amendments to the FFY19 Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program funding relative to the CARES Act. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 22, 2020) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving amendments to the FFY19 Annual Action Plan for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program funding relative to the CARES Act. 

5. Public hearing on the proposed vacation of certain public right-of-way along Prairie Parkway.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 22, 2020) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance vacating certain public right-of-way along Prairie Parkway, upon its first 
consideration. 

Old Business 

6. Pass Ordinance #2966, amending Section 26-121 of the Code of Ordinances by rezoning from A-1, 
Agricultural, to R-1, Residential and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial, of recently annexed property 
located south of West Viking Road and east of South Union Road, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing June 6, 2020 as Cedar Falls Trails Day. 

8. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of April 2020. 

9. Approve the request of The Black Hawk Hotel / Bar Winslow for a temporary sign at 115 Main Street. 

10. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) B&B West, 3105 Hudson Road. 
b) Bani's, 2128 College Street. 
c) Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street, Suite A. 
d) Cloud 9 Glass & Novelty, 2125 College Street, Suite C. 
e) Cypress Lounge, 209 State Street Suite A. 
f) Dollar General, 2921 Center Street. 
g) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive. 

2



 

Page 3 of 4 

h) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
i) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
j) Greenleaf Tobacco and Vapor, 5901 University Avenue. 
k) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive. 
l) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street. 
m) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway. 
n) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street. 
o) Prime Mart 1, 2323 Main Street. 
p) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue Suite 106. 
q) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive. 

11. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
b) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
c) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

12. Resolution approving electronic bidding procedures and Official Statement relative to the sale of 
$3,430,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Perkins & Will relative to 
developing a Resilience Plan for the City of Cedar Falls. 

14. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY21 Fee Schedule. 

15. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 2307 West 3rd Street. 

16. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1934 Main Street. 

17. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1009 State Street. 

18. Resolution approving renovation of the monument sign located adjacent to the Hearst Center for the 
Arts on West Seerley Boulevard, as recommended by the Art and Culture Board. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an amended Agreement with Gillian Christy 
relative to placement of a sculpture at 220 Clay Street. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Land Maintenance Agreement with Thomas 
Greiner relative to maintaining recently annexed undeveloped land. 

21. Resolution approving an amendment to the preliminary plat for The Arbors. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to Professional Service 
Agreement with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for Grant 
Administration and Technical Services for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV) funding 
relative to the CARES Act. 

23. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Boulder 
Contracting, LLC, in the amount of $69,608.45, for the 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with J Davis Properties, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan 

3



 

Page 4 of 4 

for Parcel F in the College Square Mall First Addition, Minor Subdivision Plat (Slumberland parking 
lot). 

25. Resolution approving and accepting a Quit Claim Deed, in conjunction with the 1994 transfer of 
jurisdiction of Center Street, f/n/a U.S. Highway 218, from 1st Street north to the city limits. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MAY 18, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting and 
announced that the meeting was an electronic meeting being conducted in 
conformance with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency dated 
March 19, 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, an in-person meeting was 
impractical. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Absent: None. 

 
52806 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of May 4, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52807 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 6, 2020, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the authorization of a Loan 
Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $2,800,000 General Obligation 
Capital Loan Notes (for essential corporate purposes). It was then moved by 
Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that the proof of publication of notice of hearing 
be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52808 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed issuance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance and 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck provided a brief explanation of the 
process. Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, regarding the 
hearing process, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
52809 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,958, 

instituting proceedings to take additional action for the issuance of not to exceed 
$2,800,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (for essential corporate 
purposes), be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Sires and deBuhr 
and responses by Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck and 
Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Taiber. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,958 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52810 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 6, 2020, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the authorization of a Loan 
Agreement and the issuance of not to exceed $700,000 General Obligation Capital 
Loan Notes (for general corporate purposes). It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Darrah that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
52811 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed issuance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance and 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck provided a brief explanation of the 
process. Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, regarding projects 
included, and a question by Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, regarding the 
bid process and maximum amount, and responses by Finance and Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
52812 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,959, instituting 

proceedings to take additional action for the issuance of not to exceed $700,000 
General Obligation Capital Loan Notes (for general corporate Purposes), be 
adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Darrah, Taiber, 
Harding, Kruse, Sires and Miller, Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and Mayor Green, 
and responses by Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck and City 
Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Taiber. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,959 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52813 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 8, 2020, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2020 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Sidewalk Infill Project. It was then moved by 
Kruse and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing 
be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52814 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Following a brief 
summary of the proposed project by Principal Engineer Fitch, comment by Jim 
Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and response by Mayor Green, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52815 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,960, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Sidewalk Infill 
Project, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Sires, comment by 
Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and responses by Community Development 
Director Sheetz, City Administrator Gaines and Councilmember Harding, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,960 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52816 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 8, 2020, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed adoption of the 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for Black Hawk County. It was then 
moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52817 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plan. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on 
file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community Development Director 
Sheetz provided a brief summary of the proposed plan and process. Following a 
question by Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and response by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed 
to the next order of business. 

 
52818 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,961, 

approving and adopting the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for Black 
Hawk County, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,961 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52819 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2963, 

amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of Cedar Falls to 
incorporate recently annexed territory, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2963 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52820 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2964, Offenses 

and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances relative to prohibiting 
loitering, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following questions by 
Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and Councilmember Harding, and 
responses by Public Safety Services Director Olson, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2964 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52821 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2965, amending 

Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative to noxious 
weeds, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following a comment by 
Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and response by Building Official Castle, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Taiber. Nay: 
Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2965 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

52822 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2966, amending 
Section 26-121 of the Code of Ordinances by rezoning from A-1, Agricultural, to R-
1, Residential and M-1, P, Planned Light Industrial, of recently annexed property 
located south of West Viking Road and east of South Union Road, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay 
Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52823 -  Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and responses by Mayor 

Green and City Attorney Rogers regarding City Council rules and procedures, it 
was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse to suspend the rules and consider all 
Consent Calendar items together without separate discussion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 It was then moved by Taiber and seconded by Kruse that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved.  
 

Receive and file a proclamation recognizing May 16, 2020 as Jen Fielding Learn 
to Swim Day. 
 
Receive and file the resignation of Rosemary Beach as a member of the Health 
Trust Fund Board of Trustees. 

 
 Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 

members to Boards and Commissions:  
 Erik Blanchard, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2023  
 Alan Stalnaker, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2023 
 
 Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 4, 2020 relative to 

the following items:  
 a) Capital Improvements Program (CIP) Funding Update.  
 b) Bills & Payroll. 
  
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
 a) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Class B beer - renewal.  
 b) Famous Dave's, 6222 University Avenue, Class C liquor -renewal.  
 c) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 
Following expressed thanks by Councilmember deBuhr to Rosemary Beach for 
her service on the Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees, the motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
52824 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Taiber to approve the following 

applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
  a) Fareway Stores, Inc. #974, 214 N. Magnolia Drive  
  b) Fareway Stores, Inc. #190, 4500 S. Main Street  
  c) Hansen's Dairy, 127 E. 18th Street  
  d) Hy-Vee Food Store #2, 6301 University Avenue  

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

  e) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue  
  f) Murphy USA #6970, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard  
  g) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street  
  h) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive 
 
  Following a question by Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and responses by 

City Administrator Gaines and Public Safety Services Director Olson, the motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52825 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 
Resolution #21,962, setting June 1, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposal to vacate public right-of-way along Prairie Parkway. 
 
Resolution #21,963, setting June 1, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
amendments to the Citizen Participation Plan for the City's Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program 
relative to the CARES Act. 
 
Resolution #21,964, setting June 1, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
amendments to the FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program funding relative to the 
CARES Act. 
 
Resolution #21,965, setting June 1, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
amendments to the FFY19 Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program funding relative to the CARES Act. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,962 through #21,965 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52826 -   It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,966, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC for market measurement and pay plan 
management services, be adopted. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Sires, Taiber, Darrah, Harding, Kruse and Miller, Mayor Green, 
Thomas (T.J. Frein), 1319 Austin Way, and LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West Greenhill 
Road, and responses by Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck 
and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Darrah. Nay: Harding, Sires, Taiber. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,966 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52827 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,967, 

approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of camera 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

equipment for the cable television studio, be adopted. Following comments by 
Councilmember Sires and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #21,967 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52828 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,968, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Program Federal-Aid Agreement with the Iowa Department of 
Transportation relative to the Union Road Recreation Trail Project – West 12th 
Street to West 27th Street, be adopted. Following comments by Councilmember 
Sires and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, Councilmember Taiber 
and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,968 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52829 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the bills and payroll of May 18, 

2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
52830 -    City Administrator Gaines responded to an inquiry by Councilmember Kruse 

regarding review of the ordinance for backyard chickens. 
 
      City Administrator Gaines and Public Works Director Schrage responded to 

questions by Councilmembers Miller and Darrah regarding potential opening of the 
swimming pool and payment options at the Transfer Station. 

 
      City Administrator Gaines responded to a question by Councilmember Kruse 

regarding the status of the College Hill Visioning project. 
 

52831 -    City Administrator Gaines provided updates on the reopening of City Hall, 
Recreation Center, Hearst Center, Tourism & Visitors Center, and the Public 
Library. 

 
       Councilmember Darrah commented on work being timely completed on the 

Downtown Streetscape and the Recreation Center locker rooms during restrictions 
of the pandemic. 

 
 City Administrator Gaines announced an additional $1.4 million in funds awarded 

by the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson provided an update on and responded to a 

question by Councilmember Miller regarding the approved timeline and hiring 
process for Police Chief. 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

 
52832 - Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, expressed disappointment with the City 

Council decision not to allow all Consent Calendar items to be reviewed 
separately, and his belief that the Mayor should be allowed to vote. 

 
 Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, expressed appreciation for the improved 

discussion over the past couple of months, and City Administrator Gaines 
responded to a question by Mr. Frein regarding funding for the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

 
 LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West Greenhill Road, expressed appreciation for the recent 

format of the meetings, and Mayor Green responded to a question by Ms. Saul 
regarding recruiting businesses to Cedar Falls. 

  
 Mayor Green and Councilmember Miller responded to comments by Jim Skaine, 

2215 Clay Street, regarding City Council agendas and maintaining order during 
the meetings.  

 
52833 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned at 

9:09 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 21, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Hold Public Hearing: Citizen Participation Plan  
Amendments (related to Community Development Block Grant & HOME 
Programs) 

 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  Part of the Act 
provides additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support 
activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.  HUD requires the funds 
to be allocated to activities/program areas in an Annual Action Plan.  HUD is allowing a 
waiver to the normal minimum 30-day public hearing process, to a minimum of 5 days.  
We are required to amend our Citizen Participation Plan to address that change as well.   
 
In Council’s May 18th packet the Citizen Participation Plan was included, with proposed 
amendments noted.  Attached is a clean version of the Plan, no changes occurred from 
the draft provided previously. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Citizen Participation Plan.   
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Attached:  Citizen Participation Plan, June 1, 2020 

12

Item 2.



 

Page 1 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 

 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 

 

 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa City Council, after recommendation by the Cedar Falls 
Housing Commission, hereby adopts the following Citizen Participation Plan in 
accordance with 24 CFR section 91.105, as amended. 
 
This plan is developed to encourage citizen participation in the development of the 
Consolidated Plan, any substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan, Annual Action 
Plan, and the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). It is 
designed especially to encourage participation by low and moderate income persons, 
particularly those living in slum and blighted areas and in areas where Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 
funds are proposed to be used, and by residents of predominantly low and moderate 
income neighborhoods, as defined by the jurisdiction. 
 
The City will provide citizens with a reasonable opportunity to comment on the original 
Citizen Participation Plan and on substantial amendments to the plan and will make the 
plan available for public review. Upon request, the plan will be made available in an 
accessible format to persons with disabilities. 
 
The City will encourage participation by residents of public and assisted housing 
developments in the process of developing and implementing the Consolidated Plan and 
Annual Action Plan, along with other low income residents of targeted revitalization 
areas in which the developments are located by providing information to the Cedar Falls 
Community Development Department. 
 
The University of Northern Iowa's Language Department will be called upon to provide 
the necessary assistance if the City expects a significant number of non-English 
speaking citizens to attend Community Development Department public meetings. 
 

CONSOLIDATED PLAN AND ANNUAL ACTION PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
 

1. The City will furnish citizens with information concerning the amount of 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment 
Partnership Program (HOME) funds expected to be available (including the 
annual grant, program income, surplus from urban renewal settlement, and 
proceeds from HUD guaranteed loans) for community development and housing 
activities, and the range of activities that may be undertaken with those finds. The 
City will also make available the estimated amount that will benefit persons of low 
and moderate income at the public hearing (in-person or virtual) on the one-year 
Annual Action Plan. 

  

13

Item 2.



 

Page 2 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 
 

 

 
2. The City will make every reasonable effort to minimize the number of persons 

displaced by CDBG funded activities. In the event that a person is displaced by a 
CDBG undertaking, relocation assistance will be offered in accordance with the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance Act, as amended. 
 

3. The City will publish a summary of the Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action 
Plan in the local newspaper in a manner that affords citizens, public agencies and 
other interested parties a reasonable opportunity to examine its contents and to 
submit comments. The City will also make copies of the proposed plans available 
at the Community Development Department office and the City Clerk's office for 
review during public hours. Ten free copies of the proposed plan will be made 
available. One free copy will be provided to each individual or organization 
requesting said copy until the supply is exhausted. 

 
4. The City will hold at least one public hearing (in-person or virtual) during the 

development of the Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan. Notice of public 
hearing (in-person or virtual) will be published in the local newspaper not less 
than four days or more than twenty days before the public hearing (in-person or 
virtual), per Iowa Code, as may be amended. 

 
5. There will be a 30-day comment period on the proposed Consolidated Plan and/or 

Annual Action Plan, unless the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) waives this requirement and permits a shortened comment 
period of five days. The City will consider any comments or views of citizens 
received in writing or orally at the public hearings (in-person or virtual) in 
preparing the final plans. A summary of these comments or views, and a 
summary of any comments or views not accepted, and the reasons therefore shall 
be attached to the final plans. 

 

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSOLIDATED PLAN OR ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
 

1. The City will amend its an approved plan whenever it makes a decision to: make 
a change in its allocation priorities or a change in the method of distribution of 
funds; carry out an activity using funds from any program covered by the 
Consolidated Plan (including program income), not previously described in the 
Annual Action Plan; or to change the purpose, scope, location or beneficiaries of 
an activity. 

 
2. The City will use the following criteria to determine what changes in the planned 

or actual activities constitute a substantial amendment to the Consolidated Plan 
and/or Annual Action Plan.  Any of the following will require a substantial 
amendment following this Citizen Participation Plan: 

 
a. Changes in the use of CDBG/HOME funds from one eligible activity to 

14

Item 2.



 

Page 3 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 
 

 

another that exceed $25,000; 
b. Carrying out a new CDBG/HOME eligible activity in an amount greater than 

$25,000; and/or 
c. Removal of a project previously approved for funding with CDBG/HOME 

funds. 
 

3. A change in the entity responsible for carrying out an activity or a change in the 
location of a proposed project will not constitute a substantial amendment. 
 

4. The City will publish a summary of the proposed substantial amendment in the 
local newspaper in a manner that affords citizens, public agencies and other 
interested parties a reasonable opportunity to examine its contents and to submit 
comments. The City will also make copies of the proposed substantial 
amendment available at the Community Development Department office and the 
City Clerk's office for review during public hours. Ten copies of the proposed 
substantial amendment will be made available to the public. One free copy will be 
provided to each individual or organization requesting said copy until the supply is 
exhausted. 

 
5. The Cedar Falls City Council will hold at least one public hearing (in-person or 

virtual) on the proposed substantial amendment to the Consolidated Plan or 
Annual Action Plan. Notice of the public hearing (in-person or virtual) will be 
published in the local newspaper not less than four days or more than twenty 
days before the public hearing (in-person or virtual), per Iowa Code, as may be 
amended. There will be a 30-day comment period on the proposed substantial 
amendments to the plans, unless the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) waives this requirement and permits a shortened comment 
period of five days. 

 
6. The City will consider any comments or views of citizens received in writing or 

orally at the public hearings (in-person or virtual) in preparing the final substantial 
amendment to the Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan. A summary of 
these comments or views, and a summary of any comments or views not 
accepted and the reasons therefore, shall be attached to the final amended plan. 

 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE  AND EVALUATION REPORTS 
(CAPER) 

 
1. The City will publish notice of the availability of the annual grantee performance 

report in the local newspaper and will allow a 15-day comment period on the 
report. 

 
2. The City will consider any comments or views of citizens received in writing or 

orally at any public hearings (in-person or virtual) that may be held. A summary of 
any comments received will be attached to the performance report. 

15

Item 2.



 

Page 4 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 
 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (IN-PERSON OR VIRTUAL) 
 

1. A minimum of two public hearings (in-person or virtual) will be held per year to 
obtain citizens views and to respond to proposals and questions. These hearings 
will be held at different stages in the program year. Together, the hearings will 
address housing and community development needs, development of proposed 
activities and review of program performance. At least one of these hearings will 
be held prior to a proposed Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan being 
adopted by the City Council and submitted to HUD for approval. 

 
2. Notice will be published in the local newspaper at least four days but not more 

than twenty days before the public hearing (in-person or virtual) including 
sufficient information about the subject of the hearing to permit informed 
comment, per Iowa Code, as may be amended. 

3. The public hearings (in-person or virtual) will be held at Cedar Falls City Hall at 
times that provide for maximum citizen participation. The building and meeting 
rooms are accessible. 

 
4. The University of Northern Iowa's Language Department will be called upon to 

provide the necessary assistance if the City expects a significant number of non 
English speaking citizens to attend Community Development Department public 
meetings. 

 

MEETINGS 
 
Meetings, including public hearings, will be scheduled to provide for as much citizen 
involvement and attendance as possible. Times may be adjusted from time-to-time 
based on changing needs. 
 

AVAILABILITY TO THE PUBLIC 
 

1. The Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan as adopted will be available for 
review in the Community Development Department Office and at the City Clerk's 
office during public hours. 

 
2. Any substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan as 

adopted will be available for review in the Community Development Department 
Office and at the City Clerk's office during public hours. 

 
3. The grantee Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 

will be available for review in the Community Development Department Office and 
at the City Clerk's office during public hours. 

 

16

Item 2.



 

Page 5 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 
 

 

Upon request, the documents listed above will be made available in an accessible format 
to persons with disabilities. 

ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 
Information and records relating to the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan and Annual 
Action Plan and the jurisdiction's use of assistance under the programs covered by 24 
CFR Section 91.105 during the preceding five years will be available to citizens, public 
agencies and other interested parties. The City will reply to the written request for such 
information within 15 working days, where practical. The information may not be 
removed from the Community Development Department office.  If copies of information 
are requested, the current copy charge will apply. 
 

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 
The Cedar Falls Housing Commission will offer technical assistance to groups 
representative of persons of low and moderate income that provide a written request for 
such assistance in developing proposals for funding assistance under any of the 
programs covered by the Consolidated Plan and/or Annual Action Plan. The nature and 
extent of such assistance will be at the discretion of the Housing Commission and 
Community Development Department staff. 
 

COMPLAINTS 
 
The City will respond to written citizen complaints regarding the Consolidated Plan, 
Annual Action Plan, amendments and the Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report. The reply will be made within 15 working days, where practical. 
 

USE OF CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 
 
The City will follow the Citizen Participation Plan from the date of its adoption until it is 
amended or repealed by the City Council. 
 

CITY RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The requirements for citizen participation do not restrict the responsibility or authority of 
the City for the development and execution of its Consolidated Plan and/or Annual 
Action Plan. 
 
 
  

17

Item 2.



 

Page 6 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN JUNE 1, 2020 
 

 

As amended by the City Council on June 1, 2020 
 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 
 

 
Mayor Robert Green 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 
Jacque Danielsen, Cedar Falls City Clerk 
 

18

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 21, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing: Community Development Block  
Grant & HOME Programs – Updates to the Consolidated Plan 
(FFY2019-2023)  

 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  Part of the Act 
provides additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support 
activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.  Cedar Falls is receiving 
$160,662 for CDBG-CV.  HUD requires the funds to be allocated to activities/program 
areas in an Annual Action Plan.  Staff proposes amending our currently active plan, 
FFY19 Annual Action Plan.  This is the most expeditious method to then receive the 
funds and distribute them.   
 
Because we are in the first year of our 5-year Consolidated Plan, the Annual Action 
Plan (FFY19) is tied to the Consolidated Plan.  Therefore, we must make some updates 
to the Consolidated Plan at this time.  These are specifically in the Administration and 
Strategic Plan sections. An overall 5-year funding summary is also attached, for easier 
viewing of CDBG funding approach anticipated within the five years covered by the 
Plan.  The sections needing updates are attached to this memo, with changes 
highlighted in yellow. 
 
A separate memo details the substantial amendments proposed for the Annual Action 
Plan (FFY19), with additional explanations. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the minor updates to the Consolidated Plan (FFY2019-
2023) for June 1, 2020. 

19

Item 3.



 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
Attachment:  Consolidated Plan (FFY2019-2023): Administration section (cover page and AD-25) 

Consolidated Plan (FFY2019-2023): Strategic Plan section (SP-05, SP-10, SP-25, SP-
30, SP-35, SP-40, SP-45, SP-50, SP-55, SP-60, SP-65, SP-70, SP-80) 

  Consolidated Plan (FFY2019-2023): overall 5-year funding table 

20

Item 3.



1 

 

 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2019-2023 CONSOLIDATED PLAN-AMENDMENT 
 
 
 
PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW (5/11/2020), DATES ADDED 5/21/2020 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (5-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; May 22, 2020 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
May 19, 2020  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
May 18th, 2020 (Council sets public hearing for June 1st, 2020) 
June 1st, 2020 (Adoption) (After a properly-noticed public hearing was conducted) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; May 22, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

21

Item 3.



2 

 

Administration 
 
AD-25: Consortia Specific: 91.400 
 

 
If a Consortia, list participating communities & note 
status 

Lead HOME 
funds only 

CDBG 
Entitlement 

ESG 
Entitlement 

City of Waterloo, Iowa Yes No Yes No 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa No No Yes No 

     

     

     

     

Table 1 – Consortium Communities 
 
AD-25: Administration 91.220(a) 
 
Standard Form (SF) SF-424 Application for Federal Assistance-CARES Act Form Attached 
 
Standard Form (SF) SF-424D Assurances for Construction Programs-CARES Act Form Attached 
 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): Entitlement Program Only 
 
Alternate Data Sources: 
 

1. American Community Survey (2012-2016) 
2. Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (2011-2015) 

 
Required Certifications-CARES Act Forms Attached: 
 

1. General Certifications (Attached) 
a. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
b. Anti-Displacement and Relocation Plan 
c. Anti-Lobbying 
d. Acquisition and Relocation 
e. Section 3 

 
2. Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Certifications (Attached) 

a. Citizen Participation 
b. Community Development Plan 
c. Following a Current Consolidated Plan (FFY 2014-2018) 
d. Use of Funds 
e. Excessive Force 
f. Compliance with Anti-Discrimination Laws 
g. Compliance with Lead-Based Paint Procedures 
h. Compliance with Laws 

22

Item 3.



1 
 

Strategic Plan 

SP-05: Overview 

The purpose of the Cedar Falls Strategic Plan is to outline a five-year course of action that the City may follow 

when implementing their Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program.  Said Strategic Plan 

will identify priorities, needs, market conditions, and define goals and action strategies, and is intended to address 

the Needs and Market Assessments that are part of the City’s overall Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2019-2023 

Consolidated Plan. 

The City of Cedar Falls provides funding to four general programs including: housing development programs, 

economic and community development programs, neighborhood or area programs, and planning and 

administrative programs.  Needs in these areas are designed to increase opportunities for low-and-moderate 

income households to identify the availability of decent housing, safe and suitable living environments and provide 

economic opportunities.  As an overarching need, the community identified affordable housing, which is quality 

and lower priced, when compared to the existing housing market in the city. 

SP-10: Geographic Priorities 91.215(a)(1) 

The City of Cedar Falls will focus its resources, budget and staff, in the areas deemed in greatest need of 

improvement.  Specifically, the City will use information and resources at its disposal for defining these areas, 

including but not limited to neighborhoods, census tracts and block groups, adopted urban renewal areas, and/or 

other geographic areas identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Overlay Districts, and 

renewal or revitalization boundaries, all within the City of Cedar Falls’ incorporated area. 

The City will expend all CDBG resources under one of three National Objectives: Benefit to Low-and-Moderate 

Income persons; Aiding in the Prevention or Elimination of Slums or Blight; or Meeting Community Development 

Needs having a Particular Urgency.  This final objective is defined as those needs, that because of existing 

conditions, pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community, and where other 

financial resources are not available to meet such needs.  Implementation of the City’s programs will be applied in 

one of two methods, citywide or in low-to-moderate income areas.  Further, this section of the Strategic Plan 

integrates the Analysis of Fair Housing Impediments into the planning process.  Specifically, the recommendations 

and actions of the AFH are being tied to goals and objectives of this plan. 

Citywide:  

The City of Cedar Falls will allocate housing rehabilitation and repair funds on a citywide basis.  Homeowners may 

apply directly to the City for funding, which the city prioritizes on a first qualified, first served basis.  A written 

application, income verification, and inspection will follow, assuming the owner meets income guidelines.  After 

need is determined, the scope of work is to be defined and either bid (rehab projects) or procured using small bid 

guidelines established by the city.  The City’s Housing Commission reviews and recommends all suitable projects to 

the City Council for approval.  Thereafter, contracts are executed by the parties and work is completed, with 

approvals and reimbursements being made available to contractors during and at the end of the process. 

Services provided, on behalf of the City, by agencies or organizations are also to be offered citywide.  The 
underlying reason for funding these services is to prevent the possibility of homelessness.  Eligible services will be 
consistent with CDBG guidelines, and may include, but not be limited to: healthcare, financial literacy and 
counseling, sheltering, transportation, nutrition, substance abuse, and family and children’s counseling services. 
 

23

Item 3.



2 
 

New programs, such as down-payment assistance, first-time homebuyers, and Housing Choice Voucher changes 
may also be implemented citywide.  Also, all related planning and program administration are intended to be 
offered citywide. 
 
LMI Area Benefit (See Attached Map): 

LMI Area Benefit Projects will be implemented in Census Tracts and Block Groups currently reporting income levels 

at or below 80% of Area Median Income (AMI).  There are currently 7 census tracts with 8 block groups that have 

an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater (ACS 2011-2015). Specifically, Census tract 2200 block group 2 and 3; 

tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 2603 

block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.    Categories of projects that are targeted include: neighborhood 

infrastructure, transportation, park and recreation, demolition and clearance, and accessibility (pedestrian) 

projects. 

Application of the Waterloo and Cedar Falls Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (2014 and 2019 
Draft) Recommendations and Actions 
 
An analysis of Fair Housing Impediments was completed in 2014, and being currently updated, for the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls HOME Consortium, at about the same time as the current Consolidated Plan was being completed.  A 
draft of the Analysis is scheduled to be updated concurrently with the new 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan.  Because 
the recommendations made in the Analysis, both the 2014 version and 2019 draft, are still relevant, the Analysis 
will be used when evaluating the effectiveness of fair housing initiatives for the next five years.  The actions, 
outlined specifically for Cedar Falls, are enumerated below and will be used for this planning process. 
 
Public Sector Impediments: Market Based 
 

1. Limited English-Speaking Population. Conduct a four-factor analysis to determine which current systems 
for interpretation and translation are adequately serving the community.  Ending with a Language Access 
Plan. 

2. Focus CDBG funding on the provision of affordable rental units. 
3. Consider a renter-focused CDBG-funded affordable housing project. 
4. Planning departments in Consortium work together to arrange for a workshop for developers and 

landlords to broaden awareness of the concepts of universal design. 
5. Provide incentives for employment training and apprenticeships aimed at residents of racially-impacted 

neighborhoods. 
6. Target homeownership counseling to residents of impacted neighborhoods. 

 
Public Sector Impediments: Policy Based 
 

1. Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission outreach project.  Determine viability of using CDBG funds to 
support an outreach project. Empower the Commission to enforce fair housing laws rather than referring 
residents to the Iowa Civil Rights Commission 

2. Consortium should continue to engage in regional planning efforts to most efficiently match bus lines and 
stops with jobs, housing, and amenities. 

 
Private Sector Impediments: Market Based 
 

1. Consortium should consider testing for mortgage discrimination by a qualified entity in order to more 
effectively target education, outreach, referral, and enforcement activities. 

2. Apply for a grant for another round of testing, with particular emphasis on race and disability, should be 
considered by the Consortium. 

24

Item 3.



3 
 

3. Legal review of nuisance and rental inspection ordinances to ensure whether enforcement is consistent 
with applicable fair housing laws.  

25

Item 3.



4 
 

SP-25: Priority Needs 91.215(a)(2) 

As a result of input from focus group participants, community survey responses, elected officials, and staff, the City 

has identified housing, community and economic development, homelessness, supportive social and educational 

service needs, directly and indirectly impacting affordable housing, infrastructure, public services and 

homelessness prevention.  The priority needs for the life of this Consolidated Plan and Strategic Plan (FFY 2019-

2023), are listed below, and identified by “CP” in the table.  By way of comparison, actions from the 2014 Analysis 

of Fair Housing Impediments are measured against the Consolidated Plan needs and integrated into the table as 

well and identified as “AFH” in the table. 

1 Priority Need Name Maintaining Existing Affordable Housing 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide 

Associated Goals: 
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
CP: Preserve Existing Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 
AFH: Consider Renter-Focused CDBG-Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description Preserve existing affordable housing stock in the community through 
rehabilitation, repair, safety or health-related abatement measures. 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

2 Priority Need Name Increasing Affordable Housing Units 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 
AFH: Consider Renter-Focused CDBG-Funded Affordable Housing Project 

Description Increase the number of housing units in the community that are considered 
affordable. 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey, City input 

3 Priority Need Name Ensuring Fair Housing for Residents 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low and Low-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: CDBG Planning and Administration 
AFH: Conduct Interpretation and Translation Analysis 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Target Homeownership Counseling to Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 
AFH: Human Rights Commission Empowerment and Outreach Project 
AFH: Test for Mortgage Discrimination; Apply for Grant to Test Validity 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description Enforce and implement affirmative fair housing certification, anti-displacement 
and relocation plan, acquisition and relocation requirements, lead-based paint 
protection including remediation, and anti-discrimination laws 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups and community survey 

26

Item 3.



5 
 

4 Priority Need Name Supporting Services for Homeless, Near-Homeless, Special Needs and 
Populations 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational Support 
AFH: Incent Employment Training and Apprenticeships for Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 

Description Offer support service, either directly through the city or contracting agencies, for 
persons that are homeless, near homeless, have special needs, or that are 
transitioning from institutional settings such that they do not become homeless 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

5 Priority Need Name Providing Family and Children’s Services 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational Support 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
AFH: Target Homeownership Counseling to Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 

Description Support agencies and organizations that offer healthcare, substance abuse 
counseling and treatment, financial literacy and counseling services, sheltering, 
basic needs such as food, and other services in order prevent homelessness. 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

6 Priority Need Name Promoting Public Facilities and Infrastructure Development 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Improve Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
CP: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 

Description Provide infrastructure (i.e. street, water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, drainage, 
trees) to areas that must be identified as LMI areas by the Census Bureau 

Basis for Relative Priority Community survey and City input 

7 Priority Need Name Promoting Neighborhood Development 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 
CP: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 

27

Item 3.



6 
 

AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description In order to stem possible neighborhood erosion, the City will work to offer 
infrastructure, amenities, and services in targeted neighborhoods, as identified 
by the Census Bureau as being LMI areas. 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

8 Priority Need Name Supporting Economic Development, Business Opportunities and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment 

Priority Level Moderate 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
AFH: Incent Employment Training and Apprenticeships for Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 
AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 

Description Identify possible workforce for businesses and industries, as well as target areas 
where commercial redevelopment could occur 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey and City input 

9 Priority Need Name Conducting Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Improve Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
AFH: Consider Renter-Focused CDBG-Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description Clear lots for redevelopment 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey and City input 

10 Priority Need Name Providing Effective Planning and Administration 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate-Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Housing Administration 
CP: CDBG Administration 
AFH: Consider Renter-Focused CDBG-Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 
AFH: Conduct Interpretation and Translation Analysis 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 

Description Provide necessary administration and planning services, as well as complete all 
reports, as required by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Basis for Relative Priority Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

Table 13 – Priority Needs 

 

  

28

Item 3.



7 
 

SP-30: Influence of Market Conditions 91.215(b) 

Which market characteristics will influence use of TBRA, TBRA for non-homeless special needs; New Unit 

production, rehabilitation, and acquisition?   

Affordable Housing 
Type 

Market Characteristics that will Influence the Use of Funds Available for Housing 
Type 

Tenant-Based 
Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) 

The City of Cedar Falls has a shortage of housing units for low-and-moderate income 
households (<80% of AMI), which is even more pronounced for households earning 
less than 50% of Area Median Income.  In September 2018, the Housing Commission 
closed the Housing Choice Voucher waiting list, and it will remain closed until July 
31st, 2019.  Closure of the waiting list was publicly implemented.  Unfortunately, the 
need for rent assistance continues to rise in the community. 

Tenant-Based 
Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) for Non-
Homeless Special 
Needs 

The City manages a Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) program through an 
internal agency.  At this point, the City of Cedar Falls is not participating in a Housing 
Trust Fund, which could offer more TBRA assistance through at least two 
agencies/organizations (Operation Threshold and Exceptional Persons, 
Incorporated).  Both of these agencies may be working with Cedar Falls residents.  
However, with only limited funds and the high rent prices, the number of 
households assisted is limited. 

New Unit 
Production 

The City of Cedar Falls continues to support development of new affordable units.  
However, with the demand, much of which is driven by the University of Northern 
Iowa, housing ownership costs remain out-of-reach for many households.  
Conversely, senior housing continues to be a priority for the community, and at least 
two organizations are building senior housing, Western Home and New Aldaya. 

Rehabilitation Rehabilitation continues to be a need for Cedar Falls homeowners in certain areas of 
the community.  The City is often maintaining a waiting list for both its owner-
occupied rehabilitation and repair programs.  With that said, rehabilitation is a 
challenging activity insomuch as obtaining agency clearances, project approvals, and 
identifying contractors that are able to complete the work on-budget and in a timely 
fashion. 

Acquisition, 
including 
Preservation 

According to the Iowa Finance Authority, there are 5 privately-owned, subsidized 
developments in Cedar Falls containing 360 units.  Subsidies are either through Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits or Section 8 (See Section MA-10 of this Plan.).  

Table 14 – Market Conditions 

 

Due primarily to the high cost of housing in the community, which is tied directly to the price of land and 

infrastructure, the City of Cedar Falls is challenged to provide affordable housing.  These factors, together with the 

demand for housing in the community, affect the price of housing.  As an aside, the demand for housing in the 

community is influenced by the University of Northern Iowa, which is located in the community. 

SP-35: Anticipated Resources 91.215(a)(4), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding during FFY 2019 

through FFY 2023.  The uses of the funds include housing rehabilitation and repair, code enforcement, access to 

public services, public infrastructure and neighborhood improvements, clearance and demolition of property, and 

planning and administration.

29

Item 3.



8 
 

Explain how federal funds will leverage additional resources (private, state, and local funds), include a description of how matching requirements will be 

satisfied 

The City of Cedar Falls encourages applicants and sub-recipients to obtain other public and private resources that address needs identified in the Consolidated 

Plan.  In order to implement most of the projects identified in this Plan, it will require additional resources to complete said projects.  During prior years, 

projects have leveraged other sources. 

Description of how match requirements will be satisfied 

There are no match requirements for CDBG funding under the Entitlement Program. 

If appropriate, describe the publicly owned land or property within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. sanitary sewer, water, drainage), 
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e. sidewalks, trails, curb cuts), and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements (i.e. parks, playgrounds) will likely 
occur on publicly-owned land.  Specifically, the publicly-owned rights-of-way and parks will be used to address the needs identified in this plan. 
 
Anticipated Resources 

A summary of anticipated resources for the CDBG Entitlement and Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Programs is shown in the table below. 

30

Item 3.



9 
 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 
Available 

Remainder of 
Con Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CDBG-CV 

Public/Federal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public/Federal 

Housing Rehab and Repair, Agency 
Assistance, Infrastructure 

Development, Community and 
Economic Development Efforts, 
Public Service Improvements, 
Neighborhood Improvements, 

Demolition/Clearance, Neighborhood 
Access, Acquisition, Planning and 

Administration 
 
Housing Rehab and Repair, Agency 
Assistance, and Planning and 
Administration 

$253,085 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$160,662  

$0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 

$372,039 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 

$625,124 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$160,662 

$1,012,340 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 

 

HCV Public/Federal Rent Assistance $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0 $0 $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$5,200,000 
(Estimated) 

 

Table 15 – Anticipated Resource 

 

31

Item 3.



10 
 

SP-40: Institutional Delivery Structure 91.215(k) 

 
Responsible Entity Responsible Entity Type Role Geographic Area Served 

City of Cedar Falls Government Economic Development, 
Homelessness, Non-
Homeless Special Needs, 
Homeownership 
programs and 
improvements, 
Neighborhood 
Improvements, Public 
Facilities, Public Services, 
Demolition/Clearance, 
Planning and 
Administration 

Jurisdiction 

Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments 

Contractor Public Administrative 
Contractor 

Jurisdiction 

Table 16 - Institutional Delivery Structure 
 

Strengths and gaps in the delivery system; how to overcome gaps 

The strengths in the delivery system include the use of another experienced local public sector entity, INRCOG, to 
help the City of Cedar Falls implement their program.  Further, working with the City of Waterloo has brought 
experience to this process.  Together, both entities will help to improve the effectiveness of the program for the 
City and its residents 
  

32

Item 3.



11 
 

Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream services 
 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to Homeless Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 

Counseling/Advocacy X X X 

Legal Assistance X   X 

Mortgage Assistance X   X 

Rental Assistance X   X X 

Utilities Assistance X  X X 

Street Outreach Services 

Law Enforcement  X  X     

Mobile Clinics         

Other Street Outreach Services  X X     

Supportive Services 

Alcohol & Drug Abuse X X X 

Child Care X X  

Education X     

Employment and Employment 
Training X X  

Healthcare X X  

HIV/AIDS X X  

Life Skills X X  

Mental Health Counseling X X  

Transportation X X  

Other 

        

Table 17 - Homeless Prevention Services Summary 
 
Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed above meet the needs 
of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans 
and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 
 
As noted above, the City supports several agencies that address the needs of those persons that are homeless.  
Also, the City is participating in the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board (LHCB).  Finally, the 
Cedar Falls Section 8 Program (may also be known as the Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar Falls Housing 
Authority) reduces the potential for homelessness by providing rent assistance in the form of Housing Choice 
Vouchers.   
 
Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population and persons 
experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed above 
 
The strengths regarding the current delivery system is that the City is financially supporting service providers that 
can accommodate special needs populations using their expertise and facilities, thus preventing duplication of 
services in the community.  An additional strength is the sheer number of agencies, organization, and entities that 
can offer services to the community.  Gaps include those caused by funding limitations and an apparent lack of 
service education for residents and provider coordination. 
 
Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and service delivery system 
for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 
 

33

Item 3.



12 
 

The Cedar Falls Housing Commission and City staff will continue to work to provide strategies that minimize gaps in 
the service delivery system.  As noted, the city works with multiple non-profit and private organizations to address 
a host of housing and non-housing community development needs and issues.  The City, at this point, is planning 
to continue to fund agencies, as is practicable.  Further, the City has discussed continuing the conversation 
between local government and the agencies, organizations, and entities that participated in the public input 
process within this plan. 
 
 

34

Item 3.



13 
 

SP-45 Goals 91.215(a)(4) 

Goals Summary Information  
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing: 
Owner Occupied 
Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing 

CDBG: 
$172,500 
$272,500 

 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated or 
Repaired: 
11 14 Household Housing 
Units 

2 Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing: 
Renter Occupied 
Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing 

CDBG: 
$201,820  

Rental Housing 
Rehabilitated or 
Repaired: 
6 Household Housing 
Units 

3 Preserve Existing 
Affordable Housing 
through Code 
Enforcement 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing and 
Promote Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$51,750 

 

Apply Code requirements 
to residential units in LMI 
Areas: 
375 Households Assisted 

4 Prevent 
Homelessness 
Through Agency and 
Organization Support 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide Prevent Homelessness 
and Offer Family and 
Children’s Services 

CDBG: 
$189,800 
$221,932 

 

Public Service Activities 
Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit:20,000 22,200 
persons assisted 
Homeless person 
overnight shelter: 200 
persons assisted 

5 Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG: 
$414,480  

Public Facility or 
Infrastructure Activity, 
other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 540 persons 
assisted 

6 Provide Access to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Neighborhood 
Development; Support 
Economic Development; 
Business Development 

CDBG: 
$52,420  

Public Service Activities 
Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 1,000 persons 
assisted 

35

Item 3.



14 
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

7 Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Infrastructure 
Development and 
Promote Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$133,499  

Public Facility or 
Infrastructure Activity, 
other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 95 persons 
assisted 

8 Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Neighborhood 
Development and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG: 
$158,120  

Public Facility or 
Infrastructure Activity, 
other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 405 persons 
assisted 

9 Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and Clearance CDBG: 
$10,000 

 

Buildings Demolished: 
2 Buildings 

10 CDBG Planning and 
Administration 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Provide Effective Planning 
and Administration 

CDBG: 
$253,075 
$281,605  

Not Applicable 

Table 18 – Goals Summary 

36

Item 3.



15 
 

Goal Descriptions 
 

1 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility and structural 
hazard removal grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to 
preserve owner-occupied single-family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

2 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, and structural hazard removal 
grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to preserve renter-
occupied housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

3 Goal Name Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes 
(i.e. fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low-and-
moderate income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

4 Goal Name Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing homeless services, including sheltering, in the 
community as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional, substance abuse, family 
services, and healthcare. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Income Clientele 

5 Goal Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, drainage, and other projects in specific neighborhoods 
qualifying as low-and-moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

6 Goal Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income-eligible households that are 
dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

37

Item 3.



16 
 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

7 Goal Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, curb-cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to 
residents in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau.  This will be accomplished by 
infilling pedestrian improvements that will allow LMI residents connectivity to services, 
businesses, employment, recreational, and educational opportunities. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

8 Goal Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement 
related to parks, recreation, trees, and active living parks in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private 
Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

9 Goal Name Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated 
structures, thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local 
basis.  Individual demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility 
verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10 Goal Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit 
low-and-moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 19 – Goal Descriptions 

 
 

SP-45: Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families to whom the 
jurisdiction will provide affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.315(b)(2) 
 
The City estimates it will assist seventeen (17) twenty (20) households with affordable housing under this Strategic 
Plan.  

38

Item 3.



17 
 

SP-50: Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement 91.215(c) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community, and therefore, this Consolidated Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public 
housing, attempt to increase engagement of public housing residents in the process, or address any “troubled” 
public housing agencies. 
 
Encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participation in 

homeownership 

Because there is no public housing, further involvement of residents was not part of this planning process. 

Is Public Housing considered troubled in the jurisdiction 

Again, because there is no public housing, there are no units or facilities considered “troubled” in the community 

SP-55: Barriers to Affordable Housing 91.215(h) 

Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between 
demand on the units by full-time residents, and that which comes with being a university community and its 
student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 
 
Two public policy issues were raised during the planning process, parking paving requirements for rental 
properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively address growth that includes mixing of 
uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in fast-growing areas of the community (i.e. Main 
Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has 
reviewed the requirement three separate times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, 
particularly a concern about hard-surfacing gravel driveways of existing single-unit rental homes, whereas, the 
drive of an existing single-unit owner-occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist 
qualifying properties comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City announced it was planning to update 
its existing zoning ordinance, with the idea that it may choose to include both form-based and conventional zoning 
provisions for specific parts of the community.  This may promote more dense development, which could help to 
preserve affordability, that is design-based, as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional zoning 
requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements (i.e. height, setbacks, yard area).   
 
With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low-income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being relatively high.  Second, 
housing demand in the community has driven-up construction costs for both single-family and multiple-family 
developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the 
University of Northern Iowa student population, has increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units 
unaffordable for low-and-moderate income households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land 
upward in the community, not to mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development 
(that which occurs on previously undeveloped land), most notably infrastructure costs.   Finally, declining or static 
local and federal resources, which could be allocated toward affordable housing projects, coupled with ever-
increasing program requirements, have also been a key impediment to addressing low-and-moderate income 
housing needs. 

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to ameliorate negative effects of 
public policy during this process.  Also, the City may wish to explore public-private-nonprofit partnerships in the 
development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional 
resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said 

39

Item 3.



18 
 

housing may be marketed at workforce housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City 
does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or 
not people can afford to live in the community.  Further, the City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use 
including areas that may be developed at higher densities, which may help address the availability of affordable 
housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas that may be suitable for higher density development: 
along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately east of the University of Northern Iowa; and 
intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 7th Street.  The codes, specifically zoning, 
building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties 
and people uniformly and fairly.  Further, fees are either “flat” or based upon the value of the improvements made 
to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as 
determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are 
set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property 
use), the percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, 
residentially-classified property is rolled-back by the state such that local governments may only tax at a rate of 
approximately 55 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, in 2015, the State adopted a 
rollback for multi-residential properties that was to be implemented over several years.  The tax rate began at 
86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally reduce in percentage until it 
is the same rollback as that of residentially-classified properties (i.e. in the 50-60 percent range).  This, then, 
reduces property tax income for the City. 

With that said, the City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may 
not allow for persons with limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The 
CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair 
programs, the City offers assistance to residents for the services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, 
thus not requiring persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing-related expenses and 
the other services they may need.  It also allows for infrastructure investments, avoiding increases in other rates, 
taxes, or assessments for property owners because CDBG funds are used. 

Strategy to remove or ameliorate negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing, 

as identified in the Needs Assessment strategy 

The City has reviewed the previously-discussed parking regulation several times since adoption.  Knowing that 
hard-surfacing is an economic impact, the rental ordinance phased it in over six years.  All hard-surfacing in rental 
unit driveways and parking areas will be completed by 2021.  In addition, it appears likely the City’s current zoning 
ordinance may undergo significant changes that may better serve affordable housing.  Further, the City will 
continue to study its Housing Choice Voucher program and effectiveness of how to best manage the program for 
participants.  Finally, the City will work with developers to identify possible areas or projects that could include 
affordable housing units, as part of developing a Housing Needs Assessment for the community. 
 
SP-60: Homelessness Strategy 91.215(d) 
 
Homelessness is monitored as part of the Continuum of Care (CoC) model, as implemented through the Black 
Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board, which is comprised of public and private sector representatives, 
including local governments and non-profit organizations, schools, faith-based organizations, and service and 
advocacy agencies.  Several CoC providers took part in the focus group sessions described in this plan. 
 
With that said, the City of Cedar Falls also allocates the maximum allowable CDBG dollars for distribution to several 
agencies, as has been noted.  As part of those allocations, the City conducts a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) 
process, whereby prospective agencies outline the services they are able to offer to the City.  Homelessness, 
prevention and avoidance of homelessness, is the overarching reason for providing CDBG funds to the selected 

40

Item 3.



19 
 

agencies.  After award, but during the award year, the City then visits each agency to perform a monitoring of the 
services being offered to Cedar Falls residents.  These monitoring visits are quite helpful for the City, insomuch, as 
they provide an opportunity for staff to become aware of the service details, needs, and impacts.  Finally, the 
awarded agencies from the prior year are given an opportunity to attend the City’s Housing Commission Meetings 
to discuss their program; offer insight regarding the needs, particularly those that are unmet, of Cedar Falls 
residents; and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on its residents. 
 
The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City has been funding an 
agency, the Salvation Army, for part of their operational expenses related to operating two homeless shelters.  
Second, the City funds two agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a 
household’s housing situation, by hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family 
relationships.  Examples include Consumer Credit Counseling and Family and Children’s Council. Third, the City 
offered CDBG funding for at-home healthcare, outpatient mental health services, and substance abuse counseling 
through two agencies, the Visiting Nurses Association and Pathways Behavioral, Incorporated.  Finally, the City, 
using its CDBG funds, hopes to address hunger and nutritional needs by funding the Northeast Iowa Food Bank and 
Food Pantry.  As was expected, resident needs outpaced the amount of funding the City was able to offer the 
agencies through the CDBG program alone.  Nevertheless, the City intends to continue funding agencies that offer 
ancillary services to its residents with the goal of preventing or minimizing homelessness. 
 
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through reaching-out to homeless persons, particularly those 
unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual need 
 
Needs of the homeless are identified through the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board.  This 
advocacy group shares information regarding homeless needs and services.  The Board serves as a large 
partnership for service providers, policy makers, and administrators for addressing housing and homeless services 
in the area.  In addition, the Salvation Army and Northeast Iowa Food Bank have provided services directly to 
persons that may be homeless or in danger of becoming homeless, on behalf of the City.  Finally, the City of Cedar 
Falls is always open to developing new partnerships and strategies designed to address homelessness.    
 
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of 
homeless persons 
 
The City of Cedar Falls uses CDBG funds to address homelessness through funding of agency shelters, most 
recently the Salvation Army Women's and Children’s Shelter, as well as five other agencies that indirectly affect 
homelessness. The Shelter used the funds provided during this past year to finance rehabilitation work to the 
shelter itself. The shelter also provides services to assist the women in finding employment and permanent 
housing, as well as offers emergency assistance to those persons affected by disasters. 
 
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through helping homeless persons that could make the 
transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the length of time homelessness 
is experienced; homeless relapse prevention 
 
The City will work with an agency that will offer shelter for persons in need, most notably those persons that may 
be homeless.  For example, the Salvation Army Shelter provides case management and supportive services to 
assist homeless persons make the transition to permanent, stable housing.  As previously noted, the City of Cedar 
Falls has a sub-recipient agreement with Consumer Credit Counseling Services to provide budget and credit 
counseling, foreclosure prevention counseling, and home ownership counseling to low-and-moderate income 
Cedar Falls residents in order to prevent homelessness, as well. 
  
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness after being discharged from publicly funded institutions and 
systems of care; addressing housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs. 
In order to prevent homelessness, the City will participate in the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating 
Board, as well as address other systems of care.  Again, the City of Cedar Falls has provided awards to six agencies 

41

Item 3.



20 
 

that offer services to residents.  By doing so, the cost of these services is paid by the City, as opposed to residents, 
which in turn, helps stretch the budgets of served persons and prevent or minimize the threat of becoming 
homeless.  Furthermore, these paid services assist those households that may spend 50 percent or more of their 
budget on housing expenses, which may threaten housing status or the immediate and/or basic needs of the 
assisted household.  As an aside, any agencies funded will be classified as serving LMI Limited Clientele 
populations. 
 
CDBG funds are used to fund home healthcare to low income elderly and disabled residents. These services allow 
medically needy residents to remain in their homes even when assisted living in required. Funds are also provided 
for providing counseling services to families and youth. Also, on provider has a Parent Connection Program that 
provides parent education, social support and access to community resources through trained staff that meet 
weekly for a minimum of ninety minutes.  In addition, substance abuse treatment is offered, through a contracting 
agency, by the City for persons in need, and the regional food bank provides foodstuff for households in need of 
nutrition.  Finally, as indicated above, the City intends to consider funding financial literacy and household 
budgeting courses and assistance, as well as financial management services, to residents. 
 
SP-65: Lead-Based Paint Hazards 91.215(i) 
 
Actions to address lead-based paint hazards and increased access to housing without lead-based hazards 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead- based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls.  
If abatement work is completed, the entire property/project is cleaned. At least one hour after the final cleaning a 
certified inspector does a visual examination to ensure there are no paint chips, dust, debris, or bare soil. The 
inspector then takes a dust sample from the window troughs, windowsills, and floors. The sampling is then tested 
in accordance with the HUD guidelines. In addition, per unit rehab budgets also include funds for relocation of 
families impacted by lead, as well as for addressing lead hazards such that units can be considered safe. 
 
Actions to address how lead-based hazard are related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards 
 
The City will continue to include lead-based hazard prevention measures in its program, including identification, 
testing, relocation, and remediation actions.  Applicants, as a means of education, are also provided the lead paint 
brochure "Protect Your Family from Lead Paint in Your Home".  This brochure explains the dangers of lead in the 
home.  Households receiving assistance through the Housing Choice Voucher program are also advised of lead 
hazards and units built prior to 1978 are assessed for lead hazards. 
 
How will the plan for reduction of lead-based hazards be integrated into housing policies and programs? 
 
As noted above, lead-based hazard reduction measures are included in all housing rehabilitation projects, the 
Housing Choice Voucher program, specifically in actions and budgets.  These efforts will continue during the 
lifespan of this plan.   
 
SP-70: Anti-Poverty Strategy 91.215(j) 
 
Goals, program and policies for reducing the number of poverty-level families 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is interested in retaining as well as improving the abilities of its workforce, which includes 
encouraging job skill development, job training, education, and other program opportunities that may arise, as a 
means of supporting self-sufficiency and reducing poverty.  This includes working with its local businesses and 
industries and economic development professionals to do so.  In addition, the City will work with local service 
providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the development of affordable housing; 
prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education and literacy; and provide emergency 

42

Item 3.



21 
 

food and shelter. 
 
Goals, program and policies for producing and preserving affordable housing will be coordinated with other 
programs designed to serve persons at the poverty level 
 
The City staff, and/or their contractor(s), will be tasked to coordinate the services provided under the CDBG 
Entitlement, HOME, and Housing Choice Vouchers Programs with other programs designed to serve persons at the 
poverty level.  Specifically, the City is hoping to develop a forum that would include the public sector and the 
agencies offering services to the community, which would be designed as a continuation of the discussions that 
occurred during the focus group meetings that were part of this planning effort. 
 
Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. INRCOG staff, which helps the City manage the CDBG Entitlement Program, attends Community Resource 
Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies and non-profit organizations. The meetings 
offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the services each organization and/or agency is 
providing. By educating participating organizations on services available in the community, we are better 
positioned to meet the needs of the low-moderate-income individuals and households in the city. 
 
SP-80: Monitoring 91.230 
 
Describe the standards and procedures that will be used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the 
plan and ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including comprehensive 
planning requirements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls uses numerous methods of ensuring the projects funded under the CDBG Entitlement 
program comply with federal standards and requirements, including the National Objectives for the CDBG 
Program.  Further, said monitoring will utilize this plan and the Analysis of Fair Housing as the foundations and 
impetus for actions taken and implemented using CDBG funding in the community.  In short, expenditure of funds 
will be consistent with the goals outlined in both planning documents. 
 
All direct housing rehabilitation and repair projects will be conducted according to prescribed requirements, 
including written applications, income verifications, procurement, contracting, inspections, and closeout 
procedures.  Only low-to-moderate income households will be assisted.  
 
Any agencies receiving funding will be required to compete for funds, develop eligible proposals, provide quarterly 
reports, and be monitored for compliance and effectiveness.  The City of Cedar Falls intends to continue working 
with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure it is reaching the goal of assisting residents with 
the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code enforcement and other departments to identify potential at-
risk residents. Declining resources have been a key impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other 
agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to provide more services to low-and-moderate income 
residents.  Low-and-moderate income limited clientele services will be assisted, as is allowed. 
 
City-directed projects will be implemented according to CDBG eligibility, monitoring, and reporting requirements.  
This will include all neighborhood projects, the scope of which shall be limited to low-and-moderate income areas, 
as defined by the US Census Bureau. 
 
Finally, the Housing Commission and City Council will review and approve this Consolidated Plan, each Annual 
Action Plan adopted under this Consolidated Plan, as well as each Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER), which summarizes the accomplishments and efforts made under the CDBG Entitlement 
Program, all after conducting the required, appropriate public input processes outlined in the City’s Public 
Participation Plan. 
 
All CDBG funds expended will be subject to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and the City’s 

43

Item 3.



22 
 

auditing and monitoring processes.  In addition, planning and administrative work performed by INRCOG are 
subject to its independent auditing and records inspections processes as well.   
 
 

44

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 21, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Hold Public Hearing: Community Development Block  
Grant & HOME Programs - Substantial Amendment to FFY19 Annual 
Action Plan  

 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  Part of the Act 
provides additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support 
activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.  Cedar Falls is receiving 
$160,662 for CDBG-CV.  HUD requires the funds to be allocated to activities/program 
areas in an Annual Action Plan.  Staff proposes amending our currently active plan, 
FFY19 Annual Action Plan.  This is the most expeditious method to then receive the 
funds and distribute them.   
 
Staff recommends utilizing activities in our recently adopted, HUD-approved 5-year 
Consolidated Plan.  Below is a summary of the recommended amendment. 
 

Activity 

FFY2019 AAP 
(currently 
approved) 

CARES Act 
(proposed 

amendment) 

 

Total 

Maintain Existing Affordable 
Housing: Owner Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$16,500 $100,000 62% $116,500 
 

Prevent Homelessness Through 
Agency and Organizational Support 
(Service Agencies) 

$37,960 $32,132 20% $70,092 
 

CDBG Planning and Administration $50,615 $28,530 18% $79,145 

Total $105,075 $160,662 100% $265,737 

 
HUD has encouraged added funding to Service Agencies and lifted the normal 15% cap 
of CDBG funds toward this area.  Staff recommends 20% toward Service Agencies 
since HUD has also advised that funding operating costs would not be eligible, as this 
may create a duplication of benefits under the CARES Act funds. 

45

Item 4.



 
It is recommended a majority of the funds be allocated toward rehabilitation or repair 
projects, where Cedar Falls could see tangible benefits in supporting low- and 
moderate-income households that may have experienced a direct impact to their 
income due to Coronavirus.  We would encourage income-eligible home owners with 
outdoor repairs or maintenance to their home or garage to apply.  Examples of projects 
are needs related to safety and necessary maintenance to a home such as roof 
replacement, exterior painting, siding, deck/porch work, AC/furnace replacement.  
Projects can range from $5,000-20,000 and require the work of a contractor.  Ensuring 
a link to coronavirus is critical for this activity, therefore requests will be evaluated on 
urgency of need and COVID-19 link, rather than first-come, first-serve. 
 
Finally, to implement the added activities, there has been and will continue to be added 
City staff time.  INRCOG has also been instrumental in fulfilling administrative 
operations for CDBG.  Therefore, a contract amendment with INRCOG is proposed as a 
separate agenda item.  The administrative functions include amendments to the plans 
(with public hearings), HUD notices and reports, processing contract amendments for 
Service Agencies, and program management. 
 
Attached is the amended Annual Action Plan FFY19.  Amendments are highlighted in 
yellow.  Since providing a draft at the time of setting the public hearing, several dates 
were inputted on the cover page and reduced steps with Housing Commission 
occurred, per relaxation of the rules from HUD. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the substantial amendment to FFY19 Annual Action Plan 
and submitting it to HUD. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Attachments:  Annual Action Plan FFY19 

46

Item 4.



  1 

 

 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2019 (CITY FISCAL YEAR 2020) ANNUAL ACTION PLAN-AMENDMENT 
 
 
PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW (5/11/2020), DATES ADDED 5/21/2020 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (5-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; May 22, 2020 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
May 19, 2020  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
May 18th, 2020 (Council sets public hearing for June 1st, 2020) 
June 1st, 2020 (Adoption) (After a properly-noticed public hearing was conducted) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; May 22, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47

Item 4.



  2 

 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving an allocation of $253,085 in Community Development Block Grant funding and approximately $1.3M in Housing 
Choice Voucher funding for Federal Fiscal Year 2019.  There are no match requirements for either CDBG under the Entitlement Program or HCV funding. 
 
Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected Amount 
Available 

Remainder of Con 
Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CDBG-CV 

Public/Federal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public/Federal 

Housing Rehab and Repair, 
Agency Assistance, 

Infrastructure Development, 
Community and Economic 

Development Efforts, Public 
Service Improvements, 
Demolition/Clearance, 
Neighborhood Access, 

Neighborhood Improvements, 
Acquisition, Planning and 

Administration 
 

Housing Rehab and Repair, 
Agency Assistance, Planning 

and Administration 

$253,085  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$160,662 

$0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 

$372,039 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 

$625,124 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$160,662 

$1,012,340 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 

 

HCV Public/Federal Rent Assistance $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0 $0 $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$5,200,000 
(Estimated) 

 

Table 1 – Goals Summary 
 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements 
will be satisfied 
 
CDBG funds will be used to provide rehabilitation and repair grants for single family homeowners.  Also, CDBG funds, awarded to agencies, will be used in 

48

Item 4.



  3 

 

conjunction with other agency funding sources in order to provide services to Cedar Falls households.  Finally, the City will support Code Enforcement, 
Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements, Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements, and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements, and transportation 
services or amenities in low-to-moderate income areas of the community. 
 
If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 
 
Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. sanitary sewer, water, drainage), 
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e. sidewalks, trails, curb cuts), and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements (i.e. parks, playgrounds) will likely 
occur on publicly-owned land.  Specifically, the publicly-owned rights-of-way and parks will be used to address the needs identified in this plan. 

49

Item 4.



  4 

 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
 
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 
 
Goals Summary Information  
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Owner 
Occupied Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG: 
$16,500 

$116,500 
 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
3 6 Household Housing Units 

2 Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Renter 
Occupied Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG: 
$101,320  

Rental Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
3 Household Housing Units 

3 Preserve Existing 
Affordable 
Housing through 
Code 
Enforcement 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing and 
Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$10,000 

 

Apply Code requirements to residential units in 
LMI Areas: 
75 Households Assisted 

4 Prevent 
Homelessness 
Through Agency 
and 
Organization 
Support 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Prevent 
Homelessness 
and Offer Family 
and Children’s 
Services 

CDBG: 
$37,960 
$70,092 

 

Public Service Activities Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit:4,040 6,000 persons assisted 
Homeless person overnight shelter: 40 persons 
assisted 

5 Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG: 
$251,820  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 375 persons assisted 

50

Item 4.



  5 

 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

6 Provide Access 
to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development; 
Support 
Economic 
Development; 
Business 
Development 

CDBG: $0  Public Service Activities Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 0 persons assisted 

7 Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 
and Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$106,909  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 80 persons assisted 

8 Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 
and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG: 
$50,000  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 135 persons assisted 

9 Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and 
Clearance 

CDBG: $0 
 

Buildings Demolished: 
0 Buildings 

10 CDBG Planning 
and 
Administration 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Provide Effective 
Planning and 
Administration 

CDBG: 
$50,615 
$79,145  

Not Applicable 

Table 2 – Goals Summary 
 
 
 

51

Item 4.



  6 

 

AP-35 Projects - 91.220(d) 
 
Introduction  
 
The projects chosen for funding allocation all serve a purpose in efforts to prevent homelessness, preserve the 
current housing stock of affordable homes in the area and provide services that are essential to keeping residents 
in their homes. These programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and 
improve areas that meet the national objective in the community. Funds will be utilized in an efficient manner and 
serve those with the greatest need. 
 

# Project Name 

1 Single-Family Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation 

2 Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

3 Code Enforcement 

4 Agency and Organization Support 

5 Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

6 Provide Access to Transportation Service 

7 Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

8 Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

9 Demolition and Clearance 

10 CDBG Planning and Administration 

Table 3 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs 
 
 
In order to serve Cedar Falls residents, funding will be allocated toward making housing more affordable, 
preserving existing affordable housing stock, increasing affordable housing, supporting low-to-moderate income 
neighborhood investment, and assisting citizens with accessing services.  Funding will be focused on meeting two 
National CDBG Objectives, assisting low-to-moderate income persons and eliminating slum and blight in the 
community. 
 
The primary barrier for assisted households is, and has been, the price of housing.  Further, the resources available 
for the program outlined in this plan have been static, or even declining in some years.  Conversely, the regulations 
and requirements associated with funded projects have increased along with administrative expenditures 
 
 

52

Item 4.



  7 

 

Project Summary Information 
 

1 Project Name Single-Family Owner-Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed Maintain Affordable Housing 

Funding Target CDBG: $16,500 $116,500 (Estimated) 

Description Rehabilitation of Owner Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 3 6 households will benefit from the CBBG Rehabilitation 
Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and 
siding. 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

2 Project Name Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed Maintain Affordable Housing; Ensure Fair Housing for Residents 

Funding Target $101,320 (Estimated) 

Description Repair of Renter Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 3 households will benefit from this limited CDBG 
Rehabilitation Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and 
siding. 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

3 Project Name Code Enforcement 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls; LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Preserve Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 

Needs Addressed Maintain Existing Affordable Housing 

Funding Target CDBG: $10,000 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to pay for code enforcement services provided to LMI 
areas. 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 75 households in Cedar Falls. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities City staff inspection services for persons in LMI Areas in the community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

53

Item 4.



  8 

 

4 Project Name Agency and Organization Support 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls; LMI Limited Clientele 

Goals Supported Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Needs Addressed Support for Services for Homeless, Near-Homeless, Special Needs; Provide 
Family and Children’s Services 

Funding Target CDBG: $37,960 $70,092 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to pay for financial education, nutrition, homelessness 
and sheltering, healthcare, family and children’s, and substance abuse 
services for Cedar Falls residents who are seeking assistance that prevent 
homelessness. 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 4,040 6,000 persons in the Cedar 
Falls area. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Offer eligible services, through contracting agencies and organizations, 
which could prevent homelessness in the community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Clientele 

5 Project Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Needs Addressed Promote Infrastructure Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $251,820 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to improve infrastructure, specifically sanitary sewer 
service, to LMI areas.  Street, water, stormwater management, and drainage 
improvements may also be funded. 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 375 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas 

Planned Activities Line sanitary sewer lines to residential units located in LMI areas in the 
community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

6 Project Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide); LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Needs Addressed Support Economic Development, Business Opportunities, and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment; Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description Provide access to transit services for LMI households in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 0 people in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Offer transit passes to LMI households or extend transit service routes 
and/or hours of service to LMI areas 

54

Item 4.



  9 

 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

7 Project Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Needs Addressed Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $106,909 (Estimated) 

Description Infill sidewalk and trail gaps in LMI areas in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 80 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas 

Planned Activities This will be accomplished by infilling pedestrian improvements that will 
connect LMI households to service agencies, organizations, educational, 
recreational facilities, and employment opportunities and centers.  Projects 
will be completed in residential neighborhoods using sidewalk, curb 
cuts/ADA ramps, and trails in LMI areas.   

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

8 Project Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Needs Addressed Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $50,000 (Estimated) 

Description Install park and recreational improvements, trees, and aesthetic amenities 
located in parks or other public property in LMI areas of the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 500 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas 

Planned Activities Install or replace playground equipment, trees, and recreational amenities in 
local city parks or other public properties serving LMI areas and households 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

9 Project Name Demolition and Clearance 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Demolition and Clearance 

Needs Addressed Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description The funds will be used to prevent slum and blight throughout the Cedar Falls 
City limits by demolishing and clearing dilapidated buildings and structures 
in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Demolition of approximately 0 dilapidated units in the City 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 
 

55

Item 4.



  10 

 

Planned Activities Demolish approximately 0 dilapidated units within the City 
 

CDBG National Objectives Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas; 
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10 Project Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported All of the AAP goals are supported by this function or activity 

Needs Addressed Provide Effective Planning and Administration 

Funding Target CDBG: $50,615 $79,145 (Estimated) 

Description General management, oversight and coordination of the CDBG Program, 
policy planning, environmental reviews, report preparation, and 
administration will be financed using CDBG funds 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Administrative and planning activities, associated with the CDBG program 

CDBG National Objectives Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas; 
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 4 – Project Summary 

56

Item 4.



  11 

 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.220(f) 
 
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority 
concentration) where assistance will be directed  
 
Our programs will serve Low-Moderate Income (LMI) households, LMI Limited Clientele agencies or organizations, 
or serve LMI areas, as defined by the Census Bureau and HUD.  CDBG funding is used throughout the City of Cedar 
Falls as well as for purchasing services from a limited number of agencies that may not be located in Cedar Falls, 
but which will provide services to Cedar Falls residents. 
 
Geographic Distribution 
 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 

City of Cedar Falls and/or its Residents 100% 

Table 5 – Geographic Distribution  
 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  
 
As noted above, the City will only assist individual LMI households under activities 1, 2, and 6, and it plans to fund 
agencies serving LMI households or offering LMI Limited Clientele, as is allowed annually under activity 4.  Also, it 
plans to use funds to benefit LMI areas within the community for activities 3, 5, 7, 8, and 9 shown above.  To that 
end, there are currently 7 census tracts with 8 block groups that have an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater 
(ACS 2011-2015). Specifically, Census tract 2200 block group 2 and 3; tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block 
group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 2603 block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.  
These areas may receive funding assistance for improving infrastructure, transportation connectivity, and park and 
recreational amenities and services. 
 
Discussion 
 
The qualifying block groups are scattered throughout the community, and the City does intend to use CDBG 
funding to support LMI-specific areas. Most of the agency or family support programs funded through CDBG and 
these programs are based on an individual household LMI determination or on a Limited Clientele basis.  
Rehabilitation programs, and those benefitting a specific household, will require participants to meet LMI income 
guidelines. 
 
The City was unable to amend the table in this section.  With that said, for the life of this Annual Action Plan, the 
City has projected that it will expend 19 percent of its budget on specific low-and-moderate income households 
under its homeowner and rental rehabilitation programs citywide, while planning to expend 67 percent of its 
overall budget for LMI area benefit projects.  Public service support citywide is projected to be six percent and 
planning and administration eight percent.  

57

Item 4.



  12 

 

AP-55 Affordable Housing Goals – 91.220(g) 
 
Goals: The following goals were established in this Action Plan for CDBG Use in the City. 
 

1 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility and structural 
hazard removal grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to preserve 
owner-occupied single-family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

2 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, and structural hazard removal 
grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to preserve renter-occupied 
housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

3 Goal Name Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes (i.e. 
fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low-and-moderate 
income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

4 Goal Name Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing homeless services, including sheltering, in the 
community, as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional, substance abuse, family 
services, and healthcare. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Income Clientele 

5 Goal Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, and other projects in specific neighborhoods qualifying as 
low-and-moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

6 Goal Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income-eligible households that are 
dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

58

Item 4.



  13 

 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector Policy 
Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

7 Goal Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, curb-cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to residents 
in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector Policy 
Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

8 Goal Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement related 
to parks, recreation, trees, and active living parks in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private 
Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

9 Goal Name Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated structures, 
thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local basis.  Individual 
demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10 Goal Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit low-
and-moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector Policy 
Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 6 – Goal Description 

  

59

Item 4.



  14 

 

AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community, and therefore, this Action Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public housing, 
increasing engagement of public housing residents in the process, or addressing a “troubled” public housing 
agency. 
 
AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Need Activities – 91.220(i) 
 
To address homeless and special needs populations, the City of Cedar Falls uses the maximum allowable dollars for 
distribution to several agencies, as has been noted.  The allocation process includes a formal Request for Proposals 
(RFP) process, whereby prospective agencies outline the services that they can offer to the City.  The City conducts 
onsite monitoring visits to each agency receiving funds.  These monitoring visits help ensure that quality services 
are being delivered while providing an opportunity for staff to become more aware of the service details, needs, 
and impacts.  Finally, the awarded agencies from the prior year are given an opportunity to attend a City Housing 
Commission Meeting to discuss their program; offer insight regarding needs, particularly those that are unmet; 
and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on its residents. 
 
The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City funds agencies where 
expenses relate to operating homeless shelters (Salvation Army in prior years).  Second, the City also funds 
agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a household’s needs, by 
hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family relationships, credit counseling 
and Family and Children’s Council. Third, the City offered CDBG funding for at-home healthcare, outpatient mental 
health services, and substance abuse counseling.  Finally, the City, using its CDBG funds, hopes to address hunger 
and nutritional needs by funding the regional food bank.  As is generally expected, resident needs outpace the 
amount of funding the City is able to offer the agencies through the CDBG program alone. 
 
AP-70: HOPWA Goals – 91.220(l)(3) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 
 
AP-75 Barriers to Affordable Housing – 91.220(j) 
 
Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between 
demand on the units by full-time residents, and that which comes with being a university community and its 
student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 
 
Two public policy issues were raised during the planning process, parking paving requirements for rental 
properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively address growth that includes mixing of 
uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in fast-growing areas of the community (i.e. Main 
Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has 
reviewed the requirement three separate times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, 
particularly a concern about hard-surfacing gravel driveways of existing single-unit rental homes, whereas, the 
drive of an existing single-unit owner-occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist 
qualifying properties comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City announced it was planning to update 
its existing zoning ordinance, with the idea that it may choose to include both form-based and conventional zoning 
provisions for specific parts of the community.  This may promote more dense development, which could help to 
preserve affordability, that is design-based, as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional zoning 
requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements (i.e. height, setbacks, yard area).   
 
With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low-income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being relatively high.  Second, 

60

Item 4.



  15 

 

housing demand in the community has driven-up construction costs for both single-family and multiple-family 
developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the 
University of Northern Iowa student population, has increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units 
unaffordable for low-and-moderate income households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land 
upward in the community, not to mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development 
(that which occurs on previously undeveloped land), most notably infrastructure costs.   Finally, declining or static 
local and federal resources, which could be allocated toward affordable housing projects, coupled with ever-
increasing program requirements, have also been a key impediment to addressing low-and-moderate income 
housing needs. 

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to ameliorate negative effects of 
public policy during this process.  Also, the City may wish to explore public-private-nonprofit partnerships in the 
development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional 
resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said 
housing may be marketed at workforce housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City 
does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or 
not people can afford to live in the community.  Further, the City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use 
including areas that may be developed at higher densities, which may help address the availability of affordable 
housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas that may be suitable for higher density development: 
along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately east of the University of Northern Iowa; and 
intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 7th Street. The codes, specifically zoning, 
building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties 
and people uniformly and fairly.  Further, fees are either “flat” or based upon the value of the improvements made 
to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as 
determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are 
set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property 
use), the percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, 
residentially-classified property is rolled-back by the state such that local governments may only tax at a rate of 
approximately 55 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, in 2015, the State adopted a 
rollback for multi-residential properties that was to be implemented over several years.  The tax rate began at 
86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally reduce in percentage until it 
is the same rollback as that of residentially-classified properties (i.e. in the 50-60 percent range).  This, then, 
reduces property tax income for the City. 

With that said, the City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may 
not allow for persons with limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The 
CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair 
programs, the City offers assistance to residents for the services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, 
thus not requiring persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing-related expenses and 
the other services they may need.  It also allows for infrastructure investments, avoiding increases in other rates, 
taxes, or assessments for property owners because CDBG funds are used. 

 

61

Item 4.



  16 

 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.220(k) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is able to address obstacles to meeting the underserved needs through networking with 
public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to prevent homelessness and provide affordable housing to 
Cedar Falls residents. Also, the City is working to maintain the affordable housing stock in the area and provide 
decent and safe conditions to its residents. 
 
Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will continue to work with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure we 
are reaching the goal of assisting residents with the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code 
enforcement and other departments to identify potential at-risk residents. Declining resources have been a key 
impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to 
provide more services to low-and-moderate income residents. 
 
Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 
 
Cedar Falls continues to work to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Housing Rehabilitation and Repair 
Programs assist qualified homeowners with substantial home rehabilitation or repairs to existing units. Funding 
has also been provided to provide financial education classes and planning, as well as family support services. 
Habitat for Humanity encourages affordable housing through new construction and housing rehabilitation 
programs that they manage within the community. In addition, the City offers reduced refuse, sewer and storm 
water fees to households below the 50% income guidelines.  This is accomplished by the City using its general 
funds to assist, which in-turn lowers the cost of housing. 
 
Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead- based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls. 
The City will continue to work with local, county, regional and other government agencies to achieve lead safe 
homes. The city provides "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home" brochure to educate CDBG applicants 
about the dangers of lead in the home. 
 
Actions planned to develop institutional structure  
 
The City, including Community Development Department and its Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
(which may also be known as the Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar Falls Housing Authority), and their 
contractor, the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments will work to strengthen the institutional structure 
used to manage the CDBG Entitlement Program.  Together, they will also work to close the housing delivery gap 
between public and non-public organizations in the community.  Said organizations will also address the gap that 
exists with regard to private housing industry participation in developing the City’s institutional structure.  
Specifically, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program will work with private industry to increase and 
maintain affordable housing stock for low-to-moderate income households.  Through experience, participation in 
local, regional (PHA Director Association), state (Iowa NAHRO, Iowa Association of Housing Officials), and national 
(NAHRO, American Planning Association) housing and planning organizations, educational opportunities, and peer-
to-peer exchanges with other CDBG Entitlement recipients, staff-members will become more proficient in 
executing, managing, assessing, and anticipating change within the program.  Further, the same entities, together 
with the City of Waterloo Community Development Department, will continue to do likewise with the institutional 
structure associated with administering the HOME Program. 
 
Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

62

Item 4.



  17 

 

 
Cedar Falls has incorporated the Continuum of Care approach, providing an integrated system of services and 
programs to meet the various needs of individuals as they progress toward financial self-sufficiency. Cedar Falls 
has worked with local service providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the 
development of affordable housing; prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education 
and literacy; and provide emergency food and shelter. 
 
Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies 
 
Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. Staff attends Community Resource Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies 
and non-profit organizations. The meetings offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the 
services each organization and/or agency is providing. By educating participating organizations on services 
available in the community, we are better positioned to meet the needs of the low-moderate-income individuals 
and households in the city. 
 
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - CDBG 91.220(l)(1) 

 
CDBG-funded projects that are expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Summary 
Table (AP-35) above. The following identifies any program income that may available for use in said projects.  

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next program 

year and that has not yet been reprogrammed $0 
2. The amount of proceeds from Section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to address the 

priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. $0 
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements $0 
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not been 

included in a prior statement or plan $0 
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities $0 
Total Program Income: $0 

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 
  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit persons 

of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two or three 
years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70 percent of CDBG 
funds is used to benefit persons of low-and-moderate income. Specify the years covered 
that include this Annual Action Plan. 70.00% 

 
  

63

Item 4.



  18 

 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-HOME 91.220(l)(2) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a direct HOME recipient.  It is part of a consortium with the City of Waterloo, Iowa. 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-ESG 91.220(l)(4) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not an ESG recipient. 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-HOPWA 91.220(l)(3) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 

AP-90: HTF Specific Review 91.220(l)(5) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not administer HTF funds. 

64

Item 4.



  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor, Robert M. Green, and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: May 28, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Right-of-Way Vacation Request - Prairie Parkway  
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Street Right-of-Way Vacation for a portion of Prairie Parkway  
(Case #VAC19-003) 
 

PETITIONER: Western Home Communities, Inc. 
 

LOCATION: 
 

21,995 sq. ft. of public right-of-way located at the southwest corner of Prairie 
Parkway and Prairie View Road roundabout.  
 

 

PROPOSAL 
Western Home Communities has requested a vacation of 21,995 sq. ft. of public right-of-way 
located near the southwest corner of Prairie Parkway and Prairie View Road. Vacation of the 
right-of-way will allow the petitioner to install an entranceway sign in a location that is more 
visible to travelers along Prairie Parkway and to provide additional space for future 
development. If vacated and conveyed to Western Homes, the additional land will be combined 
with the petitioner’s holdings to the west (Tract “E” of Western Home Communities Seventh 
Addition). Petitioner understands that the City will retain easements for existing drainage and 
utilities that are located within the eastern 30 feet and northern 10 feet of the portion of right-of-
way proposed for vacation.  
 
BACKGROUND 
A vacation plat is attached to this report, which indicates the area requested for vacation. This 
portion of Prairie Parkway was conveyed to the City by the Oster Family Limited Partnership via 
an acquisition plat, which was recorded on 7th April, 2014. A roundabout was constructed in this 
area at the intersection of Prairie Parkway and Prairie View Road, which due to the roadway 
design resulted in excess right-of-way on the western edge of Prairie Parkway south of the 
intersection. There are, however, a number of utilities and the need for conveyance of 
stormwater in the eastern 30 feet of the area requested to be vacated, which should be retained 
as a perpetual easement. In addition, the northern 10 feet of proposed area to be vacated 
should be retained as a perpetual easement for extension of utilities and is a continuation of the 
10-foot easement located along Prairie View Road on the property to the west.   

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

     VISITORS & TOURISM/  

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES INSPECTION SERVICES RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS CULTURAL PROGRAMS 

220 CLAY STREET 220 CLAY STREET  110 E. 13TH
 STREET  6510 HUDSON ROAD 

PH: 319-273-8606 PH: 319-268-5161 PH: 319-273-8636 PH: 319-268-4266 

FAX: 319-273-8610 FAX: 319-268-5197 FAX: 319-273-8656 FAX: 319-277-9707 

 

65

Item 5.



ANALYSIS 
 
In considering a right-of-way vacation, City staff analyzes several factors: 
  

1. Is the right-of-way needed for public use?  
As shown in the images below, there is a public sidewalk located along Prairie Parkway 
that provides for pedestrian and bicycle movement along the corridor. This should be 
retained at right-of-way, however, the remainder of the land to the west is not needed for 
traffic, pedestrian, or bicycle movement.  
 

2. Is the right-of-way needed for access to private property? 
Vacating this portion of the right-of-way will not block any future anticipated driveway 
access to Prairie Parkway, since driveway access points were established at the time the 
roadway was built and no additional driveways will be allowed in this area. The property 
that abuts the right-of-way to the west will be provided access to the public street network 
via Prairie View Drive.  
   

3. Are there any utilities within the right-of-way that will need to be retained?  
The City and CFU do have utilities located along the roadway. Therefore, if the vacation 
is approved and land conveyed to Western Home Communities, an easement should be 
established to protect these utilities and to provide for stormwater drainage. The 
proposed 30 foot landscaping, drainage, and utility easement is shown on the attached 
vacation plat. The current easement illustrated with cross-hatch pattern located west of 
the area to be vacated can then be considered for vacation in the future by separate 
action, as there are no utilities located in this area. As noted above, a 10-foot utility 
easement will also need to be established along Prairie View Road at the north end of the 
area to be vacated, as shown on the attached vacation plat.   

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 

 
The City’s Technical Review Committee does not have any concerns or objections with the 
proposed right-of-way vacation, provided perpetual easements as described above and shown 
on the attached vacation plat are established to protect the public utilities and provide for 
stormwater drainage along the street corridor.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed right-of-way 
vacation, subject to the following conditions: 

1. A 30 feet wide landscape, drainage and utility easement is established in the vacated 
portion as shown on the attached vacation plat.  

2. A 10-foot utility easement is established in the northern portion of the vacated area along 
Prairie View Road.  

3. All existing easements of record are retained.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
4/22/2020 

Chair Holst and Ms. Lynch stated that they each had a conflict of interest and would 
be abstaining from discussion of the ROW vacation request. Vice-Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He 
explained that the location is at the southwest corner of the intersection of Prairie 
View Road and Prairie Parkway and the property to the west is owned by Western 

66

Item 5.



Home Communities. Western Homes has requested the partial street ROW vacation 
with the intention of then purchasing the vacated property along the road, which 
would be combined with their existing property to the west. Acquisition of the ROW 
would allow them to place an entranceway sign for the development in a location 
more visible to Prairie Parkway.  Atodaria noted that due to the design of the 
roadway with the curve and the roundabout there is excess ROW not needed by the 
City, except that an 30-foot wide easement would be established along the eastern 
edge of the vacated area to protect utilities that are located in this area. The 
vacation area is 21,995 sq. ft. In addition, a 10 ft. utility easement will need to be 
established along Prairie View Road. At this time, the item is being presented for 
discussion and comments and the Commission can approve at this time or move to 
the next meeting. Staff recommends approval with the condition that easements be 
established as noted in the staff report. 
 
Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Adkins seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved with 6 ayes (Adkins, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Prideaux 
and Saul), 2 abstentions (Lynch and Holst) and 0 nays. 

 
 

 
 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Right of Way Vacation Plat 
  Ordinance Vacating ROW  
   

 

67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



69

Item 5.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:  Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613 (319)273-8600 

After Recording, Return to: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING A PORTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ABUTTING PRAIRIE 
PARKWAY SOUTH OF PRAIRIE VIEW ROAD  

IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (VAC19-003) 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission has considered a request to 
vacate 21,995 square feet of public right-of-way located along the western edge of 
Prairie Parkway south of Prairie View Road; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that due to the curved alignment of 

the roadway, there is an excess amount of land in the aforementioned location that is 
not currently used for right-of-way purposes nor will it be used in the future for such 
purpose; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission recommends that it is in the best interest of the City 

to vacate the subject portion of right-of-way, retaining perpetual easements for 
landscaping, drainage, and utilities, with the intent to make said area of land available 
for purchase according to Section 306.23, Iowa Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 
 
 SECTION 1. A portion of the public right-of-way located along the western edge 
of Prairie Parkway south of Prairie View Road, hereinafter described, is hereby vacated: 
 

That part of the Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4) of Section Thirty (30), 
Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range Thirteen West (R13W) of the 
Fifth Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described 
as follows: 
 

70

Item 5.



Beginning at the Northeast corner of Tract "E", Western Home 
Communities Seventh Addition; thence N87°16'55"E Thirty-six and Fifty-
five Hundredths (36.55) feet along the Easterly extension of the North line 
of said Tract "E"; thence S23°04'27"E Ten and Seventy-nine Hundredths 
(10.79) feet; thence Southerly One Hundred Fifty-three and Eighty-two 
Hundredths (153.82) feet along the arc of a curve concave Westerly 
having a radius of Two Hundred Thirty-three and Ninety-eight Hundredths 
(233.98) feet and a chord of One Hundred Fifty-one and Seven 
Hundredths (151.07) feet which bear S02°21'10"E; thence S16°28'41"W 
Two Hundred Fifty and Seventy Hundredths (250.70) feet; thence 
Southerly Thirty-one and Thirty-seven Hundredths (31.37) feet along the 
arc of a curve concave Easterly having a radius of Eight Hundred Sixty-six 
(866.00) feet and a chord of Thirty-one and Thirty-seven Hundredths 
(31.37) feet which bears S15°26'25"W to the East line of aforesaid Tract 
"E"; thence S89°20'29"W Twelve and Fifty Hundredths (12.50) feet along 
said East line; thence Northerly Four Hundred Thirty-two and Sixty-three 
Hundredths (432.63) feet still along said East line and along the arc of a 
curve concave Easterly having a radius of Three Thousand Fifty-three 
(3053.00) feet and a chord of Four Hundred Thirty-two and Twenty-seven 
Hundredths (432.27) feet which bears N05°58'44"E to the point of 
beginning containing 21,995 square feet, but retaining a perpetual 
landscape, drainage and utility easement, described as over, under and 
across the East Thirty (30.00) feet of above described parcel 
containing12,721 square feet; and also retaining a separate perpetual 
utility easement, described as over, under and across the North Ten 
(10.00) feet of above described parcel containing 395 square feet; and 
further subject to existing easements of record.   

 
SECTION 2. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions 

of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

INTRODUCED: _____________________________ 
 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________ 
 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________ 
 
PASSED  3RD CONSIDERATION: _________________ 
 
ADOPTED: ___________________________________ 
 

 
     _________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
Attest: _________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen MMC, City Clerk 
  

71

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2966 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26), ZONING,  

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar Falls 

and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area 

described as follows shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and placed in the R-

1 Residence Zoning District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial Zoning District, as follows: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to M-1, P: 

 

The Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof, and also the North one-half 

of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of 

Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. Area containing 211+/- acres. 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to R-1: 

 

The North 550 feet of the West 1083 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. Area 

containing 12.85+/- acres; 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best interests 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 
72

Item 6.



 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to M-1, P: 

 

The Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof, and also the North one-half 

of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of 

Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. Area containing 211+/- acres. 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to R-1: 

 

The North 550 feet of the West 1083 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. Area 

containing 12.85+/- acres 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-1 

Residence District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1 Residence 

District and M-1, P Planned Light Industrial District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be 

the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and include 

the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

INTRODUCED:    May 4, 2020    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  May 4, 2020    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  May 18, 2020    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

73

Item 6.



74

Item 7.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126

M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

TO: City Council 

DATE: May 28, 2020 

SUBJECT: Departmental Monthly Reports Submission – April 2020 

REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa §2-187(b)7 

1. As required by reference (a), I have reviewed the activities of the City’s departments for the

month of April and am providing them as enclosure (1).

2. For April, I highlight the exemplary effort carried out by the City’s Information Systems

Division under Julie Sorensen (Pages 4-9 in the attached report). While each of the

departments faced new challenges and pressures during the current public health emergency,

the Info Systems Division in particular was faced with a wide range of new activities and

projects to support a new remote work environment (both training and tech support), as well

as researching online meeting management technologies and tackling other COVID-related

technical challenges – all on top of their regular support workload. As a team, they carried

out each of these tasks with skill and patience, and without missing a beat. Their effort is

commendable, and I thank them on behalf of the City.

3. Please contact the City Administrator, Ron Gaines, or me with any questions about this

report.

# 

Encl: (1) City of Cedar Falls Departmental Monthly Reports, April 2020 

75

Item 8.



76

Item 8.



77

Item 8.



78

Item 8.



79

Item 8.



80

Item 8.



81

Item 8.



82

Item 8.



83

Item 8.



84

Item 8.



85

Item 8.



86

Item 8.



87

Item 8.



88

Item 8.



89

Item 8.



90

Item 8.



91

Item 8.



92

Item 8.



93

Item 8.



94

Item 8.



95

Item 8.



96

Item 8.



97

Item 8.



98

Item 8.



99

Item 8.



100

Item 8.



101

Item 8.



102

Item 8.



103

Item 8.



104

Item 8.



105

Item 8.



106

Item 8.



107

Item 8.



108

Item 8.



109

Item 8.



110

Item 8.



111

Item 8.



112

Item 8.



113

Item 8.



114

Item 8.



115

Item 8.



116

Item 8.



117

Item 8.



118

Item 8.



119

Item 8.



120

Item 8.



121

Item 8.



122

Item 8.



123

Item 8.



124

Item 8.



125

Item 8.



126

Item 8.



127

Item 8.



128

Item 8.



129

Item 8.



130

Item 8.



131

Item 8.



132

Item 8.



133

Item 8.



134

Item 8.



135

Item 8.



136

Item 8.



137

Item 8.



138

Item 8.



139

Item 8.



140

Item 8.



141

Item 8.



142

Item 8.



143

Item 8.



144

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: June 1, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Request for Temporary Movable Sign Permit 
  The Black Hawk Hotel / Bar Winslow – 115 Main Street 
 
This department received a request from The Black Hawk Hotel to place a sidewalk sign 
in front of the establishment at 115 Main Street. Copies of the sign permit application 
and site plan are attached. Deanna Nelson, the Director of Hospitality submitted all of 
the information required by the sidewalk sign ordinance. The sign is intended to be set 
out when the bar is open and will not obstruct traffic vision. 
 
We recommend your approval of the application submitted by The Black Hawk Hotel to 
place a sidewalk sign in front of the business at 115 Main Street subject to the following 
stipulations: 

 Eagle View Hospitality is the owner of the establishment (permit is non-
transferrable). 

 Sign placement will allow five feet of unobstructed walking space in the sidewalk. 

 Proposed sign dimensions will not exceed the required limits of 2.5 foot width 
and 5 foot height. 

 Owner will place sign outside only during hours of operation and remove by 
closing time. 

 Such permit will expire one (1) year after approval and may be renewed annually 
provided a renewal application and fee is submitted. 

 Complies with all other requirements as stated in Section 19-74(e) of the Cedar 
Falls municipal code. 

 
The owner’s proposal complies with all of the above requirements. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact this 
office. 
 
 
xc: Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 
 
Attachment: Application Materials 

145

Item 9.



146

Item 9.



147

Item 9.



148

Item 9.



149

Item 9.



150

Item 9.



151

Item 10.



152

Item 10.



153

Item 10.



154

Item 10.



155

Item 10.



156

Item 10.



157

Item 10.



158

Item 10.



159

Item 10.



160

Item 10.



161

Item 10.



162

Item 10.



163

Item 10.



164

Item 10.



165

Item 10.



166

Item 10.



167

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Assistant Police Chief 

Date:  May 28, 2020 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

b) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

c) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

e) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 

168

Item 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: May 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  2020 Bond Sales 

 
On June 15th, the City is scheduled to sell General Obligation Capital Loan Notes for 
various purposes and projects (attached is the list that was provided in the council 
packet for the 5/18 council meeting).  The attached resolution directs the notice of the 
sale and allows for electronic bidding procedure for the sale.   
 
Also attached is the Preliminary Official Statement (POS) that was emailed out ahead of 
time to Council members for review.  This POS includes various financial information 
about the City and is subject to Federal Securities Law regulation. Staff has worked with 
Public Financial Management, our financial advisors and Ahlers Cooney Law Firm, our 
bond counsel to prepare this document.  
 

 
If you have any questions regarding the bond sale, please feel free to contact me.  

169

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: May 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  2020 Bond Sales 

 
On June 15th, the City is scheduled to sell General Obligation Capital Loan Notes for 
various purposes and projects at outlined on the City’s Capital Improvements Program 
(CIP).  Prior to that sale, the City must hold a public hearing authorizing the maximum 
amount of the bond sale.   You will note that the resolutions for the hearings and sales 
are separated into various pieces on the Council agenda.  This is due to the 
requirement of disclosing amounts for general corporate purpose and essential 
corporate purpose.    The amounts are as follows: 
 

 Essential Corporate Purpose in an amount not to exceed $2,800,000. These 
proceeds are anticipated to finance various City capital projects as follows: 

 Network Cameras 
 Olive Street Box Culvert 
 Bluebell Sidewalk Infill 
 Campus Street Sidewalk 
 Sidewalk Reconstruction 
 Rownd Street Sidewalk 
 W. 20th Sidewalk Infill 
 Slope Repair 
 Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction 
 Center Street Improvements 
 Greenhill Rd & South Main Intersection 
 West 1st St.  
 Bunker Gear 
 Fire Truck Replacement 

 
 General Corporate Purpose in an amount not to exceed $700,000.  These 

proceeds are anticipated to finance various City capital projects as follows: 
 South Main Parking Lot 
 Infrastructure Oversizing 
 Union Road Trail Phase II 
 Annual Street Repair Program - Amenities 

  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 

170

Item 12.



 

 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

$3,430,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes 

 

  Resolution approving electronic bidding procedures and Official Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

171

Item 12.



 

- 1 - 

 

June 1, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers*, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________ 

_____.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the 

following named Council Members: 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  

*Due to the State Public Health Emergency Declaration regarding COVID-

19, this meeting was conducted electronically pursuant to Iowa Code 21.8 

and the Emergency Proclamation of Governor Kim Reynolds. Participation 

was available via the internet or telephonically, as follows: 

 

Internet access:  ______________ 

Meeting ID: _____________ 

Telephone access:  ______________  

172

Item 12.



 

- 2 - 

Council Member ____________________ introduced the following resolution entitled 

"RESOLUTION APPROVING ELECTRONIC BIDDING PROCEDURES AND OFFICIAL 

STATEMENT", and moved that the resolution be adopted.  Council Member 

____________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the vote was, 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as follows: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ELECTRONIC BIDDING 

PROCEDURES AND OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with its Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 

the City has caused an Official Statement to be prepared outlining the details of the proposed sale 

of the Notes; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has received information from its Municipal Advisor evaluating 

and recommending the procedure hereinafter described for electronic, facsimile and internet 

bidding to maintain the integrity and security of the competitive bidding process and to facilitate 

the delivery of bids by interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Council deems it in the best interests of the City and the residents 

thereof to receive bids to purchase such Notes by means of both sealed and electronic internet 

communication. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That the preliminary Official Statement in the form presented to this meeting 

be and the same hereby is approved as to form and deemed final for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of 

the Securities and Exchange Commission, subject to such revisions, corrections or modifications 

as the Mayor and Clerk, upon the advice of bond counsel and the City's Municipal Advisor, shall 

determine to be appropriate, and is authorized to be distributed in connection with the offering of 

the Notes for sale. 

Section 2. That the receipt of electronic bids by facsimile machine and through the 

PARITY® Competitive Bidding System described in the Official Statement are hereby found 

and determined to provide reasonable security and to maintain the integrity of the competitive 

bidding process, and to facilitate the delivery of bids by interested parties in connection with the 

offering at public sale. 

173

Item 12.



 

- 3 - 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 1st day of June, 2020. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

174

Item 12.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 
01723216-1\10283-178 

175

Item 12.



PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JUNE 1, 2020 

New Issue Rating:  Application Made to Moody’s Investors Service 
 

Assuming compliance with certain covenants, in the opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Bond Counsel, under present law and assuming continued 

compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), interest on the Notes is excludable from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes.  Interest on the Notes is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.  

The Notes will be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations”.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein for a more detailed discussion. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

$3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

BIDS RECEIVED: Monday, June 15, 2020, 10:00 A.M., Central Time 

AWARD: Monday, June 15, 2020, 7:00 P.M., Central Time 

Dated:  Date of Delivery (July 21, 2020) Principal Due: June 1, as shown inside front cover 

The $3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 (the “Notes”) of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) are 

being issued pursuant to Division III of Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa and a resolution to be adopted by the City Council of the 

City.  The Notes are being issued to provide funds to pay costs of City capital projects, including opening, widening, extending, 

grading and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways, avenues, alleys and public grounds and market places, and the removal 

and replacement of dead or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street improvements, bridges, 

grade crossing separations and approaches; the acquisition, installation and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, 

sanitary sewers, water service lines, street lighting and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate needed for any of 

the foregoing purposes; equipping the police, fire, and streets departments; acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, 

improvement and equipping of recreational trails, expanded public infrastructure and related amenities and site improvements; 

acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement and equipping of City facilities, including the South Main 

parking lot. 

The Purchaser of the Notes agrees to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with the City pursuant to the authority 

contained in Section 384.24A and 384.25 of the Code of Iowa.  The Notes are issued in evidence of the City’s obligations under the 

Loan Agreement.  The Notes are general obligations of the City, for which the City will pledge to levy ad valorem taxes against all 

taxable property within the City without limitation as to rate or amount. 

The Notes will be issued as fully registered Notes without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., 

as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”).  DTC will act as securities depository for the Notes.  Individual 

purchases may be made in book-entry-form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.  Purchasers will 

not receive certificates representing their interest in the Notes purchased. Principal of the Notes, payable annually on each June 1, 

beginning June 1, 2021 and interest on the Notes, payable initially on December 1, 2020 and thereafter on each June 1 and 

December 1, will be paid to DTC by the City’s Controller/City Treasurer (the “Registrar”).  DTC will in turn remit such principal 

and interest to its participants for subsequent disbursements to the beneficial owners of the Notes as described herein.  Interest and 

principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a note as shown on the records of ownership maintained by the Registrar on the 15th 

day of the month preceding such interest payment date (the “Record Date”).  However, upon request of the successful bidder, the 

book-entry issuance provision described above for the Notes may be waived in favor of certificates that will be prepared and delivered 

at closing. 

THE NOTES WILL MATURE AS LISTED ON THE INSIDE FRONT COVER 

MINIMUM BID: $3,405,990 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT: Required of Purchaser Only 

TAX MATTERS: Federal:  Tax-Exempt 

State: Taxable 

See “TAX MATTERS” section or more information. 
 

The Notes are offered, subject to prior sale, withdrawal or modification, when, as, and if issued subject to the unqualified approving 

legal opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Bond Counsel, Des Moines Iowa, to be furnished upon delivery of the Notes.  It is expected 

the Notes in the definitive form will be available on or about July 21, 2020 via Fast Automated Securities Transfer delivery with the 

Registrar holding the Notes on behalf of DTC.  The Preliminary Official Statement in the form presented is deemed final for purposes 

of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, subject to revisions, corrections or modifications as determined to be 

appropriate, and is authorized to be distributed in connection with the offering of the Notes for sale. 

 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

T
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

 O
ff

ic
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
ed

 h
er

ei
n
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
, 

am
en

d
m

en
t 

o
r 

o
th

er
 c

h
an

g
e 

w
it

h
o
u
t 

n
o

ti
ce

. 
 T

h
e 

N
o

te
s 

m
ay

 n
o

t 
b

e 
so

ld
 n

o
r 

m
ay

 o
ff

er
s 

to
 b

u
y
 b

e 
ac

ce
p

te
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
th

e 
P

re
li

m
in

ar
y
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 i
n
 f

in
al

 f
o
rm

. 
 U

n
d
er

 n
o
 c

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

s 
sh

al
l 

th
is

 P
re

li
m

in
ar

y
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

co
n
st

it
u

te
 a

n
 o

ff
er

 t
o
 s

el
l 

o
r 

th
e 

so
li

ci
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
an

 o
ff

er
 t

o
 b

u
y
, 

n
o
r 

sh
al

l 
th

er
e 

b
e 

an
y

 
sa

le
 o

f 
th

e 
N

o
te

s 
in

 a
n

y
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o
n
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ch

 o
ff

er
, 
so

li
ci

ta
ti

o
n
 o

r 
sa

le
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e 

u
n

la
w

fu
l 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n
 o

r 
q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 u

n
d
er

 t
h

e 
ap

p
li

ca
b

le
 s

ec
u
ri

ti
es

 l
aw

s 
o

f 
an

y
 s

u
ch

 j
u

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n
. 

176

Item 12.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

$3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

 

MATURITY: The Notes will mature June 1 in the years and amounts as follows: 

 

Year Amount* 
  

2021 $130,000 

2022 335,000 

2023 340,000 

2024 350,000 

2025 355,000 

2026 365,000 

2027 375,000 

2028 385,000 

2029 390,000 

2030 405,000 

 

*PRINCIPAL 

ADJUSTMENT:    Preliminary; subject to change.  The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the 

aggregate principal amount of the Notes and to increase or reduce each scheduled 

maturity thereof after the determination of the successful bidder. The City may increase 

or decrease each maturity in increments of $5,000 but the total amount to be issued, will 

not exceed $3,500,000.  Interest rates specified by the successful bidder for each maturity 

will not change. Final adjustments shall be in the sole discretion of the City. 

The dollar amount of the purchase price proposed by the successful bidder will be 

changed if the aggregate principal amount of the Notes is adjusted as described above. 

Any change in the principal amount of any maturity of the Notes will be made while 

maintaining, as closely as possible, the successful bidder's net compensation, calculated 

as a percentage of note principal.  The successful bidder may not withdraw or modify its 

bid as a result of any post-bid adjustment.  Any adjustment shall be conclusive and shall 

be binding upon the successful bidder. 
 

INTEREST: Interest on the Notes will be payable on December 1, 2020 and semiannually thereafter. 
 

REDEMPTION: The Notes due after June 1, 2028 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or 

from time to time in part, in any order of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said 

date or on any date thereafter upon terms of par plus accrued interest to date of call. 

Written notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed 

for redemption to the registered owners of the Notes to be redeemed at the address shown 

on the registration books. 

  

177

Item 12.



COMPLIANCE WITH S.E.C. RULE 15c2-12 

 

Municipal obligations (issued in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000) are subject to General Rules and 

Regulations, Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 15c2-12 Municipal Securities Disclosure. 

 

Preliminary Official Statement: This Preliminary Official Statement was prepared for the City for dissemination 

to prospective bidders.  Its primary purpose is to disclose information regarding the Notes to prospective bidders 

in the interest of receiving competitive bids in accordance with the TERMS OF OFFERING contained herein. 

Unless an addendum is received prior to the sale, this document shall be deemed the near final “Official Statement”. 

 

Review Period: This Preliminary Official Statement has been distributed to the City’s staff as well as to 

prospective bidders for an objective review of its disclosure.  Comments, omissions or inaccuracies must be 

submitted to PFM Financial Advisors LLC (the “Municipal Advisor”) at least two business days prior to the sale. 

Requests for additional information or corrections in the Preliminary Official Statement received on or before this 

date will not be considered a qualification of a bid received.  If there are any changes, corrections or additions to 

the Preliminary Official Statement, prospective bidders will be informed by an addendum at least one business day 

prior to the sale. 

 

Final Official Statement: Upon award of sale of the Notes, the legislative body will authorize the preparation of a 

final Official Statement that includes the offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, aggregate principal 

amount, principal amount per maturity, anticipated delivery date and other information required by law and the 

identity of the underwriter (the “Syndicate Manager”) and syndicate members.  Copies of the final Official 

Statement will be delivered to the Syndicate Manager within seven business days following the bid acceptance. 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 

 

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the City, the Municipal Advisor or the 

underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Preliminary 

Official Statement or the final Official Statement and, if given or made, such information and representations must 

not be relied upon as having been authorized by the City, the Municipal Advisor, Bond Counsel or the underwriter.  

This Preliminary Official Statement does not constitute any offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor 

shall there be any sale of the Notes by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make 

such offer, solicitation or sale.  The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources 

which are believed to be reliable, but it is not to be construed as a representation by the Municipal Advisor, Bond 

Counsel or underwriter. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, 

and neither the delivery of this Preliminary Official Statement or the final Official Statement, nor any sale made 

hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the 

City since the date hereof.  This Preliminary Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the 

securities referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 

 

This Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda thereto were prepared relying on information from the City 

and other sources, which are believed to be reliable. 

 

Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Preliminary Official Statement and is not expressing 

any opinion as to the completeness or accuracy of the information contained therein. 

 

Compensation of the Municipal Advisor, payable entirely by the City, is contingent upon the sale of the issue. 
 

  

178

Item 12.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

 

City Council 
 

Rob Green Mayor January 1, 2022 

Mark Miller Council Member – 1st Ward  January 1, 2022 

Susan deBuhr Council Member – 2nd Ward  January 1, 2024 

Daryl Kruse Council Member – 3rd Ward January 1, 2022 

Simon Harding Council Member – 4th Ward January 1, 2024 

Frank Darrah Council Member – 5th Ward January 1, 2022 

Nick Taiber Council Member – At Large January 1, 2022 

Dave Sires Council Member – At Large January 1, 2024 
 

Administration 
 

Ron Gaines – City Administrator 

Jennifer Rodenbeck – Director of Finance & Business Operations 

Lisa Roeding – Controller/City Treasurer 

Jacque Danielsen – City Clerk 

 

 

City Attorney 
 

Kevin Rogers, 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

Bond Counsel 
 

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C.,  

Des Moines, Iowa 

 

 

Municipal Advisor 
 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC,  

Des Moines, Iowa 
  

179

Item 12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TERMS OF OFFERING ................................................................................................................................................. i 

SCHEDULE OF BOND YEARS ............................................................................................................................... viii 

EXHIBIT 1 - FORMS OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATES 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Authority and Purpose ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Interest ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Optional Redemption .................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Payment of and Security for the Notes ......................................................................................................................... 2 
Book-Entry-Only System .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

Note Registration .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Future Financing ........................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Litigation ....................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Debt Payment History ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Legality. ......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Tax Matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Noteholder's Risks ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Rating .......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Municipal Advisor ....................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Continuing Disclosure ................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Financial Statements .................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Certification ................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

APPENDIX A - GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

APPENDIX B - FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 

APPENDIX C - JUNE 30, 2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

APPENDIX D - FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

 

OFFICIAL BID FORM 

180

Item 12.



i  

TERMS OF OFFERING 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

Bids for the purchase of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa’s (the “City”) $3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, 

Series 2020 (the “Notes”) will be received on Monday, June 15, 2020, before 10:00 A.M. Central Time after which time 

they will be tabulated.  The City Council will consider award of the Notes at 7:00 P.M. Central Time, on the same day.  

Questions regarding the sale of the Notes should be directed to the City’s Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors 

LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309 or by telephoning 515-243-2600.  Information can also 

be obtained from Ms. Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay 

Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, or by telephoning 319-268-5108. 

 

This section sets forth the description of certain terms of the Notes as well as the TERMS OF OFFERING with which 

all bidders and bid proposals are required to comply, as follows: 

 

DETAILS OF THE NOTES 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2020 in the principal amount of $3,430,000*, will be 

dated the date of delivery (anticipated to be July 21, 2020), in the denomination of $5,000 or multiples thereof, and will 

mature June 1 as follows: 

Year Amount* Year Amount* 
 

2021 $130,000 2026 $365,000 
2022 335,000 2027 375,000 
2023 340,000 2028 385,000 
2024 350,000 2029 390,000 
2025 355,000 2030 405,000 

 

 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

ADJUSTMENT TO NOTE MATURITY AMOUNTS 
 

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount of the Notes and to increase or reduce 

each scheduled maturity thereof after the determination of the successful bidder.  The City may increase or reduce 

each maturity in increments of $5,000 but the total amount to be issued will not exceed $3,500,000. Interest rates 

specified by the successful bidder for each maturity will not change.  Final adjustments shall be in the sole discretion of 

the City. 

 

The dollar amount of the purchase price proposed by the successful bidder will be changed if the aggregate principal 

amount of the Notes is adjusted as described above.  Any change in the principal amount of any maturity of the Notes 

will be made while maintaining, as closely as possible, the successful bidder's net compensation, calculated as a 

percentage of note principal.  The successful bidder may not withdraw or modify its bid as a result of any post-bid 

adjustment.  Any adjustment shall be conclusive and shall be binding upon the successful bidder. 
 

INTEREST 
 

Interest on the Notes will be payable on December 1, 2020 and semiannually on the 1st day of June and December 
thereafter.  Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a note as shown on the records of ownership 

maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month (whether or not a business day) preceding such interest 
payment date (the “Record Date”).  Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months 
and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 
  

181

Item 12.



ii  

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 

Notes due after June 1, 2028 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time in part, in any order 

of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said date or on any date thereafter at the option of the City, upon terms of 

par plus accrued interest to date of call.  Written notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

date fixed for redemption to the registered owners of the Notes to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration 

books. 

TERM-NOTE OPTION 

Bidders shall have the option of designating the Notes as serial notes or term notes, or both.  The bid must designate 

whether each of the principal amounts shown above represent a serial maturity or a mandatory redemption requirement 

for a term bond maturity. (See the OFFICIAL BID FORM for more information.)  In any event, the above principal 

amount scheduled shall be represented by either serial note maturities or mandatory redemption requirements, or a 

combination of both. 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT 

A good faith deposit in the amount of $34,300 (the “Deposit”) is required from the lowest bidder only.  The lowest 

bidder is required to submit such Deposit payable to the order of the City, not later than 12:00 P.M. Central Time on the 

day of the sale of the Notes and in the form of either (i) a cashier’s check provided to the City or its Municipal Advisor 

or (ii) a wire transfer as instructed by the City’s Municipal Advisor.  If not so received, the bid of the lowest bidder may 

be rejected, and the City may direct the second lowest bidder to submit a Deposit and thereafter may award the sale of 

the Notes to the same. No interest on a Deposit will accrue to the successful bidder (the “Purchaser”).  The Deposit 

will be applied to the purchase price of the Notes. In the event a Purchaser fails to honor its accepted bid proposal, the 

Deposit will be retained by the City. 

FORM OF BIDS AND AWARD 

All bids shall be unconditional for the Notes for a price not less than $3,405,990, plus accrued interest, and shall 

specify the rate or rates of interest in conformity to the limitations set forth under the “BIDDING PARAMETERS” 

section.  Bids must be submitted on or in substantial compliance with the OFFICIAL BID FORM provided by the City. 

The Notes will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be determined on a true interest cost (the 

“TIC”) basis assuming compliance with the “ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE” and “GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT” 

sections.  The TIC shall be determined by the present value method, i.e., by ascertaining the semiannual rate, compounded 

semiannually, necessary to discount to present value as of the dated date of the Notes, the amount payable on each interest 

payment date and on each stated maturity date or earlier mandatory redemption, so that the aggregate of such amounts 

will equal the aggregate purchase price offered therefore.  The TIC shall be stated in terms of an annual percentage rate 

and shall be that rate of interest, which is twice the semiannual rate so ascertained (also known as the Canadian Method).  

The TIC shall be as determined by the Municipal Advisor based on the TERMS OF OFFERING and all amendments, 

and on the bids as submitted.  The Municipal Advisor’s computation of the TIC of each bid shall be controlling.  In the 

event of tie bids for the lowest TIC, the Notes will be awarded by lot. 
 

The City will reserve the right to: (i) waive non-substantive informalities of any bid or of matters relating to the receipt 

of bids and award of the Notes, (ii) reject all bids without cause and (iii) reject any bid which the City determines to 

have failed to comply with the terms herein. 

BIDDING PARAMETERS 

Each bidder’s proposal must conform to the following limitations: 

 

1. Each annual maturity must bear a single rate of interest from the dated date of the Notes to the date of maturity. 

2. Rates of interest bid must be in multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one percent. 

3. The initial price to the public for each maturity must be 98% or greater. 
 

  

182

Item 12.



iii  

RECEIPT OF BIDS 

Forms of Bids: Bids must be submitted on or in substantial compliance with the TERMS OF OFFERING and OFFICIAL 

BID FORM provided by the City or through PARITY® competitive bidding system (the “Internet Bid System”).  
Neither the City or its agents shall not be responsible for malfunction or mistake made by any person, or as a result of 
the use of an electronic bid or the means used to deliver or complete a bid.  The use of such facilities or means is at the 
sole risk of the prospective bidder who shall be bound by the terms of the bid as received. 

 

No bid will be accepted after the time specified in the TERMS OF OFFERING.  The time as maintained by the 

Internet Bid System shall constitute the official time with respect to all bids submitted.  A bid may be withdrawn before 

the bid deadline using the same method used to submit the bid.  If more than one bid is received from a bidder, the last 

bid received shall be considered. 
 

Sealed Bids: Sealed bids may be submitted and will be received at the office of the Director of Finance & Business 

Operations at City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613.  Physical access to City Hall may be limited due to 

COVID-19 restrictions.  It shall be the responsibility of each bidder to plan accordingly for timely submission of sealed 

bids. 
 

Electronic Internet Bidding: Electronic internet bids will be received at the office of the City’s Municipal Advisor, 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Ave, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309; Telephone: 515-243-2600.  The 

electronic internet bids must be submitted through the Internet Bid System.  Information about the Internet Bid System 

may be obtained by calling (212) 849-5021. 
 

Each bidder shall be solely responsible for making necessary arrangements to access the Internet Bid System for 

purposes of submitting its electronic internet bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of the 

TERMS OF OFFERING and OFFICIAL BID FORM.  The City is permitting bidders to use the services of the Internet 

Bid System solely as a communication mechanism to conduct the electronic internet bidding and the Internet Bid System 

is not an agent of the City.  Provisions of the TERMS OF OFFERING and OFFICIAL BID FORM shall control in 

the event of conflict with information provided by the Internet Bid System. 
 

Electronic Facsimile Bids: Electronic facsimile bids will be received at the office of the City’s Municipal Advisor, 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Des Moines, Iowa (facsimile number: (515) 243-6994).  Electronic facsimile bids will be 

treated as sealed bids. 
 

Electronic facsimile bids received after the deadline will be rejected.  Bidders electing to submit bids via electronic 

facsimile transmission bear full responsibility for the transmission of such bid.  Neither the City nor its agents shall be 

responsible for malfunction or mistake made by any person, or as a result of the use of the electronic facsimile facilities 

or any other means used to deliver or complete a bid.  The use of such facilities or means is at the sole risk of the 

prospective bidder who shall be bound by the terms of the bid as received.  Neither the City nor its agents will assume 

liability for the inability of the bidder to reach the above named facsimile numbers prior to the time of sale specified 

above.  Time of receipt shall be the time recorded by the facsimile operator receiving the bids. 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE 

The Notes will be issued by means of a book-entry only system with no physical distribution of note certificates made to 

the public.  The Notes will be issued in fully registered form and one note certificate, representing the aggregate 

principal amount of the Notes maturing in each year will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The 

Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, which will act as securities depository of the Notes. 

Individual purchases of the Notes may be made in the principal amount of $5,000 or any multiple thereof of a single 

maturity through book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.  Principal and interest are 

payable by the Registrar to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Notes.  Transfer of principal and interest 

payments to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to 

beneficial owners by participants will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners.  

The Purchaser, as a condition of delivery of the Notes, will be required to deposit the note certificates with DTC.  However, 

upon request of the successful bidder, the book-entry issuance provision for the Notes may be waived in favor of 

certificates that will be prepared and delivered at closing. 

183

Item 12.



iv  

MUNICIPAL NOTE INSURANCE AT PURCHASER’S OPTION 

If the Notes qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal note insurance or commitment therefore at the option of 

the bidder, the purchase of any such insurance policy or the issuance of any such commitment shall be at the sole option 

and expense of the Purchaser.  Any increased costs of issuance of the Notes resulting from such purchase of insurance 

shall be paid by the Purchaser, except that, if the City has requested and received a rating on the Notes from a rating 

agency, the City will pay that initial rating fee.  Any other rating agency fees shall be the responsibility of the Purchaser. 

Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the Notes have been awarded to the Purchaser shall not 

constitute cause for failure or refusal by the Purchaser to accept delivery on the Notes.  The City reserves the right in its 

sole discretion to accept or deny changes to the financing documents requested by the insurer selected by the Purchaser. 

DELIVERY 

In the instance where the successful bidder waives book-entry issuance provisions in favor of certificates, certain of 

the following provisions will not apply. 

 

The Notes will be delivered to the Purchaser through DTC in New York, New York, against full payment in 

immediately available cash or federal funds.  The Notes are expected to be delivered within forty-five days after the 

sale. Should delivery be delayed beyond sixty days from date of sale for any reason except failure of performance by a 

Purchaser, the Purchaser may withdraw their bid and thereafter their interest in and liability for the Notes will cease.  

When the Notes are ready for delivery, the City may give the Purchaser five working days’ notice of the delivery date 

and the City will expect payment in full on that date, otherwise reserving the right of its option to determine that the 

Purchaser has failed to comply with the offer of purchase. 

NOTE REGISTRATION 

In the instance where the successful bidder waives book-entry issuance provisions in favor of certificates, certain of the 

following provisions will not apply. 
 
The Notes shall be fully registered as to principal and interest in the name of the owner on the registration books of the City’s 

Controller/City Treasurer (the “Registrar”), and after such registration, payment of the principal and interest thereof shall 

be made only to the registered owner, its legal representatives or assigns.  It is anticipated that any successful bidder that 

waives book-entry issuance provisions in favor of the certificates will be acquiring the Notes for their own account and 

not with a view to resale or for other distribution thereof, and with no present intent to divide the Notes purchased nor to 

resell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Notes. 

ELECTRONIC TRANSCRIPTS 

The Purchaser consents to the receipt of electronic transcripts and acknowledges the City’s potential use of the electronically 

executed documents. Iowa Code chapter 554D establishes electronic signatures have the full weight and legal authority as 

manual signatures. 

ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE 

The Purchaser shall assist the City in establishing the issue price of the Notes and shall execute and deliver to the City at 

closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the 

sales price or prices of the Notes, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, substantially in 

the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT 1 - FORMS OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATES to the TERMS OF OFFERING, with 

such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Purchaser, the City and Bond 

Counsel.  All actions to be taken by the City under the TERMS OF OFFERING to establish the issue price of the Notes may 

be taken on behalf of the City by the Municipal Advisor identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the City 

may be provided to the Municipal Advisor. 

 

The City intends the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive sale” for purposes 

of establishing the issue price of the Notes) will apply to the initial sale of the Notes (the “competitive sale requirements”) 

because (i) the City shall disseminate this TERMS OF OFFERING to potential underwriters in a manner that is reasonably 

184

Item 12.



v  

designed to reach potential underwriters, (ii) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid, (iii) the City may receive 

bids from at least three underwriters of municipal notes who have established industry reputations for underwriting new 

issuances of municipal notes and (iv) the City anticipates awarding the sale of the Notes to the bidder who submits a firm 

offer to purchase the Notes at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in the TERMS OF OFFERING. 

 

Any bid submitted pursuant to the TERMS OF OFFERING shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Notes, 

as specified in the bid.  

 

In the event the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the City shall so advise the Purchaser.  The City may, as set 

forth below, determine to treat (i) the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the Notes (the “10% test”) is sold to the public 

as the issue price of that maturity, and/or (ii) the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity of the 

Notes as the issue price of that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), in each case applied on a maturity-by-maturity 

basis (and if different interest rates apply within a maturity, to each separate CUSIP number within that maturity).  The 

Purchaser shall advise the City if any maturity of the Notes satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the award of the 

Notes.  The City shall promptly advise the Purchaser, at or before the time of award of the Notes, which maturities (and if 

different interest rates apply within a maturity, which separate CUSIP number within that maturity) of the Notes, if any, 

shall be subject to the 10% test and which shall be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule.  Bids will not be subject to 

cancellation in the event the City determines to apply the hold-the-offering-price rule to any maturity of the Notes.  

Prospective bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that some or all of the maturities of the Notes will 

be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule in order to establish the issue price of the Notes. 

 

By submitting a bid, the Purchaser shall (i) confirm the underwriters have offered or will offer the Notes to the public on or 

before the date of award at the offering price or prices (the “initial offering price”) or at the corresponding yield or yields 

set forth in the bid submitted by the Purchaser, and (ii) agree on behalf of the underwriters participating in the purchase of 

the Notes that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Notes of any maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price 

rule shall apply to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period starting 

on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:  (a) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date, or 

(b) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the Notes to the public at a price that is no 

higher than the initial offering price to the public. 

 

The Purchaser shall promptly advise the City when the underwriters have sold 10% of that maturity of the Notes to the 

public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public, if that occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) 

business day after the sale date. 

 

The City acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the Purchaser of the Notes will rely on (i) the 

agreement of each underwriter to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in an agreement among 

underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial 

sale of the Notes to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the hold-

the-offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event, an 

underwriter is a party to a retail distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Notes to 

the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price 

rule, as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The City further acknowledges that each 

underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule and 

that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling 

group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to comply with its corresponding agreement 

regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the Notes. 

 

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that (i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each 

retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Notes to the public, together 

with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member 

of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (a) report 

the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Notes of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Purchaser 

that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Notes of that maturity or all Notes of that maturity have been sold to the 

public, and (b) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the 

Purchaser and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale 

185

Item 12.



vi  

of the Notes to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each 

underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Notes 

to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement to (a) report the prices at which 

it sells to the public the unsold Notes of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Purchaser or such underwriter 

that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Notes of that maturity or all Notes of that maturity have been sold to the 

public, and (b) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the 

Purchaser or such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 
 

Sales of any Notes to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes 

of this TERMS OF OFFERING.  Further, for purposes of this TERMS OF OFFERING, (i) “public” means any person other 

than an underwriter or a related party, (ii) “underwriter” means (a) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with 

the City (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the 

public, and (b) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause 

“(a)” to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail 

distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the public), (iii) a purchaser of any of the Notes is a 

“related party” to an underwriter if the underwriter and the Purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (a) at least 50% 

common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct 

ownership by one corporation of another), (b) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, 

if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (c) more than 50% common 

ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, 

as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable 

stock or interests by one entity of the other), and (iv) “sale date” means the date the Notes are awarded by the City to the 

Purchaser. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The City has authorized the preparation of a Preliminary Official Statement containing pertinent information relative to the 

Notes.  The Preliminary Official Statement when further supplemented with maturity dates, principal amounts, and interest 

rates of the Notes, and any other information required by law or deemed appropriate by the City, shall constitute a final 

Official Statement of the City with respect to the Notes, as that term is defined in Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”).  By awarding the Notes 

to any underwriter or underwriting-syndicate submitting an OFFICIAL BID FORM therefore, the City agrees that, no more 

than seven (7) business days after the date of such award, it shall provide without cost to the senior managing underwriter 

of the syndicate to which the Notes are awarded, up to 15 copies of the final Official Statement to permit each “Participating 

Underwriter” (as that term is defined in the Rule) to comply with the provisions of such Rule.  The City shall treat the senior 

managing underwriter of the syndicate or syndicates to which the Notes are awarded as its designated agent for purposes of 

distributing copies of the final Official Statement to the Participating Underwriter.  Any underwriter executing and delivering 

an OFFICIAL BID FORM with respect to the Notes agrees, thereby, that if its bid is accepted by the City, (i) it shall accept 

such designation, and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with all Participating Underwriters of the Notes for 

purposes of assuring the receipt by each such Participating Underwriter of the final Official Statement. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The City will covenant in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the benefit of the owners and beneficial owners of the 

Notes to provide annually certain financial information and operating data relating to the City (the “Annual Report”), and to 

provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events.  The Annual Report is to be filed by the City not later than 

two hundred seventy (270) days after the close of each fiscal year, commencing with the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020, 

with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, at its internet repository named “Electronic Municipal Market Access” 

(“EMMA”).  The notices of events, if any, are also to be filed with EMMA.  See APPENDIX D – FORM OF CONTINUING 

DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.  The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices 

of events, and the manner in which such materials are to be filed, are summarized in APPENDIX D – FORM OF 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.  These covenants have been made in order to assist the Purchaser in 

complying with section (b)(5) of the Rule. 

In accordance with the reporting requirements of paragraph (f)(3) of the Rule, within the past five years, the City 

inadvertently failed to timely cross reference the annual operating and data tables for Fiscal Year 2015-16 included 

within its timely filed Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and did not file a notice of late filing in connection with this 

186

Item 12.



vii  

occurrence. 

 

Breach of the undertakings will not constitute a default or an “Event of Default” under the Notes or the resolution for the 

Notes.  A broker or dealer is to consider a known breach of the undertakings, however, before recommending the purchase 

or sale of the Notes in the secondary market.  Thus, a failure on the part of the City to observe the undertakings 

may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Notes and their market price. 

CUSIP NUMBERS 

It is anticipated that the Committee on Uniform Security Identification Procedures (“CUSIP”) numbers will be printed on 

the Notes and the Purchaser must agree in the bid proposal to pay the cost thereof.  In no event will the City, Bond Counsel 

or Municipal Advisor be responsible for the review of or express any opinion that the CUSIP numbers are correct. 

Incorrect CUSIP numbers on said Notes shall not be cause for the Purchaser to refuse to accept delivery of said Notes. 

 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

/s/ Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 
 

  

187

Item 12.



viii 

 

 
 

 

 

 SCHEDULE OF BOND YEARS

$3,430,000*

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020

Notes Dated:

Interest Due: December 1, 2020 and each June 1 and December 1 to maturity

Principal Due: June 1, 2021 - 2030

Cumulative

Year   Principal * Bond Years Bond Years

2021 $130,000 111.94 111.94

2022 335,000 623.47 735.42

2023 340,000 972.78 1,708.19

2024 350,000 1,351.39 3,059.58

2025 355,000 1,725.69 4,785.28

2026 365,000 2,139.31 6,924.58

2027 375,000 2,572.92 9,497.50

2028 385,000 3,026.53 12,524.03

2029 390,000 3,455.83 15,979.86

2030 405,000 3,993.75 19,973.61

Average Maturity (dated date): 5.823 Years

* Preliminary; subject to change.

July 21, 2020

188

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

FORMS OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATES 

189

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-A to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 
 

 

COMPETITIVE SALES WITH AT LEAST THREE BIDS FROM ESTABLISHED UNDERWRITERS 
 

 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 
 

$_______ General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF UNDERWRITER] ("Purchaser"), hereby certifies as set forth 

below with respect to the sale of the above-captioned obligations (the "Notes"). 

 

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price. 

 

 a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the Notes to the Public by 

Purchaser are the prices listed in Schedule A (the "Expected Offering Prices").  The Expected Offering Prices are the 

prices for the Maturities of the Notes used by Purchaser in formulating its bid to purchase the Notes.  Attached as 

Schedule B is a true and correct copy of the bid provided by Purchaser to purchase the Notes. 

 

 b) Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submitting its bid. 

 

 c) The bid submitted by Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the Notes. 

 

2. Defined Terms. 

 

 a) Issuer means City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 b) Maturity means Notes with the same credit and payment terms.  Notes with different maturity dates, 

or Notes with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate Maturities. 

 

 c) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, 

or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter.  The term "related party" for purposes 

of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, 

directly or indirectly. 

 

 d) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of a Maturity 

of the Notes.  The Sale Date of the Notes is June 15, 2020. 

 

 e) Underwriter means (i) the Purchaser or any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 

Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes 

to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person 

described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public (including a member 

of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the 

Public). 

  

190

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-A to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 
 

 

 f) The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.  Nothing in this 

certificate represents Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.  The undersigned understands 

that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer and its advisors with respect to certain of the 

representations set forth in the Tax Exemption Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax 

rules affecting the Notes, and by Bond Counsel in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the Notes 

is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 

8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Notes. 

 

 

[UNDERWRITER] 

 

By:_______________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________________ 

 

Dated:  July 21, 2020   

191

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-A to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 
 

SCHEDULE A 

 

EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES 

 

$_______ General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

(Attached) 

192

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-A to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 
 

SCHEDULE B 

 

COPY OF UNDERWRITER’S BID 

 

$_______ General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

(Attached) 

193

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-B to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 

 

 

COMPETITIVE SALES WITH FEWER THAN THREE BIDS FROM ESTABLISHED 

UNDERWRITERS HOLD OFFERING PRICE 

 

 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

 

$_______ General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF UNDERWRITER/REPRESENTATIVE] (["Purchaser")][the 

"Representative")][, on behalf of itself and [NAMES OF OTHER UNDERWRITERS] (together, the "Underwriting 

Group"),] hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned obligations 

(the "Notes"). 

1. Sale of the General Rule Maturities.  As of the date of this certificate, for each Maturity of the General 

Rule Maturities, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity was sold to the Public is the respective price listed 

in Schedule A. 

2. Initial Offering Price of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities. 

 

a) [Purchaser][The Underwriting Group] offered the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for 

purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the "Initial Offering Prices") on or before the Sale 

Date.  A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the Notes is attached to this certificate as Schedule 

B. 

b) As set forth in the Official Terms of Offering and bid award, [Purchaser][the members of the 

Underwriting Group] [has][have] agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities, 

[it][they] would neither offer nor sell any of the Notes of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the 

Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the "hold-the-offering-price rule"), 

and (ii) any selling group agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, 

and any retail distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the retail 

distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule.  Pursuant to such agreement, no Underwriter 

(as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities at a price that is higher 

than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Notes during the Holding Period. 

 

3. Defined Terms. 

 

 a) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the Notes listed in Schedule A hereto as the "General 

Rule Maturities." 

 

 b) Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities means those Maturities of the Notes listed in Schedule A hereto as 

the "Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities." 

 

 c) Holding Period means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the period starting on the 

Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the Sale Date, or (ii) the date on which 

[Purchaser][the Underwriters] [has][have] sold at least 10% of such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity to the Public at 

prices that are no higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity. 

 

d) Issuer means City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

  

194

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-B to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 

e) Maturity means Notes with the same credit and payment terms.  Notes with different maturity dates, or 

Notes with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate maturities. 

 

 f) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or 

corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter.  The term "related party" for purposes of 

this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly 

or indirectly. 

 g) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of a Maturity 

of the Notes.  The Sale Date of the Notes is June 15, 2020. 

 h) Underwriter means (i) the Purchaser or any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 

Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to 

the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in 

clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public (including a member of a selling 

group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Notes to the Public). 

 

 i) The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.  Nothing in this 

certificate represents [the Purchaser][the Representative's] interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 

103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.  The 

undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer and its advisors with respect 

to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Exemption Certificate and with respect to compliance with the 

federal income tax rules affecting the Notes, and by Bond Counsel in connection with rendering its opinion that the 

interest on the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal 

Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer  from time to time 

relating to the Notes. 

 

 

[UNDERWRITER][REPRESENTATIVE] 

 

By:____________________________________ 

Name:__________________________________ 

 

Dated: July 21, 2020 

195

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-B to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 

SCHEDULE A 

 

SALE PRICES OF THE GENERAL RULE MATURITIES AND 

INITIAL OFFERING PRICES OF THE HOLD-THE-OFFERING-PRICE MATURITIES 

 

 

$_______ General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 (Attached) 

196

Item 12.



 
 

EXHIBIT 1-B to TERMS OF OFFERING 

 
 

 

SCHEDULE B 

 

PRICING WIRE OR EQUIVALENT COMMUNICATION 

 

$_______ General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

 (Attached) 

 

 

197

Item 12.



 

1  

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

$3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 

INTRODUCTION 

This Preliminary Official Statement contains information relating to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) and 

its issuance of $3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 (the “Notes”). This Preliminary 

Official Statement has been executed on behalf of the City and its Director of Finance & Business Operations 

and may be distributed in connection with the sale of the Notes authorized therein. Inquiries may be made to the 

City’s Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309, 

or by telephoning (515) 243-2600. Information can also be obtained from Ms. Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of 

Finance & Business Operations, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, or by telephoning (319) 268-5108. 
 

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
 

The Notes are being issued pursuant to Division III of Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa and a resolution (the 

“Resolution”) to be adopted by the City Council of the City.  The Notes are being issued to provide funds to pay costs 

of City capital projects, including opening, widening, extending, grading and draining of the right-of-way of streets, 

highways, avenues, alleys and public grounds and market places, and the removal and replacement of dead or diseased 

trees thereon;  construction, reconstruction and repairing of any street improvements, bridges, grade crossing 

separations and approaches; acquisition, installation and repair of sidewalks, culverts, retaining walls, storm sewers, 

sanitary sewers, water service lines, street lighting and traffic control devices, and the acquisition of any real estate 

needed for any of the foregoing purposes; equipping the police, fire and streets departments; acquisition, construction, 

reconstruction, enlargement, improvement and equipping of recreational trails, expanded public infrastructure and 

related amenities and site improvements; acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement and 

equipping of City facilities, including the South Main parking lot. 

 

The estimated Sources and Uses of the Notes are as follows:  

Sources of Funds* 
 

   

 Par Amount of Notes $3,430,000.00 

  

Uses of Funds*  

   

 Deposit to Project Fund $3,363,000.00 

 Underwriter’s Discount 24,010.00 

 Cost of Issuance & Contingency       42,990.00 
    

  Total Uses $3,430,000.00 

 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 

INTEREST 
 

Interest on the Notes will be payable on December 1, 2020 and semiannually on the 1st day of June and December 
thereafter. Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a note as shown on the records of 

ownership maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month preceding such interest payment date (the 
“Record Date”). Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded 

pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

  

198

Item 12.



 

2  

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 
 

Notes due after June 1, 2028 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time in part, in any order 

of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said date or on any date thereafter at the option of the City, upon terms 

of par plus accrued interest to date of call. Written notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior 

to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owners of the Notes to be redeemed at the address shown on the 

registration books. 
 

PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES 
 

The Notes are general obligations of the City and the unlimited taxing powers of the City are irrevocably pledged for 

their payment.  Upon issuance of the Notes, the City will levy taxes for the years and in amounts sufficient to provide 

100% of annual principal and interest due on the Notes.  If, however, the amount credited to the debt service fund for 

payment of the Notes is insufficient to pay principal and interest, whether from transfers or from original levies, the 

City must use funds in its treasury and is required to levy ad valorem taxes upon all taxable property in the City without 

limit as to rate or amount sufficient to pay the debt service deficiency. 

 

Iowa Code section 76.2 provides that when an Iowa political subdivision issues general obligation Notes, “the 

governing authority of these political subdivisions before issuing Notes shall, by resolution, provide for the assessment 

of an annual levy upon all the taxable property in the political subdivision sufficient to pay the interest and principal 

of the Notes within a period named not exceeding twenty years.  A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed 

with the county auditor or the auditors of the counties in which the political subdivision is located; and the filing shall 

make it a duty of the auditors to enter annually this levy for collection from the taxable property within the boundaries 

of the political subdivision until funds are realized to pay the Notes in full.” 

 

Nothing in the Resolution authorizing the Notes prohibits or limits the ability of the City to use legally available moneys 

other than the proceeds of the general ad valorem property taxes levied, as described in the preceding paragraph, to pay 

all or any portion of the principal of or interest on the Notes.  If, and to the extent such other legally available moneys 

are used to pay the principal of or interest on the Notes, the City may, but shall not be required to (i) reduce the amount 

of taxes levied for such purpose, as described in the preceding paragraph, or (ii) use proceeds of taxes levied, as 

described in the preceding paragraph, to reimburse the fund or account from which such other legally available moneys 

are withdrawn for the amount withdrawn from such fund or account to pay the principal of or interest on the Notes. 

 

The Resolution authorizing the Notes does not restrict the City’s ability to issue or incur additional general obligation 

debt, although issuance of additional general obligation debt is subject to the same constitutional and statutory 

limitations that apply to the issuance of the Notes.  For a further description of the City’s outstanding general obligation 

debt upon issuance of the Notes and the annual debt service on the Notes, see “DIRECT DEBT” under “CITY 

INDEBTEDNESS” included in APPENDIX A herein.  For a description of certain constitutional and statutory limits 

on the issuance of general obligation debt, see “DEBT LIMIT” under “CITY INDEBTEDNESS” included in 

APPENDIX A herein. 

 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM 

 

In the instance that the successful bidder waives book-entry issuance provisions in favor of certificates, the provisions 

included in this section shall not apply. See NOTE REGISTRATION for non-book-entry closing conditions. 
 

The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE” has 

been extracted from a schedule prepared by Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING 

DOCUMENT LANGUAGE DESCRIBING DTC AND BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE”.  The information in this 

section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry-only system has been obtained from sources that the City believes to 

be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities (the 

“Securities”).  The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s 

199

Item 12.



 

3  

partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-

registered Security certificate will be issued for each issue of the Securities, each in the aggregate principal amount of 

such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.  If, however, the aggregate principal amount of any issue exceeds $500 

million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal amount, and an additional certificate 

will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue. 
 

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 

Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 

Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 

“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC 

holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and 

municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s participants (the “Direct 

Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and 

other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry-only transfers and 

pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities 

certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 

clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & 

Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation 

and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of 

its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 

brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial 

relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (the “Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & 

Poor’s rating: AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 
 

Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a 

credit for the Securities on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security (the 

“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will 

not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive 

written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the 

Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership 

interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting 

on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests 

in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry-only system for the Securities is discontinued. 
 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name 

of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative 

of DTC.  The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC 

nominee do not affect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of 

the Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Securities are 

credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible 

for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect 

Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 

arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  

Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of 

significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to 

the Security documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding 

the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, 

Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar and request that copies of notices 

be provided directly to them. 
 

200

Item 12.

http://www.dtcc.com/
http://www.dtc.org/
http://www.dtcc.com/
http://www.dtc.org/


 

4  

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s 

practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 
 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co., nor any other DTC nominee, will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless 

authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC mails 

an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s 

consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the record date 

identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy. 
 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such 

other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 

Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Agent, on 

payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to 

Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities 

held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such 

Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 

from time to time.  Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co., or such 

other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC, is the responsibility of the City or Agent, 

disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such 

payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to 

Tender/Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the 

Participant’s interest in the Securities, on DTC’s records, to Tender/Remarketing Agent.  The requirement for physical 

delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the 

ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and followed by a book-

entry-only credit of tendered Securities to Tender/Remarketing Agent’s DTC account. 
 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving reasonable 

notice to the City or Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security 

certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 
 

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor 

securities depository).  In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

 

NOTE REGISTRATION 

 

In the instance where the successful bidder waives book-entry issuance provisions in favor of certificates, certain of 

the following provisions will not apply. 

 

The Notes shall be fully registered as to principal and interest in the name of the owner on the registration books of the 

City’s Controller/City Treasurer (the “Registrar”), and after such registration, payment of the principal and interest 

thereof shall be made only to the registered owner, its legal representatives or assigns.  It is anticipated that any 

successful bidder that waives book-entry issuance provisions in favor of certificates will be acquiring the Notes for 

their own account and not with a view to resale or for other distribution thereof, and with no present intent to divide 

the Notes purchased nor to resell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Notes. 

 

FUTURE FINANCING 
 

The City does not anticipate any additional general obligation borrowing needs within 90 days of this Preliminary 

Official Statement. 
 

  

201

Item 12.



 

5  

LITIGATION 
 

The City is not aware of any threatened or pending litigation that may have a material adverse effect on the validity 

of the Notes or the City’s ability to meet its financial obligations with regard to the Notes. 
 

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY 
 

The City knows of no instance in which it has defaulted in the payment of principal or interest on its debt. 
 

LEGALITY 
 

The Notes are subject to approval as to certain matters by Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. of Des Moines, Iowa as Bond 

Counsel.  Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Preliminary Official Statement other than to 

review or prepare information describing the terms of the Notes and Iowa and Federal law pertinent to the validity of 

and the tax status of interest on the Notes, which can be found generally under the sections “AUTHORITY AND 

PURPOSE”, “OPTIONAL REDEMPTION”, “PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” and “TAX 

MATTERS”, herein.  Additionally, Bond Counsel has provided its legal opinion and Continuing Disclosure Certificate, 

included in APPENDIX B and APPENDIX D, respectively, within this Preliminary Official Statement.  Bond Counsel 

is not expressing any opinion as to the completeness or accuracy of the information contained in the Preliminary Official 

Statement.  The FORM OF LEGAL OPINION as set out in APPENDIX B to this Preliminary Official Statement, will 

be delivered at closing. 

 

The legal opinion to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Notes expresses the professional judgment of 

the attorneys rendering the opinion as to legal issues expressly addressed therein.  By rendering a legal opinion, the 

opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of the result indicated by that expression of professional 

judgment, or of the transaction on which the opinion is rendered, or of the future performance of parties to the 

transaction.  Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the 

transaction. 

 

There is no bond trustee or similar person to monitor or enforce the provisions of the Resolution for the Notes.  The 

owners of the Notes should, therefore, be prepared to enforce such provisions themselves if the need to do so arises.  

In the event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Notes, there is no provision for acceleration 

of maturity of the principal of the Notes.  Consequently, the remedies of the owners of the Notes (consisting 

primarily of an action in the nature of mandamus requiring the City and certain other public officials to perform the 

terms of the Resolution) may have to be enforced from year to year.  The obligation to pay general ad valorem 

property taxes is secured by a statutory lien upon the taxed property but is not an obligation for which a property 

owner may be held personally liable in the event of a deficiency.  The owners of the Notes cannot foreclose on property 

within the boundaries of the City or sell such property in order to pay the debt service on the Notes.  See “LEVIES 

AND TAX COLLECTIONS” included in APPENDIX A herein, for a description of property tax collection and 

enforcement. 
 

In addition, the enforceability of the rights and remedies of owners of the Notes may be subject to limitation as set 

forth in Bond Counsel’s opinion.  The opinion will state, in part, that the obligation of the City with respect to the 

Notes may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ 

rights, heretofore or hereafter, enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, to the exercise of judicial discretion 

in appropriate cases. 

 

TAX MATTERS 
 

Tax Exemptions and Related Considerations:  Federal tax law contains a number of requirements and restrictions that 

apply to the Notes.  These include investment restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, 

requirements regarding the proper use of note proceeds and facilities financed with note proceeds, and certain other 

matters.  The City has covenanted to comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in order for the interest on the 

Notes to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to comply with certain of such 

202

Item 12.



 

6  

covenants could cause interest on the Notes to become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes 

retroactively to the date of issuance of the Notes. 

 

Subject to the City’s compliance with the above referenced covenants, under present law, in the opinion of Bond 

Counsel, interest on the Notes is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Interest on the Notes 

is not an item of tax preference for federal alternative minimum tax. 
 

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should be aware that ownership of the Notes may result in collateral federal income 

tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, 

financial institutions, certain insurance companies, certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or 

Railroad Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to 

purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations.  Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax 

consequences.  Prospective purchaser of the Notes should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income tax 

consequences. 
 

Ownership of the Notes may result in other state and local tax consequences to certain taxpayers.  Bond Counsel 

expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences arising with respect to the Notes.  The prospective 

purchaser of the Notes should consult their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes. 
 

Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations:  The City does not reasonably expect to issue more than $10,000,000 in tax-exempt 

obligations in calendar year 2020 which must be taken into account under Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").  In the Resolution authorizing the issuance of the Notes, the City will designate 

the Notes as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to the 

ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes a portion of the interest expense 

that is allocable to tax-exempt obligations. 
 

Tax Accounting Treatment of Discount and Premium Notes:  The initial public offering price of certain Notes may be 

less than the amount payable on such Notes at maturity (the “Discount Notes).  An amount equal to the difference 

between the initial public offering price of Discount Notes (assuming that a substantial amount of the Discount Notes 

of that maturity are sold to the public at such price) and the amount payable at maturity constitutes original issue 

discount to the initial purchaser of such Discount Notes.  Owners of Discount Notes should consult with their own tax 

advisors with respect to the determination of accrued original issue discount on Discount Notes for federal income tax 

purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning and disposing of Discount Notes.  It is 

possible that, under applicable provisions governing determination of state and local income taxes, accrued interest on 

Discount Notes may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding 

cash payment. 

 

The initial public offering price of certain Notes may be greater than the amount of such Notes at maturity (the 

“Premium Notes”).  An amount equal to the difference between the initial public offering price of Premium Notes 

(assuming that a substantial amount of the Premium Notes of that maturity are sold to the public at such price) and the 

amount payable at maturity constitutes a premium to the initial purchaser of such Premium Notes.  Purchasers of the 

Premium Notes should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the determination of amortizable note 

premium on Premium Notes for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences 

of owning and disposing of Premium Notes. 

 

Other Tax Advice:  In addition to the income tax consequences described above, potential investors should consider 

the additional tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of the Notes.  For instance, state income 

tax law may differ substantially from state to state, and the foregoing is not intended to describe any aspect of the 

income tax laws of any state.  Therefore, potential investors should consult their own tax advisors with respect to 

federal tax issues and with respect to the various state tax consequences of an investment in Notes. 

 

Audits:  The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to 

determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includable in the gross income 

of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.  It cannot be predicted whether or not the Service will commence 

203

Item 12.



 

7  

an audit of the Notes.  If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the City as a taxpayer 

and the noteholders may have no right to participate in such procedure.  The commencement of an audit could 

adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Notes until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate 

outcome. 

 

Withholdings:  Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of tax-exempt obligations, 

including the Notes, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service.  Additionally, backup withholding may 

apply to any such payments to any Note owner who fails to provide an accurate Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer 

Identification Number and Certification, or a substantially identical form, or to any Note owner who is notified by the 

Service of a failure to report any interest or dividends required to be shown on federal income tax returns.  The reporting 

and backup withholding requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from gross income for federal tax 

purposes. 

 

Legislation:  Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States Congress and 

may be considered by the Iowa legislature.  Court proceedings may also be filed, the outcome of which could modify 

the tax treatment.  There can be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, after the date 

of issuance of the Notes will not have an adverse effect on the tax status of interest or other income on the Notes or 

the market value or marketability of the Notes.  These adverse effects could result, for example, from changes to 

federal or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of federal or state income taxes (including replacement with 

another type of tax), or repeal (or reduction in the benefit) of the exclusion of interest on the Notes from gross income 

for federal or state income tax purposes for all or certain taxpayers. 

 

Current and future legislative proposals, including some that carry retroactive effective dates, if enacted into law, court 

decisions, or clarification of the Code may cause interest on the Notes to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal 

income taxation, or otherwise prevent owners of the Notes from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of 

such interest.  Also, future legislative proposals, or clarification of the Code, may affect the market price for, or 

marketability of, the Notes.  Prospective purchasers of the Notes should consult their own legal counsel and tax advisors 

regarding pending or proposed tax legislation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion except as expressly set 

forth in APPENDIX B to this Preliminary Official Statement. 

 

The opinion expressed by Bond Counsel are based upon existing legislation and regulations as interpreted by relevant 

judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Notes, and Bond Counsel has expressed 

no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any proposed or pending legislation, regulatory 

initiatives or litigation. 
 

Enforcement:  Holders of the Notes shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies afforded by the common 

law, the Constitution and statutes of the State of Iowa and of the United States of America for the enforcement of 

payment of the Notes, including, but not limited to, the right to a proceeding in law or in equity by suit, action or 

mandamus to enforce and compel performance of the duties required by Iowa law and the Resolution authorizing the 

Notes.  There is no note trustee or similar person to monitor or enforce the terms of the Resolution authorizing the 

Notes.  In the event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Notes, there is no provision for 

acceleration of maturity of the principal of the Notes.  Consequently, the remedies of the owners of the Notes (consisting 

primarily of an action in the nature of mandamus requiring the City and certain other public officials to perform the 

terms of the Resolution authorizing the Notes) may have to be enforced from year to year.  The enforceability of the 

rights and remedies of owners of the Notes may be subject to limitation as set forth in Bond Counsel’s opinion. 
 

The obligation to pay general ad valorem property taxes is secured by a statutory lien upon the taxed property but is 

not an obligation for which a property owner may be held personally liable in the event of a deficiency.  The owners of 

the Notes cannot foreclose on property within the boundaries of the City or sell such property in order to pay the debt 

service on the Notes.  In addition, the enforceability of the rights and remedies of owners of the Notes may be subject 

to limitation as set forth in Bond Counsel's opinion.  The opinion to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of 

the Notes will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by general 

principles of equity and public policy and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting 

the rights of creditors generally, and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

204

Item 12.



 

8  

No representation is made, and no assurance is given, that the enforcement of any remedies with respect to such assets 

will result in sufficient funds to pay all amounts due under the Resolution for the Notes, including principal of and 

interest on the Notes. 

 

The Opinion:  The opinion expressed by Bond Counsel are based upon existing legislation and regulations as interpreted 

by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Notes, and Bond Counsel 

has expressed no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any proposed or pending legislation, 

regulatory initiatives or litigation. 
 

Bond Counsel’s opinions are not a guarantee of a result, or of the transaction on which the opinion is rendered, or of 

the future performance of parties to the transaction, but represents its legal judgment based upon its review of existing 

statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the representations and covenants of the City described 

in this section.  No ruling has been sought from the Service with respect to the matters addressed in the opinions of 

Bond Counsel and Bond Counsel’s opinions are not binding on the Service.  Bond Counsel assumes no obligation to 

update its opinions after the issue date to reflect any further action, fact or circumstance, or change in law or 

interpretation, or otherwise. 
 

ALL POTENTIAL PURCHASERS OF THE NOTES SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR TAX ADVISORS WITH 

RESPECT TO FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAX CONSEQUENCES OF OWNERSHIP OF THE NOTES 

(INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THOSE LISTED ABOVE). 
 

NOTEHOLDER’S RISKS 
 

An investment in the Notes is subject to certain risks.  No person should purchase the Notes unless such person 

understands the risks described below and is willing to bear those risks.  There may be other risks not listed below 

which may adversely affect the value of the Notes.  In order to identify risk factors and make an informed investment 

decision, potential investors should be thoroughly familiar with this entire Preliminary Official Statement (including the 

Appendices hereto) in order to make a judgment as to whether the Notes are an appropriate investment. 
 

Global Health Emergency Risk:  The World Health Organization has declared a pandemic following the outbreak of 

COVID-19, a respiratory disease caused by a new strain of coronavirus and on March 13, 2020, the President of the 

United States declared a national emergency.  The current spread of COVID-19 is altering the behavior of businesses 

and people in a manner that may have negative effects on economic activity, and therefore adversely affect the financial 

condition of the City, either directly or indirectly.  Federal, State, and local officials are taking steps to curb the spread 

of the virus, including providing both discretionary and mandatory guidelines and orders regarding public gatherings, 

and imposing mandatory closings of some businesses.  The spread of the virus could reduce sales tax collections, delay 

the receipt of property tax payments and negatively impact other collections dependent on local business activity.  At 

this time, it is not possible to predict the full impact on the City and its finances.  The Notes are secured by an unlimited 

ad valorem property tax as described more fully in the “PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” herein. 

 

Secondary Market Not Established:  There is no established secondary market for the Notes, and there is no assurance 

that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale of the Notes.  Prices of municipal Notes traded in the 

secondary market, if any, are subject to adjustment upward and downward in response to changes in the credit markets 

and changes in the operating performance of the entities operating the facilities subject to bonded indebtedness.  From 

time to time it may be necessary to suspend indefinitely secondary market trading in selected issues of municipal Notes 

as a result of the financial condition or market position, prevailing market conditions, lack of adequate current financial 

information about the entity, operating the subject facilities, or a material adverse change in the operations of that 

entity, whether or not the subject Notes are in default as to principal and interest payments, and other factors which, 

may give rise to uncertainty concerning prudent secondary market practices. 

 

Municipal Notes are generally viewed as long-term investments, subject to material unforeseen changes in the 

investor’s circumstances, and may require commitment of the investor’s funds for an indefinite period of time, perhaps 

until maturity. 

 

205

Item 12.



 

9  

EACH PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSESSING THE MERITS AND RISKS OF AN 

INVESTMENT AND MUST BE ABLE TO BEAR THE ECONOMIC RISK OF SUCH INVESTMENT.  THE 

SECONDARY MARKET FOR THE NOTES, IF ANY, COULD BE LIMITED. 
 

Ratings Loss:  Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) has assigned a rating of ‘___’ to the Notes.  Generally, 

a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and 

assumptions of its own. There is no assurance the ratings will continue for any given period of time, or that such 

ratings will not be revised, suspended or withdrawn, if, in the judgment of Moody’s, circumstances so warrant. 

A revision, suspension or withdrawal of a rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Notes. 
 

Rating agencies are currently not regulated by any regulatory body. Future regulation of rating agencies could 

materially alter the methodology, rating levels, and types of ratings available, for example, and these changes, if ever, 

could materially affect the market value of the Notes. 

 

Matters Relating to Enforceability:  Holders of the Notes shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies 

afforded by the common law, the Constitution and statutes of the State of Iowa and of the United States of America for 

the enforcement of payment of the Notes, including but not limited to, the right to a proceeding in the law or in equity 

by suit, action or mandamus to enforce and compel performance of the duties required by Iowa law and the Resolution 

authorizing the Notes. 
 

The practical realization of any rights upon any default will depend upon the exercise of various remedies specified in 

the Resolution authorizing the Notes. The opinion, to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Notes, will be 

qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by general principals of equity 

and public policy and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors 

generally. 
 

No representation is made, and no assurance is given that the enforcement of any remedies with respect to such assets 

will result in sufficient funds to pay all amounts due under the Resolution authorizing the Notes, including principal of 

and interest on the Notes. 
 

Forward-Looking Statements:  This Preliminary Official Statement contains statements relating to future results that are 

“forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  When used in this 

Preliminary Official Statement, the words “estimate,” “forecast,” “intend,” “expect” and similar expressions identify 

forward-looking statements.  Any forward-looking statement is subject to uncertainty.  Accordingly, such statements are 

subject to risks that could cause actual results to differ, possibly materially, from those contemplated in such forward-

looking statements.  Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop forward-looking statements will not be realized or 

unanticipated events and circumstances may occur.  Therefore, investors should be aware there are likely to be 

differences between forward-looking statements and the actual results.  These differences could be material and could 

impact the availability of funds of the City to pay debt service when due on the Notes. 

 

Financial Condition of the City from time to time:  No representation is made as to the future financial condition of the 

City.  Certain risks discussed herein could adversely affect the financial condition and or operations of the City in 

future.  However, the Notes are secured by an unlimited ad valorem property tax as described more fully in the 

“PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” herein. 

 

Redemption Prior to Maturity:  In considering whether to make an investment in the Notes, it should be noted that the 

Notes are subject to optional redemption, as outlined herein, without Noteholder discretion or consent.  See 

“OPTIONAL REDEMPTION” herein. 

 

  

206

Item 12.



 

10  

Tax Matters and Loss of Tax Exemption:  As discussed under the heading “TAX MATTERS” herein, the interest on the 

Notes could become includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to the date of delivery 

of the Notes, as a result of acts or omissions of the City in violation of its covenants in the Resolution authorizing the 

Notes.  Should such an event of taxability occur, the Notes would not be subject to a special prepayment and would 

remain outstanding until maturity or until prepaid under the prepayment provisions contained in the Notes, and there is 

no provision for an adjustment of the interest rates on the Notes. 
 

It is possible that legislation will be proposed or introduced that could result in changes in the way that tax exemption is 

calculated, or whether interest on certain securities are exempt from taxation at all.  Prospective purchasers should 

consult with their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal income tax legislation.  The likelihood of 

legislation being enacted cannot be reliably predicted. 
 

It is also possible actions of the City after the closings of the Notes will alter the tax status of the Notes, and in the 

extreme, remove the tax-exempt status from the Notes.  In that instance, the Notes are not subject to mandatory 

prepayment and the interest rates on the Notes don’t increase or otherwise reset.  A determination of taxability on the 

Notes after closing could materially adversely affect the value and marketability of the Notes. 

 

Pending Federal Tax Legislation: From time to time, there are Presidential proposals, proposals of various federal 

committees, and legislative proposals pending in Congress that could, if enacted, alter or amend one or more of the 

federal (or state) tax matters described herein in certain respects or would adversely affect the market value of the Notes 

or otherwise prevent holders of the Notes from realizing the full benefit of the tax exemption of interest on the Notes.  

Further, such proposals may impact the marketability or market value of the Notes simply by being proposed.  It cannot 

be predicted whether, or in what forms, any of such proposals, either pending or that may be introduced, may be enacted 

and there can be no assurance that such proposals will not apply to the Notes.  In addition, regulatory actions are from 

time to time announced or proposed and litigation threatened or commenced, which if implemented or concluded in a 

particular manner, could adversely affect the market value, marketability or tax status of the Notes.  It cannot be predicted 

whether any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any particular litigation or judicial action will be resolved, 

or whether the Notes would be impacted thereby. 

 

Changes in Property Taxation:  The Notes are general obligations of the City secured by an unlimited ad valorem 

property tax as described more fully in the “PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” herein.  The State 

Public Health Emergency Declarations has temporarily suspended the provisions that require the imposition of penalty 

and interest for delay in property tax payments and directs that no such penalty or interest may be imposed for the 

duration of the declaration and any future extension of the suspension.  It is impossible to predict whether the 

declaration or an extension thereof would have a material effect on the City’s ability to collect property taxes necessary 

for the payment of principal and interest on the Notes. 

 
From time to time the Iowa General Assembly has altered the method of property taxation and could do so again.  Such 

alterations could adversely affect the City’s financial condition.  Historically, changes to property tax calculations and 

impositions are imposed on a prospective basis.  However, there is no assurance future changes to property taxation by 

the Iowa General Assembly will not be applied retroactively.  It is impossible to predict the outcome of future property 

taxation changes by the Iowa General Assembly or resulting impacts on the City’s financial condition.  The Notes are 

secured by an unlimited ad valorem property tax as described more fully in the “PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY 

FOR THE NOTES” herein. 

 

Cybersecurity:  The City, like many other public and private entities, relies on a large and complex technology 

environment to conduct its operations.  As such, it may face multiple cybersecurity threats including but not limited to, 

hacking, viruses, malware and other attacks on computer or other sensitive digital systems and networks.  There can 

be no assurances that any security and operational control measures implemented by the City will be completely 

successful to guard against and prevent cyber threats and attacks.  Failure to properly maintain functionality, control, 

security, and integrity of the City’s information systems could impact business operations and/or digital networks and 

systems and the costs of remedying any such damage could be significant.  Along with significant liability claims or 

regulatory penalties, any security breach could have a material adverse impact on the City’s operations and financial 

condition. 

207

Item 12.



 

11  

The City maintains insurance policies in the amount of $7 million for general liability.  In addition, the City has a 

separate $1 million cyber liability policy.  The City cannot predict whether these policies would be sufficient in the 

event of a cyber breach.  The Notes are secured by an unlimited ad valorem property tax as described more fully in the 

“PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” herein. 

 

Pensions:  Pursuant to GASB 68, the City reported a liability of $7,971,544 within its Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (“CAFR”) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability related 

to IPERS, as defined herein.  The net pension liability is the amount by which the total actuarial liability exceeds the 

pension plan’s net assets or fiduciary net position (essentially the market value) available for paying benefits. The net 

pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 

liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was 

based on the City’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating 

employers. At June 30, 2018, the City’s collective proportion was 0.1259677%, which was an increase of 0.0012919% 

from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.   

 

Additionally, the City reported a liability of $10,587,346 with its CAFR for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019 for 

its proportionate share of the net pension liability related to MFPRSI, as defined herein.  The net pension liability was 

measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 

by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s share 

of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all MFPRSI participating employers. At June 30, 

2018, the City’s collective proportion was 1.778180%, which was an increase of 0.106635% from its proportion 

measured as of June 30, 2017.  See “EMPLOYEES AND PENSIONS” under the “THE CITY” section included in 

APPENDIX A to this Preliminary Official Statement for more summary information related to the City’s contributions, 

and the City’s COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019, 

included in APPENDIX C to this Preliminary Official Statement, for additional information related to the City’s 

deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, actuarial assumptions, discount rate and discount rate 

sensitivity.  Changes to the City’s pension contributions, or available sources to fund said contributions, may adversely 

affect the City’s financial condition.  However, the Notes are secured by an unlimited ad valorem property tax as 

described more fully in the “PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” herein. 

 

Continuing Disclosure:  A failure by the City to comply with continuing disclosure obligations (see “CONTINUING 

DISCLOSURE” herein) will not constitute an event of default on the Notes.  Any such failure must be disclosed in 

accordance with Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”), and may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Notes and their 

market price. 

 

Bankruptcy:  The rights and remedies available to holders of the Notes may be limited by and are subject to the 

provisions of federal bankruptcy laws, to other laws or equitable principles that may affect the enforcement of creditor’s 

rights, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations in legal remedies against exercise of 

judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal remedies against municipal corporations in the State 

of Iowa.  The various opinions of Bond Counsel to be delivered with respect to the Notes and the Resolution for the 

Notes, including the opinions of Bond Counsel, will be similarly qualified.  If the City were to file a petition under 

Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, the owners of the Notes could be prohibited from taking any steps to enforce their 

rights under the Resolution for the Notes.  In the event the City fails to comply with its covenants under the Resolution 

for the Notes or fails to make payments on the Notes, there can be no assurance of the availability of remedies adequate 

to protect the interests of the holders of the Notes. 

 

Suitability of Investment:  The interest rate borne by the Notes is intended to compensate the investor for assuming the 

risk of investing in the Notes.  Each prospective investor should carefully examine this Preliminary Official Statement 

and its own financial condition to make a judgment as to its ability to bear the economic risk of such an investment, 

and whether or not the Notes are an appropriate investment for such investor. 

 

  

208

Item 12.



 

12  

Tax Levy Procedures:  The Notes are general obligations of the City, payable from and secured by a continuing ad 

valorem tax levied against all of the property valuation within the City.  As part of the budgetary process each fiscal 

year, the City will have an obligation to request a debt service levy to be applied against all of the taxable property within 

the City.  A failure on the part of the City to make a timely levy request or a levy request by the City that is inaccurate 

or is insufficient to make full payments of the debt service of the Notes for a particular fiscal year may cause noteholders 

to experience a delay in the receipt of distributions of principal of and/or interest on the Notes.  In the event of a default 

in the payment of principal of or interest on the Notes, there is no provision for acceleration of maturity of the principal 

of the Notes.  Consequently, the remedies of the owners of the Notes (consisting primarily of an action in the nature of 

mandamus requiring the City and certain other public officials to perform the terms of the Resolution authorizing the 

Notes) may have to be enforced from year to year. 
 

Federal Funds Orders and State Funds Legislation: Various federal executive orders, and Iowa Code Chapter 27A 

(collectively “ICE Enforcement Initiatives”), impose requirements intended to ensure compliance with the federal 

immigration detainment processes.  The ICE Enforcement Initiatives impose various penalties for non-compliance, 

including the loss of state and/or federal funding under certain circumstances.  The loss of state and/or federal funds in 

any significant amount would negatively impact the City’s overall financial position and could affect its 

rating.  However, the Notes are secured by a debt service levy upon real property in the jurisdictional limits of the City 

and are not secured by state or federal funds.  See “PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE NOTES” herein.  
 

DTC-Beneficial Owners:  Beneficial Owners of the Notes may experience some delay in the receipt of distributions of 

principal of and interest on the Notes since such distributions will be forwarded by the Registrar to DTC and DTC will 

credit such distributions to the accounts of the Participants which will, thereafter, credit them to the accounts of the 

Beneficial Owner either directly or indirectly through Indirect Participants.  Neither the City nor the Registrar will have 

any responsibility or obligation to assure any such notice or payment is forwarded by DTC to any Participants or by any 

Participant to any Beneficial Owner. 
 

In addition, since transactions in the Notes can be effected only through DTC Participants, Indirect Participants and 

certain banks, the ability of a Beneficial Owner to pledge the Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in the 

DTC system, or otherwise to take actions in respect of such Notes, may be limited due to lack of a physical certificate.  

Beneficial Owners will be permitted to exercise the rights of registered owners only indirectly through DTC and the 

Participants.  See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE” herein. 
 

Summary:  The foregoing is intended only as a summary of certain risk factors attendant to an investment in the Notes.  

In order for potential investors to identify risk factors and make an informed investment decision, potential investors 

should become thoroughly familiar with this entire Preliminary Official Statement and the Appendices hereto to make a 

judgment as to whether the Notes are an appropriate investment. 
 

RATING 
 

The City has requested a rating on the Notes from Moody’s. The City’s outstanding general obligation long-term debt 

is rated ‘Aa1’ by Moody’s. The existing ratings on long-term debt reflect only the view of the rating agency 

and any explanation of the significance of such rating may only be obtained from Moody’s. There is no assurance 

that such rating will continue for any period of time or that it will not be revised or withdrawn. Any revision or 

withdrawal of the rating may have an effect on the market price of the Notes. 
 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 
 

The City has retained PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Des Moines, Iowa, as Municipal Advisor in connection with 

the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement for the issuance of the Notes. In preparing the Preliminary 

Official Statement, the Municipal Advisor has relied on government officials, and other sources to provide accurate 

information for disclosure purposes. The Municipal Advisor is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken 

to make, an independent verification of the information provided by the City, or to assume responsibility for the 

accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement. PFM 

Financial Advisors LLC is an independent advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading 

or distributing municipal securities or other public securities. 

209

Item 12.



 

13  

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
 

The City will covenant in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the benefit of the owners and beneficial owners of 

the Notes to provide annually certain financial information and operating data relating to the City (the “Annual 

Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events.  The Annual Report is to be filed by 

the City not later than two hundred seventy (270) days after the close of each fiscal year, commencing with the Fiscal 

Year ending June 30, 2020, with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, at its internet repository named 

“Electronic Municipal Market Access” (“EMMA”).  The notices of events, if any, are also to be filed with EMMA.  See 

APPENDIX D – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.  The specific nature of the information 

to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of events, and the manner in which such materials are to be filed, 

are summarized in APPENDIX D – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.  These covenants 

have been made in order to assist the Purchaser in complying with section (b)(5) of the Rule. 

 

In accordance with the reporting requirements of paragraph (f)(3) of the Rule, within the past five years, the 

City inadvertently failed to timely cross reference the annual operating and data tables for Fiscal Year 2015-16 included 

within its timely filed Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and did not file a notice of late filing in connection 

with this occurrence. 

 

Breach of the undertakings will not constitute a default or an “Event of Default” under the Notes or the Resolution 

for the Notes.  A broker or dealer is to consider a known breach of the undertakings, however, before recommending 

the purchase or sale of the Notes in the secondary market.  Thus, a failure on the part of the City to observe the 

undertakings may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Notes and their market price. 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019 is reproduced in 

APPENDIX C .  The City’s certified public accountant has not consented to distribution of the audited financial 

statements and has not undertaken added review of their presentation.  Further information regarding financial 

performance and copies of the City’s prior Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports may be obtained from the 

City’s Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisor LLC. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

The City has authorized the distribution of this Preliminary Official Statement for use in connection with the initial 

sale of the Notes.  I have reviewed the information contained within the Preliminary Official Statement prepared on 

behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Des Moines, Iowa, and to the best of my 

knowledge, information and belief, said Preliminary Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement of a 

material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements 

made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading regarding the issuance of 

$3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020. 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

/s/ Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

210

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

The $3,430,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2020 are general obligations of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) for which the City will pledge its power to levy direct ad valorem taxes 

against all taxable property within the City without limitation as to rate or amount to the repayment of the Notes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 

 

 

211

Item 12.



A-1 

 

 

CITY PROPERTY VALUES 
 

IOWA PROPERTY VALUATIONS 
 

In compliance with Section 441.21 of the Code of Iowa, the State Director of Revenue annually directs the county 

auditors to apply prescribed statutory percentages to the assessments of certain categories of real property.  The 2019 

final Actual Values were adjusted by the Black Hawk County Auditor.  The reduced values, determined after the 

application of rollback percentages, are the Taxable Values subject to tax levy.  For assessment year 2019, the taxable 

value rollback rate was 55.0743% of actual value for residential property; 81.4832% of actual value for agricultural 

property; 71.2500% of the actual value for multiresidential property; and 90% of actual value for commercial and 

industrial property.  No adjustment was ordered for utility property because its assessed value did not increase enough 

to qualify for reduction.  Utility property is limited to an 8% annual growth. 

 

The Legislature’s intent has been to limit the growth of statewide taxable valuations for the specific classes of property 

to 3% annually.  Political subdivisions whose taxable values are thus reduced or are unusually low in growth are 

allowed to appeal the valuations to the State Appeal Board, in order to continue to fund present services. 
 

PROPERTY VALUATIONS (1/1/2019 Valuations for Taxes payable July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021) 
 

 
 

100% Actual Value 

Taxable Value 

(With Rollback) 

Residential $2,540,626,957 $1,397,795,292 

Commercial 520,106,304 464,764,342 

Industrial 35,102,230 29,563,092 

Multiresidential 96,474,406 68,733,376 

Railroads 1,950,181 1,755,163 

Utilities w/o Gas & Electric         3,982,878       3,982,878 

Gross valuation $3,198,242,956 $1,966,594,143 

Less military exemption      (2,874,304)     (2,874,304) 

Net valuation $3,195,368,652 $1,963,719,839 

TIF increment (used to compute debt service 
  

levies and constitutional debt limit) $154,030,997 1)
 $138,806,175 1)

 

Taxed Separately 

  

Ag. Land & Buildings $7,317,830 $5,962,806 

Gas & Electric Utilities $60,450,915 $4,337,847 

1) Reduced by $42,596 military exemption. 

 

2019 GROSS TAXABLE VALUATION BY CLASS OF PROPERTY 1)
 

 

 
Taxable Valuation Percent Total 

Residential $1,397,795,292 70.92% 

Multiresidential 68,733,376 3.49% 

Commercial, Industrial, and Utilities 498,310,312 25.28% 

Gas & Electric Utilities 4,337,847 0.22% 

Railroads    1,755,163    0.09% 

Total Gross Taxable Valuation $1,970,931,990 100.00% 

1)  Excludes Taxable TIF Increment and Ag. Land & Buildings. 

 
 

  

212

Item 12.



A-2 

 

 

TREND OF VALUATIONS 

Assessment 

Year 

Payable 

Fiscal Year 

 

100% Actual Valuation 

Taxable Valuation 

(With Rollback) 

Taxable 

TIF Increment 
     

2015 2016-17 2,984,528,716 1,574,489,248 286,407,647 

2016 2017-18 3,038,327,081 1,755,047,594 160,384,626 

2017 2018-19 3,166,929,337 1,837,202,491 135,715,774 

2018 2019-20 3,267,845,904 1,955,185,106 104,565,502 

2019 2020-21 3,417,168,394 1,968,057,686 138,806,175 

 

The 100% Actual Valuation, before rollback and after reduction of military exemption, includes Ag. Land, Ag. 

Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and Gas & Electric Utilities.  The Taxable Valuation, with the rollback and after 

the reduction of military exemption, includes Gas & Electric Utilities and excludes Ag. Land, Ag. Buildings and 

Taxable TIF Increment.  Iowa cities certify operating levies against Taxable Valuation excluding the Taxable TIF 

Increment and debt service levies are certified against Taxable Valuations including the Taxable TIF Increment-

Urban but excluding Taxable TIF Increment-Ag. 

LARGER TAXPAYERS 

Set forth in the following tables are the persons or entities which represent the larger taxpayers within the boundaries 

of the City, as provided by the Black Hawk County Auditor’s office.  No independent investigation has been made of 

and no representation is made herein as to the financial condition of any of the taxpayers listed below or that such 

taxpayers will continue to maintain their status as major taxpayers in the City.  The City’s mill levy is uniformly 

applicable to all of the properties included in the table, and thus taxes expected to be received by the City from such 

taxpayers will be in proportion to the assessed valuations of the properties.  The total tax bill for each of the properties 

is dependent upon the mill levies of the other taxing entities which overlap the properties. 

 

 

Taxpayer 1) 

 

Type of Property/Business 

1/1/2018 

   Taxable Valuation 2) 3) 

   

Target Corporation Commercial/Industrial/Distribution $69,138,954 

Midland Tarkenton LLC Commercial 14,029,290 

Prime RE 2 LLC Commercial 13,588,155 

Wal Mart Re Business Trust  Commercial 12,642,237 

Tailwind Cedar Falls Inc. Commercial 10,820,093 

Menard Inc. Commercial 10,627,884 

Martin Realty Company LLC Commercial 10,392,012 

WB CF Assoc LTD Partners III Multiresidential 9,768,429 

R and N Investment Prop LC Commercial 9,494,964 

Goldenstar Apartments LLP Commercial 9,230,506 

 

1) This list represents some of the larger taxpayers in the City, not necessarily the 10 largest taxpayers. 

2) The 1/1/2018 taxable valuations listed represent only those valuations associated with the title holder and may not 

necessarily represent the entire taxable valuation. 

3) The 1/1/2019 taxable valuations will not be available from the Black Hawk County Auditor’s office until mid-

August 2020. 

 

Source:  Black Hawk County Auditor’s Office. 

213

Item 12.



A-3 

 

 

PROPERTY TAX LEGISLATION 

From time to time, legislative proposals are pending in Congress and the Iowa General Assembly that would, if 

enacted, alter or amend one or more of the property tax matters described herein.  It cannot be predicted whether or 

in what forms any of such proposals, either pending or that may be introduced, may be enacted, and there can be no 

assurance that such proposals will not apply to valuation, assessment or levy procedures for taxes levied by the City 

or have an adverse impact on the future tax collections of the City.  Purchasers of the Notes should consult their tax 

advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation.  The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel 

are based upon existing legislation as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Notes and Bond Counsel has expressed 

no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any pending federal or state tax legislation. 

 

During the 2019 legislative session, the Iowa General Assembly enacted Senate File 634 (the “2019 Act”).  This bill 

modifies the process for hearing and approval of the total maximum property tax dollars under certain levies in the 

City's budget, including levies for the General Fund, the Emergency Fund, Trust and Agency Funds for pensions, 

insurance, transit, civic centers, certain bridges, sanitary disposal, and emergency management.  The bill also includes 

a provision that will require the affirmative vote of 2/3 of the City Council when the maximum property tax dollars 

under these levies exceed an amount determined under a prescribed formula.  The 2019 Act does not change the 

process for hearing and approval of the Debt Service Levy pledged for repayment of the Notes.  It is too early to 

evaluate the affect the 2019 Act will have on the overall financial position of the City or its ability to fund essential 

services. 

 

During the 2013 legislative session, the Iowa General Assembly enacted Senate File 295 (the “2013 Act”).  Among 

other things, the Act (i) reduced the maximum annual taxable value growth percent, due to revaluation of existing 

residential and agricultural property to 3%, (ii) assigned a “rollback” (the percentage of a property’s value that is 

subject to tax) to commercial, industrial and railroad property of 90%, (iii) created a new property tax classification 

for multi-residential properties (apartments, nursing homes, assisted living facilities and certain other rental property) 

and assigned a declining rollback percentage to such properties for each year until the residential rollback percentage 

is reached in the 2022 assessment year, after which the rollback percentage for such properties will be equal to the 

residential rollback percentage each assessment year, and (iv) exempted a specified portion of the assessed value of 

telecommunication properties. 

 

The 2013 Act includes a standing appropriation to replace some of the tax revenues lost by local governments, 

including tax increment districts, resulting from the new rollback for commercial and industrial property.  The 

appropriation does not replace losses to local governments resulting from the 2013 Act’s provisions that reduce the 

annual revaluation growth limit for residential and agricultural properties to 3%, the gradual transition for multi-

residential properties from the residential rollback percentage (currently 53% of market value), or the reduction in the 

percentage of telecommunications property that is subject to taxation. 

 

The City has not attempted to quantify the financial impact of the 2013 Act’s provisions on the City’s future 

operations. 

 

Notwithstanding any decrease in property tax revenues that may result from the 2013 Act or the 2019 Act, Iowa Code 

section 76.2 provides that when an Iowa political subdivision issues Notes, "the governing authority of these political 

subdivisions before issuing bonds shall, by resolution, provide for the assessment of an annual levy upon all the 

taxable property in the political subdivision sufficient to pay the interest and principal of the notes within a period 

named not exceeding twenty years. A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed with the county auditor or the 

auditors of the counties in which the political subdivision is located; and the filing shall make it a duty of the auditors 

to enter annually this levy for collection from the taxable property within the boundaries of the political subdivision 

until funds are realized to pay the bonds in full." 

 

From time to time, other legislative proposals may be considered by the Iowa General Assembly that would, if enacted, 

alter or amend one or more of the property tax matters described in this Preliminary Official Statement.  It cannot be 

predicted whether or in what forms any of such proposals may be enacted, and there can be no assurance that such 

proposals will not apply to valuation, assessment or levy procedures for the levy of taxes by the City. 

214

Item 12.



A-4 

 

 

CITY INDEBTEDNESS 

DEBT LIMIT 

Article XI, Section 3 of the State of Iowa Constitution limits the amount of debt outstanding at any time of any county, 

municipality or other political subdivision to no more than 5% of the actual value of all taxable property within the 

corporate limits, as taken from the last state and county tax list.  The debt limit for the City, based on its 2019 valuation 

currently applicable to the Fiscal Year 2020-21 is as follows: 

 

 2019 Actual Valuation of Property $3,417,168,394 

 Legal Debt Limit of 5%  0.05 

  Legal Debt Limit $170,858,420 

 Less:  G. O. Debt Subject to Debt Limit  (15,100,000) * 

 Less:  Developer Rebate Agreements      (1,182,313) 1) 2) 

 Net Debt Limit $154,576,107 * 
 

1) As reported by the City pursuant to development agreements for urban renewal projects under the authority of Iowa Code 

Chapter 403 or other intergovernmental agreements (under chapter 28E, etc.).  The Iowa Supreme Court has not formally 

ruled on the question of whether contracts to rebate the tax increment generated by a particular development constitutes 

indebtedness of a City for constitutional debt limit purposes.  The amount above includes rebate agreements that may not be 

debt.  Some development agreements are subject to the right of annual appropriation by the City, thereby limiting the extent 

of possible debt to only amounts currently due and appropriated in the current fiscal year.  Amounts payable under a 

particular development agreement may not constitute legal indebtedness, but are memorialized in the table below to 

conservatively state the City’s possible financial exposure.  Payment of future installments may be dependent upon 

undertakings by the developers, which may have not yet occurred.  The City actively pursues opportunities consistent with 

the development goals of its various urban renewal plans, which may be amended from time to time, and the City may enter 

into additional development agreements committing to additional rebate incentives in calendar year 2020 or thereafter.  

Includes TIF rebate agreement payments for FY 2020-21 which were appropriated by the City Council; and subject to the 

Debt Limit.  For additional information see “OTHER DEBT: Tax Increment Rebate Agreements” table herein. 

2) Includes one TIF rebate agreement payments for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 which are still outstanding and subject to the 

Debt Limit. 

DIRECT DEBT 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Property Taxes (Includes the Notes) 

 

 

Date 

of Issue 

 

Original 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

Final 

Maturity 

Principal 

Outstanding 

As of 7/21/20 
      

7/16 $2,865,000 Capital Improvements 6/26 $1,665,000 
7/18 2,860,000 Capital Improvements 6/28 2,420,000 
7/20 3,430,000* Capital Improvements 6/30    3,430,000* 

      

Subtotal    $7,515,000* 
 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Tax Increment Revenues 
 

 

Date 

of Issue 

 

Original 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

Final 

Maturity 

Principal 

Outstanding 

As of 7/21/20 
      

12/09A $1,560,000 Capital Improvements 6/20 $0 1) 
 

1) The 2021 through 2024 maturities were redeemed on June 1, 2020 with cash on hand. 

 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 
  

215

Item 12.



A-5 

 

 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Sewer Utility Revenues 

 

Date 

of Issue 

 

Original 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

Final 

Maturity 

Principal 

Outstanding 

As of 7/21/20 
      

7/16 $6,790,000 Capital Improvements 6/28 $4,985,000  
7/18 2,160,000 Capital Improvements 6/28    1,825,000  

      

Subtotal    $6,810,000  
 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Storm Water Utility Revenues 
 

 

Date 

of Issue 

 

Original 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

Final 

Maturity 

Principal 

Outstanding 

As of 7/21/20 
      

7/18 $920,000 Capital Improvements 6/28 $775,000  
 

Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt $15,100,000* 

Annual Fiscal Year Debt Service Payments 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Property Taxes (Includes the Notes) 

 

 Current Outstanding Notes Total Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 

 

Principal 

Principal & 

Interest 

 

Principal* 

Principal & 

Interest* 

 

Principal* 

Principal & 

Interest* 
       

2020-21 $520,000 $664,150 $130,000 $202,478 $650,000 $866,628 

2021-22 535,000 661,100 335,000 416,243 870,000 1,077,343 

2022-23 555,000 662,450 340,000 413,705 895,000 1,076,155 

2023-24 575,000 662,950 350,000 416,055 925,000 1,079,005 

2024-25 595,000 662,600 355,000 413,180 950,000 1,075,780 

2025-26 615,000 661,400 365,000 415,015 980,000 1,076,415 

2026-27 340,000 367,600 375,000 416,255 715,000 783,855 

2027-28     350,000 364,000 385,000 416,880 735,000 780,880 

2028-29   390,000 411,870 390,000 411,870 

2029-30        405,000 416,340      405,000 416,340 
       

Total $4,085,000  $3,430,000*  $7,515,000*  
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Sewer Utility Revenues 
 

 Current Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 

 

Principal 

Principal & 

Interest 
   

2020-21 $775,000 $958,350 

2021-22 790,000 952,000 

2022-23 810,000 950,200 

2023-24 840,000 957,700 

2024-25 865,000 959,150 

2025-26 890,000 959,800 

2026-27 910,000 957,100 

2027-28      930,000 953,800 

Total $6,810,000  

216

Item 12.



A-6 

 

 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Storm Water Utility Revenues 
 

 Current Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 

 

Principal 

Principal & 

Interest 
   

2020-21 $80,000 $115,500 

2021-22 85,000 116,500 

2022-23 90,000 117,250 

2023-24 95,000 117,750 

2024-25 100,000 118,000 

2025-26 105,000 118,000 

2026-27 110,000 118,800 

2027-28   110,000 114,400 

Total $775,000  

OTHER DEBT 

Tax Increment Rebate Agreements 

  Estimated Total Estimated 

Obligation 

Subject to Debt 

Limit as of 7/21/20 

 Total Estimated Final 

TIF Rebate Obligation Outstanding Payment 

Agreements as of 7/21/20 Date 
     

Linderbaum Real Estate, LLC $55,620 6/30/24 $13,905 1) 

RBJB, LLC (Allen Occ. Health) 122,750 6/30/23 96,200 1) 2) 

River Place Properties 8,160,000 6/30/27 960,000 1) 

Cedar Falls Development Group 38,400 6/30/22 19,200 1) 

CV Commercial, LLC 24,000 6/30/21 24,000 1) 

CV Commercial, LLC 9,600 6/30/21 9,600 1) 

Six Kids, LLC 70,409 6/30/24 28,163 1) 

Martin Realty Company II, LLC 25,166 6/30/25 8,390 1) 

Six Kids, LLC 141,041 6/30/27 0 1) 

Zheng Development, LLC 91,420 6/30/24 22,855 1) 

Arabella, LLC 330,642 6/30/26 0 1) 

Standard Distribution Co. 81,615 6/30/25 0 1) 

SDC Real Estate, LLC 59,739 6/30/25                  0 1) 

Total   $1,182,313 

 

 

1) TIF rebate agreement payments for FY 2020-21 which were appropriated by the City Council; and subject to the Debt Limit. 

2) TIF rebate agreement payments for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 that were appropriated by the City Council but are still outstanding. 

SEWER UTILITY REVENUE DEBT 

The City has revenue debt payable solely from net revenues of the Sewer Utility as follows: 

 

 

Date 

of Issue 

 

Original 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

Final 

Maturity 

Principal 

Outstanding 

As of 7/21/20 
      

8/11 $6,998,104 Capital Improvements (SRF Loan) 6/33 $5,038,000  
 

  

217

Item 12.



A-7 

 

 

UTILITY REVENUE DEBT 

Cedar Falls Utilities has revenue debt payable solely from the net revenues of the Electric utilities as follows: 

 

 

Date 

of Issue 

 

Original 

Amount 

 

 

Purpose 

 

Final 

Maturity 

Principal 

Outstanding 

As of 7/21/20 
      

6/15 $26,395,000 Electric Refunding 12/26 $17,145,000  

INDIRECT GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT 

    Taxing District 

1/1/2019 

Taxable Valuation 1) 

Portion of  

Taxable Valuation  

within the City 

Percent 

In City   G.O. Debt 2) 

City's 

Proportionate 

Share 
      

Black Hawk County $6,146,939,107 $2,112,826,667  34.37% $19,275,000 $6,624,818 

Cedar Falls CSD 2,220,778,814 2,052,067,069  92.40% 28,220,000 26,075,280 

Hudson CSD 233,183,188 8,852,457  3.80% 0 0 

Waterloo CSD 3,066,828,942 51,907,141  1.69% 0 0 

Hawkeye Comm. College 10,806,011,093 2,112,826,667  19.55% 15,750,000 3)    3,079,125 
      

City’s Share of Total Overlapping Debt    $35,779,223 
 

1) Taxable Valuation excludes military exemption and includes Ag. Land & Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and all Utilities. 

2) Includes general obligation bonds, PPEL notes, certificates of participation and new jobs training certificates. 

3) Does not includes Series 2020-1 New Jobs Training Certifications. 

DEBT RATIOS 

 

 

 

 

  G.O. Debt 

Debt/Actual 

Market Value 

($3,417,168,394) 1) 

 

Debt/39,260 

Population 2) 
    

Total General Obligation Debt $15,100,000 * 0.44%* $384.62* 

   Less: G. O. Debt Paid by Enterprise Funds 3)  (7,585,000)*   
    

Net G.O. Debt Paid by Taxes and Tax Increment $7,515,000 * 0.22%* $191.42* 
    

City's Share of Overlapping Debt  $35,779,223 1.05% $911.34 
 

1)  Based on the City’s 1/1/2019 100% Actual Valuation; includes Ag Land, Ag Buildings, all Utilities and TIF Increment. 

2) Population based on the City’s 2010 U.S. Census. 

3) Includes general obligation debt paid by sewer and storm water utility revenues. 

 

* Preliminary; subject to change 

 

  

218

Item 12.



A-8 

 

 

LEVIES AND TAX COLLECTIONS 

  Collected During Percent 

Fiscal Year Levy Collection Year Collected 
    

2015-16 $25,141,093 $25,030,814 99.56% 

2016-17 25,687,076 25,592,517 99.63% 

2017-18 24,209,386 24,161,506 99.80% 

2018-19 24,645,012 24,568,321   99.69% 

2019-20 24,481,564 ---------In Process of Collection--------- 

 

Collections include delinquent taxes from all prior years.  Taxes in Iowa are delinquent each October 1 and April 1 and 

a late payment penalty of 1% per month of delinquency is enforced as of those dates.  If delinquent taxes are not paid, 

the property may be offered at the regular tax sale on the third Monday of June following the delinquency date.  

Purchasers at the tax sale must pay an amount equal to the taxes, special assessments, interest and penalties due on the 

property and funds so received are applied to taxes.  A property owner may redeem from the regular tax sale but, failing 

redemption within three years, the tax sale purchaser is entitled to a deed, which in general conveys the title free and 

clear of all liens except future tax installments. 

 

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor’s office. 

TAX RATES 

 FY 2015-16 

$/$1,000 

FY 2016-17 

$/$1,000 

FY 2017-18 

$/$1,000 

FY 2018-19 

$/$1,000 

FY 2019-20 

$/$1,000 

Black Hawk County 6.74817 6.44577 6.41507 6.69303 6.30363 

City of Cedar Falls 11.52796 11.21967 11.13476 11.22169 10.95250 

Cedar Falls Community School District 12.44447 12.76973 14.27271 13.94694 13.84612 

Hawkeye Community College 0.95088 0.95088 0.97071 1.01703 1.11803 

Assessor/Appraiser 0.29967 0.28545 0.26966 0.25005 0.22093 

Agriculture Ext. Service 0.09603 0.09352 0.09148 0.09346 0.09315 

State of Iowa   0.00330   0.00330   0.00310   0.00290   0.00280 

Total Tax Rate City Resident 32.07048 31.76832 33.15749 33.22510 32.53716 
 

LEVY LIMITS 

A city’s general fund tax levy is limited to $8.10 per $1,000 of taxable value, with provision for an additional $0.27 per 

$1,000 levy for an emergency fund which can be used for general fund purposes (Code of Iowa, Chapter 384, Division I).  

Cities may exceed the $8.10 limitation upon authorization by a special levy election.  Further, there are limited special 

purpose levies which may be certified outside of the above described levy limits (Code of Iowa, Section 384.12).  The 

amount of the City’s general fund levy subject to the $8.10 limitation is $8.10 for Fiscal Year 2020-21.  The City does 

levy for the operation and maintenance of publicly owned transit; liability, property and self-insurance costs; support of 

a local emergency management committee; instrumental/vocal music groups; support of the public library; and employee 

benefits in addition to the $8.10 general fund limit as authorized by law.  Currently, the City does not levy for an 

emergency fund.  Debt service levies are not limited.

219

Item 12.



A-9 

 

 

FUNDS ON HAND (Cash and Investments as of March 31, 2020) 

General $3,974,735.74  

Street Construction 9,502,154.05 

Local Street Repair 15,071,601.41 

Cable Television 2,069,666.36 

Parking Meter 855,475.91 

Visitors & Tourism Services 871,754.47 

Community Center & Senior Services (38,429.73) 1) 

Police Forfeiture & D.A.R.E. 13,189.07 

Police Retirement 2,599,408.36 

Fire Retirement 3,407,375.03 

Library Reserve 35,764.35 

Softball Player 198,909.70 

Golf Capital 505,592.40 

Rec. Center Capital 1,789,663.62 

Hearst Center Capital 346,462.24 

Debt Service 2,300,097.29 

Washington Park/Par 3 32,837.30 

FEMA 1,707,993.70 

Flood Reserve Fund 1,454,542.01 

Street Improvement Fund (3,853,589.56) 2) 

TIF Bond Fund (8,258,876.69) 3) 

2016 Bond Fund (1,344,814.97) 4) 

2018 Bond Fund 704,105.43 

2020 Bond Fund (292,567.98) 5) 

Capital Projects and Equipment 21,806,876.07 

Parkade Renovation 14,930.81 

Sidewalk Assessment (27,218.62) 6) 

Economic Development 5,882,004.25 

Storm Water Bond 713,671.07 

2008 Sewer Bond Fund 0.00 

2006 Sewer Bond Fund 917,441.28 

Refuse 4,991,293.71 

Sewer Rental 11,369,442.57 

Storm Water Utility   1,790,691.03 

Data Processing 1,359,503.30 

Health Insurance 3,613,188.41 

Health Severance 342,499.16 

Vehicle Maintenance 2,969,441.80 

Payroll 2,833,686.15 

Workmen’s Compensation  1,370,109.70 

L.T.D. Insurance 367,584.22 

Liability Insurance 1,725,803.19 

Trust & Agency 36,651.91 

Greenwood Perpetual Care 242,612.43 

Fairview Perpetual Care 154,378.15 

Hillside Perpetual Care 48,402.75 

Sartori Memorial Hospital 9,160,605.37 

Section 8 Housing Vouchers 581,751.40 

Block Grant       66,467.38 

Total Cash & Investments $105,984,867.00 
 

1) Fund will be repaid by future budgeted transfers from General Fund. 

2) Fund will be repaid by future budgeted transfer from street fund. 

3) Fund will be repaid by future TIF revenues. 

4) Fund will be repaid by future grant reimbursements. 

5) Fund will be repaid by future bond proceeds. 

6) Repaid by future assessments.  

220

Item 12.



A-10 

 

 

THE CITY 

CITY GOVERNMENT 
 

Incorporated in 1854, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is governed by a seven member City Council under a Mayor-

Council form of government, with an appointed City Administrator.  One Council Member is elected from each 

of the City’s five wards.  Two City Council members and the Mayor are elected at large.  The office of Mayor is 

a full-time position.  The Mayor is the presiding officer of the City Council and coordinates the City Council’s 

work and that of City officials.  The City Administrator is appointed by the City Council and serves as the chief 

administrative officer. 

 

Various City officials hold administrative responsibility. Department Directors of Finance & Business 

Operations, Community Development, Public Works and Public Safety Services have management and 

administrative responsibilities for their respective departments and report to the City Administrator. An appointed 

City Clerk is the custodian of City records and reports to the Director of Finance & Business Operations.  The 

Controller/City Treasurer has financial, accounting and budget control responsibilities and reports to the Director 

of Finance & Business Operations. 

 

The City uses a committee system to study routine problems more efficiently and comprehensively.  All the City 

Council Members serve on the Committee of the Whole and report their findings, conclusions and 

recommendations to the Council as a whole. Many other Boards and Commissions also serve City needs, including 

a nine member Planning and Zoning Commission which acts in advisory capacity to the City Council. 

EMPLOYEES AND PENSIONS  

The City has 212 full-time employees, and 104 part-time or seasonal employees, excluding Cedar Falls Utilities 

personnel.  In addition, the City has a public safety department with 77 sworn fire, police and public safety officers. 

The City participates in two statewide employee retirement systems, the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System 

(“IPERS”) and the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa (“MFPRSI”).  The State of Iowa administers 

IPERS and a nine-member board of trustees governs the MFPRSI.  Though separate and apart from state government, 

the MFPRSI board is authorized by state legislature, which also establishes by statute the pension and disability 

benefits and the system’s funding mechanism.  All full-time employees must participate in either IPERS or MFPRSI. 

 

Iowa Public Employees Retirement System: The City contributes to IPERS, which is a cost-sharing multiple-

employer, contributory defined benefit public employee retirement system administered by IPERS.  IPERS provides 

retirement and death benefits, which are established by state statute, to plan members and beneficiaries.  IPERS is 

authorized to adjust the total contribution rate up or down each year, by no more than 1 percentage point, based upon 

the actuarially required contribution rate.  The City’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2018 

and 2019 as shown below equal the required contributions for each year. 

 

 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 

IPERS City Contribution $831,947 $846,190 $920,276 

 

The IPERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is available on the IPERS website, 

https://www.ipers.org/financial-and-investment, or by contacting IPERS at 7401 Register Drive P.O. Box 9117, Des 

Moines, IA 50321.  However, the information presented in such financial reports or on such websites is not 

incorporated into this Preliminary Official Statement by any references. 
 

Bond Counsel, the City and the Municipal Advisor undertake no responsibility for and make no representations as to 

the accuracy or completeness of the information available from the IPERS discussed above or included on the IPERS 

website, including, but not limited to, updates of such information on the State Auditor’s website or links to other 

Internet sites accessed through the IPERS website. 

 

221

Item 12.



A-11 

 

 

Pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 68, the City reported a liability of 

$7,971,544 within its CAFR as of June 30, 2019 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net 

pension liability is the amount by which the total actuarial liability exceeds the pension plan’s net assets or fiduciary 

net position (essentially the market value) available for paying benefits.  The net pension liability was measured as of 

June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 

valuation as of that date.  The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s share of 

contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating employers.  At June 30, 2018, 

the City’s collective proportion was 0.1259677% which was an increase of 0.0012919% from its proportion measured 

as of June 30, 2017. 

 

The City cannot predict the levels of funding that will be required in the future as any IPERS unfunded pension benefit 

obligation could be reflected in future years in higher contribution rates.  The investment of moneys, assumptions 

underlying the same and the administration of IPERS is not subject to the direction of the City.  Thus, it is not possible 

to predict, control or prepare for future unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities of IPERS (“UAALs”).  The UAAL is 

the difference between total actuarially accrued liabilities and actuarially calculated assets available for the payment 

of such benefits.  The UAAL is based on assumptions as to retirement age, mortality, projected salary increases 

attributed to inflation, across-the-board raises and merit raises, adjustments, cost-of-living adjustments, valuation of 

current assets, investment return and other matters.  Such UAAL could be substantial in the future, requiring 

significantly increased contributions from the City which could affect other budgetary matters. 

 

For additional information on the City’s Pension Plans, including information related to deferred outflows and inflows 

of resources related to pensions, expenses, actuarial assumption, discount rate and discount rate sensitivities refer to 

Note F beginning on page 71 of the City’s June 30, 2019 CAFR contained as APPENDIX C of this Preliminary 

Official Statement. 

 

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa:  The City contributes to MFPRSI, which is a cost-sharing 

multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  MFPRSI provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan 

members and beneficiaries.  Benefit provisions are established by state statute, and vest after four years of credited 

service. 

 

MFPRSI plan members are required to contribute a percentage of their annual covered salary, and the City is 

required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of 

plan members and the City are established and may be amended by state statute.  The City’s contributions to 

MFPRSI for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2017, 2018 and 2019 as shown below equal the required contributions 

for each year. 
 

 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 

MFPRSI City Contribution $1,277,100 $1,327,264 $1,469,237 

 
The MFPRSI’s Financial Statements are available on the MFPRSI website, http://www.mfprsi.org/about-

mfprsi/publications/, or by contacting MFPRSI at 7155 Lake Drive, Suite 201, West Des Moines, IA 50266.  However, 

the information presented in such financial reports or on such websites is not incorporated into this Preliminary 

Official Statement by any references. 
 

Bond Counsel, the City and the Municipal Advisor undertake no responsibility for and make no representations as to 

the accuracy or completeness of the information available from MFPRSI discussed above or included on the MFPRSI 

websites, including, but not limited to, updates of such information on the State Auditor’s website or links to other 

Internet sites accessed through the MFPRSI websites. 

 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68, the City reported a liability of $10,587,346 with its CAFR as of June 30, 2019 

for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability is the amount by which the total 

actuarial liability exceeds the pension plan’s net assets or fiduciary net position (essentially the market value) available 

for paying benefits.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used 

to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The City’s proportion 

222

Item 12.



A-12 

 

 

of the net pension liability was based on the City’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 

contributions of all MFPRSI participating employers.  At June 30, 2018, the City’s collective proportion was 

1.778180% which was an increase of 0.106635% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 
 

For additional information regarding the City’s Pension Plans refer to Note F beginning on page 71 of the City’s 

June 30, 2019 CAFR contained as APPENDIX C of this Preliminary Official Statement. 

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description: The City operates a single-employer health benefit plan, which provides self-insured medical, 

prescription drug and life benefits for all full-time active and retired employees and their eligible dependents.  Group 

insurance benefits are established under Iowa Code Chapter 509A.13.  No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets 

the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.  The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report. 

 

Eligible retires receive health care coverage through the same plan that is available to active employees.  To be eligible 

for  these benefits, participants must be receive a pension benefit from IPERS, receiving a Social Security Disability 

Benefit, or retired under Code Chapter 411 of the Iowa code.  There were 21 retirees participating in the plan as of 

June 30, 2019.  Retirees pay the same premium for the health benefit plan as active employees, which results in an 

implicit subsidy and an OPEB liability. 

 

Funding Policy:  The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the City.  

The City currently finances the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The majority of expenditures are paid for out 

of the General Fund. 

 

As of June 30, 2019, the City’s OPEB Liability was $2,751,393.  The following table represents the change in the 

total OPEB liability from the prior year: 

 

Total OPEB liability beginning of year $2,681,599 

Change for year:  

   Service Cost 125,359 

   Interest 105,512 

   Benefit payments (161,077) 

      Net Changes 69,764 

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $2,751,393 

 

For additional information on the City’s OPEB, refer to Note G Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) beginning 
on page 81 of the City’s June 30, 2019 CAFR contained as APPENDIX C of this Preliminary Official Statement 

UNION CONTRACTS 

The City currently has negotiated contracts with the three employee groups as shown in the table below. 

  

 Contract  

Employee Group Expiration Date % Annual Increase 
   

Teamsters – Parks & Public Works 06/30/22 No less than 2%, no more than 3% 

Teamsters – Police 06/30/22 No less than 2%, no more than 3% 

Firefighters Association 06/30/22 No less than 2%, no more than 3% 

   

 

  

223

Item 12.



A-13 

 

 

INSURANCE 

 

The City's insurance coverage is as follows: 

 

Type of Insurance Coverage 
  

Property  $130,617,186 Total Insured Values 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 

Public Risk General Liability 

 
$7,000,000 Limit 

$10,000,000 General Aggregate 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 
Employee Benefits Liability 

 
Limit Included in GL Limit  

Aggregate Included in GL Limit 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 
Business Auto Liability 

  
$7,000,000 Limit 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 

Public Officials Liability 

 

 

$7,000,000 Limit 

$10,000,000 Aggregate 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 

Law Enforcement Coverage 

 

$7,000,000 Limit 

$10,000,000 Aggregate 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 
Employment Practices Liability 

 
$7,000,000 Limit 

$10,000,000 Aggregate 

$100,000 Self-Insured Retention 
Auto Physical Damage 

 
$13,376,194 Total Vehicle Values 

$10,000 Deductible  

Equipment Breakdown 

 
$100,000,000 Limit 

$2,500 Self-Insured Retention 

Excess Workers’ Compensation 

   
$1,000,000 Limit 

$1,000,000 Aggregate Limit 

$500,000 Retention 
Crime 

 

$500,000 Limit 

$10,000 Self-Insured Retention 
Cyber Liability 

 
 

 

$1,000,000 Limit 

$1,000,000 Aggregate 

$10,000 Self-Insured Retention 

 

 

  

224

Item 12.



A-14 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

LOCATION AND TRANSPORTATION 

The City, with a 2010 U.S. census population of 39,260 and a total land area of 29.1 square miles, is located adjacent 

to the City of Waterloo, Iowa.  The City is 105 miles northeast of Des Moines, Iowa, 192 miles south of Minneapolis, 

Minnesota and 275 miles west of Chicago, Illinois.  The City is accessible by U.S. Highways No. 20, 63 and 218 and 

State Highways No. 21, 57, 281 and 412.  Interstate Highway No. 380 links the City and the City of Waterloo, Iowa 

with the southeastern area of the State and connects with Interstate Highway No. 80.  Interstate Highway No. 35 is 

located about 65 miles west of the City.  Rail service is provided by the Chicago, Central and Pacific Railroad, the 

Chicago and North Western Transportation Company and the Iowa Northern Railroad.  Bus transportation is provided 

in the City by the Metropolitan Transit Authority and both in and out of state by three bus lines.  Commercial and 

charter air service is available at the Waterloo Municipal Airport. 

LARGER EMPLOYERS 

A representative list of larger employers in the City is as follows: 
 

Employer Type of Business Number of Employees 1) 
   

John Deere Product Eng. Center Manufacturer 5,000 2) 

MercyOne Medical Health Care Hospital & Clinics 2,893 2) 

University of Northern Iowa Post-secondary education 1,819  

Hy-Vee Food Stores Retail  1,719 2) 

Omega Cabinetry Ltd Manufacturer 994 2) 

Target Distribution Retail Distributor 840 

CBE Group Credit Services 515 

Cedar Falls Community School District Education 775 

The Western Home Elderly Housing/Care 668 

Area Education Agency 267 Education 650  

Martin Brothers Distribution Frozen Foods/Institutional Products 600 3) 

   

 

1) Number of employees includes all full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.  

2) Number of employees includes multiple locations in both Cedar Falls and Waterloo. 

3) Undetermined number of layoffs announced, effective March 2020 due to COVID-19.   
  

Source:  Company inquiries, March 2020.  The list is updated frequently as changes are identified and is not to be construed as 

a complete profile. 

 

U.S. CENSUS DATA 

Population Trend   

 1980 U.S. Census 36,310 

 1990 U.S. Census 34,298 

 2000 U.S. Census 36,145 

 2010 U.S. Census 39,260 

 
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau website. 

  

225

Item 12.



A-15 

 

 

BUILDING PERMITS 

City officials report the following construction activity as of March 31, 2020.  Building permits are reported on a 

fiscal year basis. 

 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Single Family Homes      

No. of new homes: 120 151 115 100 72 

Valuation: $28,077,051 $35,592,628 $28,949,644 $26,621,361 $19,213,588 

Multiple Family Dwellings      

No. of new buildings: 6 5 4 9 13 

Valuation: $11,004,500 $4,487,228 $772,680 $6,820,000 $3,690,000 

Dwelling Additions & Alterations      

No. of permits issued: 1,021 897 1,903 1062 617 

Valuation: $10,783,796 $9,091,145 $20,008,798 $10,828,324 $7,695,271 

Commercial/Industrial/Other      

No. of new buildings: 20 27 14 12 11 

Valuation: $56,731,610 $44,207,923 $41,669,362 $33,915,400 $18,381,452 

Commercial /Industrial /Other  

Additions & Alterations 

     

No. of permits issued: 129 130 156 138 92 

Valuation: $44,431,250 $20,072,244 $37,731,066 $24,422,897 $7,487,124 

      

Total Permits: 1,296 1,210 2,192 1,321 805 

Total Valuations: $151,028,207 $113,451,168 $129,131,550 $102,607,982 $56,467,435 

 

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 

  City of  

Cedar Falls 

Black Hawk 

County 

State of 

Iowa 
     

Annual Averages: 2016 3.1% 4.6% 3.6% 

 2017  2.5% 3.8% 3.1% 

 2018 2.0% 2.9% 2.6% 

 2019 2.1% 3.2% 2.7% 

 2020 (through March) 2.5% 4.1% 3.5% 
 

Source:  Iowa Workforce Development website. 

EDUCATION 

The Cedar Falls Community School District (the “District”) owns and operates seven elementary schools, two junior 

high schools, one alternative high school and one senior high school, in addition to an administration center and 

central services building, all of which are located within the City.  The District employs approximately 775 full-time 

and part-time employees and has a certified enrollment of 5,371.4 for the 2020-21 school year. 

 

The University of Northern Iowa, located within the City, is a public, co-educational university with approximately 

1,819 full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.  Wartburg College, a private, four-year liberal arts college, is 

located in the City of Waverly, Iowa, which is 15 miles north of the City.  The Area VII Hawkeye Community College, 

a public, post-secondary vocational/technical school, is located within the City of Waterloo, Iowa which is adjacent 

to the City. 

226

Item 12.



A-16 

 

 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Financial services for residents of the City are provided by Lincoln Savings Bank and branch offices of BankIowa, 

Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company, Farmers State Bank, First National Bank, First Security State Bank, 

MidWestOne Bank, NXT Bank, Regions Bank, US Bank N.A., and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as well as by several 

credit unions. 

 

Lincoln Savings Bank, one of the largest providers of financial services in the City, reports the following deposits as 

of June 30 for each year: 

 

Year Lincoln Savings Bank 

2015 $629,365,000 

2016 705,144,000 

2017 802,183,000 

2018 930,215,000 

2019 1,074,848,000 
 

 

Source:  FDIC Institution Directory Website. 

 

227

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

228

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

 

JUNE 30, 2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

229

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 

 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 

 

  

230

Item 12.



 

 

OFFICIAL BID FORM 
 

TO: City Council of Sale Date:  June 15, 2020 

 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 10:00 A.M., Central Time 
 

RE:  $3,430,000* General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2020 (the “Notes”) 
 

This bid is a firm offer for the purchase of the Notes identified in the TERMS OF OFFERING, on the terms set forth in this bid form, 

the TERMS OF OFFERING, and is not subject to any conditions, except as permitted by the TERMS OF OFFERING.  By submitting 

this bid, we confirm that we have an established industry reputation for underwriting new issuance of municipal bonds. 
 

For all or none of the above, the Notes, in accordance with the TERMS OF OFFERING, we will pay you not less than 

$_____________________________ (minimum amount of $3,405,990) plus accrued interest to date of delivery for fully registered 

Notes bearing interest rates and maturing in the stated years as follows: 

 
Coupon Maturity Yield  Coupon Maturity Yield 

       

__________ 2021 __________  __________ 2026 __________ 

__________ 2022 __________  __________ 2027 __________ 

__________ 2023 __________  __________ 2028 __________ 

__________ 2024 __________  __________ 2029 __________ 

__________ 2025 __________  __________ 2030 __________ 

 
* Preliminary; subject to change.  The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount of the Notes and to increase 

or reduce each scheduled maturity thereof after the determination of the successful bidder.  The City may increase or decrease each maturity 

in increments of $5,000 but the total amount to be issued will not exceed $3,500,000.  Interest rates specified by the successful bidder for each 

maturity will not change.  Final adjustments shall be in the sole discretion of the City. 
  

 The dollar amount of the purchase price proposed by the successful bidder will be changed if the aggregate principal amount of the Notes is 

adjusted as described above.  Any change in the principal amount of any maturity of the Notes will be made while maintaining, as closely as 

possible, the successful bidder’s net compensation, calculated as a percentage of note principal.  The successful bidder may not withdraw or 

modify its bid as a result of any post-bid adjustment.  Any adjustment shall be conclusive and shall be binding upon the successful bidder. 
 

We hereby designate that the following Notes to be aggregated into term Notes maturing on June 1 of the following years and in the 

following amounts (leave blank if no term Notes are specified): 
 

Years Aggregated Maturity Year Aggregate Amount 

_______ through _______ _____________ _____________ 

_______ through _______ _____________ _____________ 
   

 

In making this offer we accept all of the terms and conditions of the TERMS OF OFFERING published in the Preliminary Official 

Statement dated June 1, 2020, and represent we are a bidder with established industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of 

municipal bonds.  In the event of failure to deliver these Notes in accordance with the TERMS OF OFFERING as printed in the 

Preliminary Official Statement and made a part hereof, we reserve the right to withdraw our offer, whereupon the deposit accompanying 

it will be immediately returned.  All blank spaces of this offer are intentional and are not to be construed as an omission. 

 

REGISTRATION PREFERENCE:       ______  DTC Book-Entry Issuance  ______  Certificates (Non-Book Entry) 
 

Not as a part of our offer, the above quoted prices being controlling, but only as an aid for the verification of the offer, we have made 

the following computations: 
 

NET INTEREST COST:  $_________________________ 
 

TRUE INTEREST COST:  _________________________% (Calculated to the dated date of July 21, 2020) 
 

Account Manager:  ___________________________________By:  ___________________________________ 

Account Members: 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The foregoing offer is hereby accepted by and on behalf of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this 15th day of June, 

2020. 
 

Attest:  _________________________________ By:  ________________________________________ 
 

Title:  __________________________________ Title:  _______________________________________ 

 

231

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: May 28, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Resilience Plan 

 
 
Please find attached a professional services agreement with Perkins & Will to work with 
the City to develop a Resilience Plan for the City of Cedar Falls.  You may recall in June 
2019 Eric Giddens presented to the Council Committee of the Whole information related 
to Climate Action and the Council made a motion at the time to form a working 
committee to discuss Climate Action or also called Sustainability.  Then in November 
2019 a staff presentation was given that outlined what the committee had been working 
on, who was part of the committee, and various recommendations.  As part of those 
recommendations, there was an item to move ahead with hiring a consultant to work 
with the City on a Sustainability Plan, and the recommendations were approved 
unanimously by the Council.    
 
Based on that direction from Council, the committee prepared a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) and sent it out to various vendors.  Four firms submitted proposals and the 
Committee has chosen to recommend Perkins & Will.  This recommendation was based 
on price, experience of the firm, references, and the firm’s ability to meet the 
committee’s timeline.  You will see in the contract that the cost is $87,500.  In the City’s 
CIP, there was $80,000 budgeted for a consultant, so the quote is very close to the 
amount budgeted.  The funding source identified in the CIP is FY21 General Revenue.  
You will also note that Perkins & Will worked with the Committee and is recommending 
calling the plan a Resilience Plan. 
 
This project is consistent with City Council Organizational Goal #1.C.6.d which states 
“Explore sustainability initiatives in conjunction with CFU”.  In addition, proceeding 
ahead with developing a sustainability plan was discussed at the 2019 goal setting 
session.  The attached contract meets those objectives discussed.   
 
If you have any questions regarding the contract, the project, or the committee in 
general, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 

232

Item 13.



   Document B102™ – 2017
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect without a Predefined 
Scope of Architect's Services

Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

AGREEMENT made as of the first day of June in the year 2020
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

 City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
and the Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Perkins and Will 
IDS Center 
80 South Eight Street
Minneapolis, Mn 55402 

for the following (hereinafter referred to as "the Project"):
(Insert information related to types of services, location, facilities, or other descriptive 
information as appropriate.)

Urban Planning – General resilience plan for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The plan will 
be a conceptual document,
not to be used directly for construction, bidding or high-accuracy reference. The 
comprehensive, exploratory and participatory planning required by the project is such that 
a precise description of the services or outcomes is not possible. The Scope document 
outlines deliverables based on activities, anticipated outcomes, calendar duration, the 
number of meetings (including public meetings and workshops), the anticipated report 
length and the allocation of labor. Some items are more precisely scoped than others.

The Owner and Architect agree as follows.

233

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

2 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

4 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

5 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

6 COMPENSATION

7 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

8 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

9 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1   ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 1.1 The Architect shall provide the following professional services:
(Describe the scope of the Architect’s services or identify an exhibit or scope of services document setting forth the 
Architect’s services and incorporated into this document in Section 9.2.) 

The scope of services is for a "Resilience Plan." See the attached exhibit for more detail  

§ 1.1.1 The Architect represents that it is properly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project is located to provide 
the services required by this Agreement, or shall cause such services to be performed by appropriately licensed design 
professionals.

§ 1.2 Notwithstanding anything within the full scope of this Agreement to the contrary, the Architect shall perform its 
services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by architects practicing in the same or 
similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall perform its services as expeditiously as is 
consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. 

§ 1.3 The Architect identifies the following representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to 
the Project.
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

Douglas Pierce, Senior Associate Perkins and Will

§ 1.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any 
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional 
judgment with respect to this Project.

§ 1.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement. If any of the 
requirements set forth below are in addition to the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall 
pay the Architect as set forth in Section 6.2.3. Refer to the attached Exhibit A, Sustainability Plan Cedar Falls, Iowa 
dated 03-27-2019

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 1.5.8 The Architect shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with the 
requirements in this Section 1.5.

234

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

3

ARTICLE 2   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program, which shall set forth the 
Owner’s objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships; flexibility; 
expandability; special equipment; systems; and site requirements. Following its good faith evaluation of the 
information provided, the Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and 
information furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants.

§ 2.2 The Owner identifies the following representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the 
Project. The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services.
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

Douglas Pierce, AIA
Senior Associate
Perkins and WIll  

§ 2.3 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect. 
Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the 
Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated as 
the responsibility of the Architect in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional 
Service, when the Architect requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of 
the Project. The Owner shall require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including professional 
liability insurance, as appropriate to the services or work provided, with limits no less than required of the Architect in 
Section 1.5.

§ 2.4 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.

§ 2.5 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or 
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service.

§ 2.6 Within 15 days after receipt of a written request from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested 
information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce lien rights.

ARTICLE 3   COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES
§ 3.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the 
transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit 
such information for its use on the Project.

§ 3.2 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in 
derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 3.3 The Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service solely and 
exclusively for the purposes of evaluating, constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, 
provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations under this Agreement, including prompt payment of all 
sums due pursuant to Article 5 and Article 6. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the 
Architect’s consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to 
authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers, as well as the Owner’s consultants and 
separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in 
performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as 
provided in Section 5.4, the license granted in this Section 3.3 shall terminate.

235

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

4

§ 3.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of 
Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising 
from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of 
action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of the 
Instruments of Service under this Section 3.3.1. The terms of this Section 3.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner rightfully 
terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 5.4.

§ 3.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 3, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied 
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license 
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the 
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants.

§ 3.5 Except as otherwise stated in Section 3.3, the provisions of this Article 3 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement.

ARTICLE 4   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 4.1 General
§ 4.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or 
related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements of the binding 
dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, but in any 
case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect waive all 
claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 4.1.1.

§ 4.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against 
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages, except such rights 
as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A201–2017, General Conditions of 
the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the contractors, consultants, 
agents, and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other parties enumerated herein.

§ 4.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, or other matters in question, 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver includes, but is not limited to, damages incurred by the 
Owner or Architect for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business and reputation, and for 
loss of management or employee productivity or the services of such persons. This mutual waiver is applicable, 
without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as 
specifically provided in Section 5.7.

§ 4.1.4 NOT USED 

§ 4.1.5 NOT USED

§ 4.1.6 The Owner acknowledges that the Architect and its consultants are limited liability entities and agrees that any 
claim made by it arising out of any act or omission of any director, officer, or employee of the Architect, or its 
consultants, in the execution or performance of the Agreement, shall be made against the entity and not against any of 
their individual directors, officers, or employees.

§ 4.2 Mediation
§ 4.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien 
arising out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the 
lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution.

§ 4.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between 
them by mediation, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be under the auspices of a recognized, 
neutral third-party professional mediation service experienced in handling construction disputes, or other mediation 
method or service acceptable to the parties, prior to undertaking any other dispute resolution action. A request for 

236

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

5

mediation shall be made in writing within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in question has 
arisen, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. 
The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute 
resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which 
shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by 
agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may 
nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 4.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 4.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 4.2, the method of binding 
dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box.)

[    ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 4.3 of this Agreement

[  X  ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[    ] Other (Specify)

  

If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in 
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of competent 
jurisdiction.

§ 4.3 Arbitration
§ 4.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any 
claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by, 
mediation shall be subject to arbitration, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by 
the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the 
date of this Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this 
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration.

§ 4.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, 
but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, 
dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations 
purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall 
constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other matter in question.

§ 4.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by parties to this Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 4.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with 
applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 4.3.4 Consolidation or Joinder
§ 4.3.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
permits consolidation; (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact; 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 4.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided 

237

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

6

that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not 
described in the written consent.

§ 4.3.4.3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 4.3, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Architect under this Agreement.

§ 4.4 The provisions of this Article 4 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 5   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 5.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be 
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension of 
performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give 
seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the 
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of 
services. Before resuming services, the Owner shall pay the Architect all sums due prior to suspension and any 
expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the 
remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 5.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of 
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the 
interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time 
schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 5.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice. 

§ 5.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the 
termination.

§ 5.5 The Architect is proceeding in reliance on Architect’s understanding that Architect’s services include 
administration of the Contract during the Construction Phase.  Accordingly, the Owner may only terminate this 
Agreement (upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect) for the Owner’s convenience and without 
cause prior to the Architect’s commencement of the construction documents phase.  Any termination for convenience 
or unilateral reduction in the scope or duration of the services of Architect or Architect’s consultants after 
commencement of the construction documents phase by the Architect without the prior written consent and agreement 
of the Architect is a material breach of this Agreement.  In the event of such termination or unilateral reduction without 
the prior written consent by and agreement with the Architect, in addition to and not in substitution of any other of 
Architect’s  termination  or other rights under this Agreement, the Architect may at its sole option and discretion 
terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) days’ written notice.  In such event, the Owner shall have all information 
identifying the Architect and Architect’s consultants removed from the Architect’s deliverables (although the Owner 
shall have a license to use such deliverables for the Project), shall release the Architect and Architect’s consultants 
from any liability arising out of or related to such termination, and will indemnify, defend and hold the Architect and 
the Architect’s consultants harmless from any and all responsibility or liability (including liability for any and all 
claims) for the deliverables, the content of the deliverables, or the use thereof .

§ 5.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience pursuant to Section 5.5, or the Architect terminates 
this Agreement pursuant to Section 5.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect for services performed prior to 
termination, Reimbursable Expenses incurred, and costs attributable to termination, including the costs attributable to 
the Architect’s termination of consultant agreements.

§ 5.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 5.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience 
pursuant to Section 5.5, or the Architect terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 5.3, the Owner shall pay to the 
Architect the following fees:

238

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

7

(Set forth below the amount of any termination or licensing fee, or the method for determining any termination or 
licensing fee.)

.1 Termination Fee:

None  

.2 Licensing Fee, if the Owner intends to continue using the Architect’s Instruments of Service:

None 

§ 5.8 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate 
(Check the appropriate box.)

[    ] One year from the date of commencement of the Architect’s services

[    ] One year from the date of Substantial Completion

[    ] Other 
(Insert another termination date or refer to a termination provision in an attached document or scope 
of service.)

 At the completion of Substantial Services  

If the Owner and Architect do not select a termination date, this Agreement shall terminate one year from the date of 
commencement of the Architect’s services.

§ 5.9 The Owner’s rights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this Agreement 
are set forth in Article 3 and Section 5.7.

ARTICLE 6   COMPENSATION
§ 6.1 The Owner shall compensate the Architect as set forth below for services described in Section 1.1, or in the 
attached exhibit or scope document incorporated into this Agreement in Section 9.2.
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation or indicate the exhibit or scope document in which compensation is 
provided for.)

  

§ 6.2 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses
§ 6.2.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation set forth in Section 6.1 and include expenses incurred 
by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project web sites, 
and extranets;

.3 Permitting and other fees required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents;

.5 Postage, handling and delivery;

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;

.7 Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials 
requested by the Owner or required for the Project;

.8 If required by the Owner, and with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Architect’s consultants’ 
expenses of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Project, or the expense of 
additional insurance coverage or limits in excess of that normally maintained by the Architect’s 
consultants;

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

.10 Site office expenses;

239

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

8

.11 Registration fees and any other fees charged by the Certifying Authority or by other entities as 
necessary to achieve the Sustainable Objective; and

.12 Other similar Project-related expenditures.

§ 6.2.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the 
Architect’s consultants plus Zero percent (   0 %) of the expenses incurred.

  

(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 6.3 Payments to the Architect
§ 6.3.1 Initial Payments
§ 6.3.1.1 An initial payment of  Zero  ($   0 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the minimum 
payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.

§ 6.3.2 Progress Payments
§ 6.3.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid   ninety (  90  ) days after 
the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing from 
time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

5  %  Annually

§ 6.3.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or liquidated 
damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in the Work, 
unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution proceeding.

§ 6.3.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to 
the Owner at mutually convenient times.

ARTICLE 7   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 7.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that 
jurisdiction’s choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the 
Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 4.3.

§ 7.2 Except as separately defined herein, terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA 
Document A201™–2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 7.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for the Project 
if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, including any payments due to 
the Architect by the Owner prior to the assignment.

§ 7.4 The deliverable of electronic documents to the Owner shall be in PDF form or in the files native to their 
development (PowerPoint and / or Indesign) .

§ 7.4.1 Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a  file shall be at the using or relying party’s sole risk and without 
liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or contributors to, the building information 
model, and each of their agents and employees.

§ 7.5 Not Used 

240

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

9

§ 7.6 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor of, 
a third party against either the Owner or Architect.

§ 7.7 Not Used 

§ 7.8 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the Project 
among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable access to the 
completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include the Owner’s 
confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific 
information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide professional credit for 
the Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project. This Section 7.8 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement unless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 5.4.

§ 7.9 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated as "confidential" or "business 
proprietary," the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other 
person except as set forth in Section 7.9.1. This Section 7.9 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

§ 7.9.1 The receiving party may disclose "confidential" or "business proprietary" information after 7 days’ notice to 
the other party, when required by law, arbitrator’s order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of 
compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably 
necessary for the receiving party to assert a claim or defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also disclose 
such information to its employees, consultants, or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and 
exclusively for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the 
disclosure and use of such information as set forth in this Section 7.9.

§ 7.10 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining 
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or 
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and 
enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the 
parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Agreement.

ARTICLE 8   SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.)

§8.1  Not Used 

§8.2  Not Used 

§8.3  PAYMENT DISPUTES 
Within the time for payment to become due, the Owner shall examine the invoice for accuracy and completeness with 
respect to the relationship of services performed to the invoiced amounts during the invoiced time period. The Owner 
shall raise any questions or objections which it may have regarding the services performed, the format of or 
information on the invoice within this period and will pay any undisputed amounts.  After such period, the Owner 
waives any question or objection to the relationship of services performed to the invoiced amounts, the format of or 
information on the invoice not previously raised.  The Architect shall be entitled to recover all costs of collection, 
including attorneys’ fees, incurred in enforcing any compensation provisions of this Agreement.  
§8.7  WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
The Owner agrees to include in all agreements and documentation connected with this project, including but not 
limited to design and construction contracts and agreements binding on any purchasers of the property or Project, 
waivers of subrogation against all of  the other parties to the Project.

241

Item 13.



Init.

/

AIA Document B102™ – 2017. Copyright © 1917, 1926, 1948, 1951, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1967, 1970, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered 
trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 16:04:47 ET on 05/27/2020 under Order No.2174021591 
which expires on 01/15/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of 
Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (2016949072)

10

ARTICLE 9   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 9.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and Architect.

§ 9.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below:
.1 AIA Document B102™–2017, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect
.2

(Paragraphs deleted)
Exhibits:

(Check the appropriate box for any exhibits incorporated into this Agreement.)

(Paragraphs deleted)
[  X  ] Other Exhibits incorporated into this Agreement:

Exhibit A – Sustainability Plan, Cedar Falls, Iowa
Exhibit: Terms and Conditions

In the event of conflict between the terms of "Exhibit A – Sustainability Plan, Cedar   Falls, 
Iowa" and Exhibit "Terms and Conditions"  on the one hand, and the terms contained in the 
other documents comprising this Agreement on the other hand, the terms of Exhibits 
"Exhibit A – Sustainability Plan, Cedar Falls, Iowa" and exhibit "Terms and Conditions"  
shall control.

.3 Other documents:

 Perkins and Will Scope of Services dated May 13, 2020 

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

    
OWNER (Signature) CONSULTANT (Signature)

    John Slack Associate Principal 
(Printed name and title) (Printed name, title, and license number, if required)

242

Item 13.

pierced
Stamp

pierced
Stamp



Exhibit A 

Sustainability Plan 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

03-27-2019

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONSULTANTS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 

1. All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.

2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is
attached in Exhibit 1.

3. Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall
include copies of the following endorsements:

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See

Exhibit 1
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1

Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly authorized to transact business at the 
location of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    

Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls.

243

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA1

pierced
Text Box
EA1



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.

6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s
expense.

7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per
Exhibit 1:

� This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

� Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 
following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

� Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 
attached. 

� Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees shall be named as an additional insured on General 
Liability Policies for all classes of contractors. 

Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 

* ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization”

** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Completed Operations”  

244

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA2

pierced
Text Box
EA2



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, 
including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages 
which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents 
working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, 
damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, 
and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the 
injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the Contractor, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor due to 
accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or 
property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the Contractor 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent caused by 
the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

245

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA3

pierced
Text Box
EA3



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 

The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 

12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls,
Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the Contractor or
anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of subrogation or
otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other
casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s employees. This
provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss
or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work
performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for
Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that
such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the
right of the Contractor to recover thereunder.

Completion Checklist 

� Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages)
� Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04
� Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04
� Governmental Immunities Endorsement

246

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA4

pierced
Text Box
EA4



 

insert project name 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000  
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

247

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA5

pierced
Text Box
EA5



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees, are included as Additional Insureds, including ongoing 
operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations CG 2037 07 
04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 

This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time.

2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists
and as it may be amended from time to time.

3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar
Falls, Iowa.

4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa.

5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy.

248

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA6

pierced
Text Box
EA6



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 

249

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA7

pierced
Text Box
EA7



 

insert project name 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. _______ 
 
 
  

250

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA8

pierced
Text Box
EA8



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

251

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA9

pierced
Text Box
EA9



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

252

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA10

pierced
Text Box
EA10



insert project name 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. _______ 

253

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA11

pierced
Text Box
EA11



11 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The following clauses shall be included in the final signed contract: 

1. CHANGE IN SCOPE OF PROJECT.

No change in scope shall be permitted without the prior written agreement of both parties.

2. SUBSTITUTION OF PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS.

The Project Manager, partners, management, other supervisory staff and technical specialists proposed

for the project may be changed if those personnel leave the Vendor. These personnel may also be

changed for other reasons however, in either case, the City retains the right to approve or reject the

replacements and no replacements shall begin working on the project without the express, prior written

permission of the City of Cedar Falls.

3. INSURANCE.

The Vendor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement provide insurance as required by

the attached Insurance Schedule

4. INDEMNIFICATION.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Vendor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from and against

all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or

resulting from performance of the Contract, provided that such claim, damages, loss or expense is

attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of property (other than

the Project itself) including loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused in whole or in

part by negligent acts or omissions of the Vendor’s SubVendor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed

by Vendor or Vendor’s SubVendor or anyone for whose acts Vendor or Vendor’s SubVendor may be liable,

regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified

hereunder.

5. ERRORS & OMISSIONS.

In the event that the work product prepared by the Vendor is found to be in error and revision or

reworking the work product is necessary, the Vendor agrees that it shall do such revisions without expense

to the City, even though final payment may have been received. The Vendor must give immediate

attention to these changes so there will be a minimum of delay during construction. The above and

foregoing is not to be constructed as a limitation of the City’s right to seek recovery of damages for

negligence on the part of the Vendor herein.

6. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER.

Subletting, assignment, or transfer of all or part of the interest of the Vendor in this Contract is prohibited

unless written consent is obtained from the Director of Transportation Services and approved by the City.

7. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE.

1. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act

(Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) and applicable Federal regulations under the Act.

2. Bids for design, construction, programs, policies and concessions of any type shall comply with

the 2010 Standards for Accessible Design, the ADA title II regulation, Section 504 of the 1973

Rehabilitation Act, and similar statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of

disability.

254

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA12

pierced
Text Box
EA12



12 

3. The Contractor shall ensure that its websites and all online services, including those websites or

online services provided by third parties upon which Cedar Falls relies to provide services or

content, comply with, at minimum, Web Content Accessibility Guidelines - WCAG 2.0 AA.

8. ASSIGNMENT.

The City and the Contractor each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, executors, administrators

and legal representatives of the City and the Contractor are hereby bound to the other Party to the

Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and said

assigns) of such other Party, in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of the Contract. Any

assignment or attempt at assignment made without prior written consent of the City shall be void.

9. BID CURRENCY/LANGUAGE.

All bid prices shall be shown in US Dollars ($). All prices must remain firm for the duration of the contract

regardless of the exchange rate. All bid responses must be submitted in English.

10. BID INFORMATION IS PUBLIC.

The bid and all documents submitted with any bid shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code

Chapter 22, which is otherwise known as the “Iowa Open Records Law”. By submitting the bid any

document to the City of Cedar Falls in connection with a bid, the submitting party recognizes this and

waives any claim against the City of Cedar Falls and any of its officers and employees relating to the

release of any document or information submitted. Each submitting party shall hold the City of Cedar

Falls and its officers and employees harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document

or information made available to the City of Cedar Falls arising from any opportunity. Bid information

requested by the public or other bidders will be provided in an alternative format if the requestor is a

person with a disability and requires an alternative form for comprehension.

11. BID REJECTION OR PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids or parts thereof. The City further reserves

the right to waive technicalities and formalities in bids, as well as to accept in whole or in part such bids

where it is deemed advisable in protection of the best interests of the City.

12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

Contractor represents, warrants, and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the Contract

period between the Contractor and the City that is a conflict of interest. No employee, officer or agent

of the Contractor shall participate in the selection or in the award if a conflict of interest, real or apparent,

exists. The provisions of Iowa Code ch. 68B shall apply to the Contract. If a conflict of interest is proven

to the City, the City may terminate the Contract, and Contractor shall be liable for any excess costs to the

City as a result of the conflict of interest. The Contractor shall establish safeguards to prevent employees,

consultants, or members of governing bodies from using their positions for purposes that are, or give the

appearance of being, motivated by the desire for private gain for themselves or others with whom they

have family, business, or other ties. The Contractor shall report any potential, real, or apparent conflict of

interest to the City.

13. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

The Contract Documents are this Contract, the Request for Proposals, the Contractor’s Proposal and

Contract Proposal Pricing Form, and the following additional documents, if any.

In the event of a dispute with respect to any term or condition in the Contract Documents, they shall be

interpreted in the following order: this Contract, the Request for Proposals, the Contractor’s Proposal and

255

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA13

pierced
Text Box
EA13



13 

Contract Proposal Pricing Form, and the following additional documents, if any. 

14. DISPUTES.

Should any disputes arise with respect to the Contract; the Parties agree to act immediately to resolve

such disputes. Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. The Contractor agrees that, the

existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities

under the Contract that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make payment for

all work properly performed. Should the Contractor fail to continue to perform its responsibilities

regarding all non-disputed work, without delay, any additional costs incurred by the City or the Contractor

as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. The unintentional delayed payment

by the City to the Contractor of one or more invoices not in dispute in accordance with the terms of the

Contract will not be cause for Contractor to stop or delay Work.

15. FORCE MAJEURE.

Force majeure shall be any of the following events: acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting

to act therefore; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other

storms; strikes or labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named

or referred to herein, not within the reasonable control of the Party affected. A delay in or failure of

performance of either Party shall not constitute a default hereunder nor be the basis for, or give rise to,

any claim for damages, if and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. The Party

who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to exceed

fourteen (14) days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to give notice to the other Party

setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall

remedy such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the Parties.

16. LAWS AND REGULATIONS.

The Contract shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with all applicable federal, State

of Iowa, and local laws, ordinances, licenses and regulations and shall apply to the Contract throughout,

as the case may be. The Contractor certifies that in performing the Contract it will comply with all

applicable provisions of the federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, licenses and regulations. Venue for

any action arising out of this Contract shall be the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, Iowa.

17. NO GIFT STANDARD.

The City of Cedar Falls is committed to upholding the highest ethical standards in all of its business

practices. This standard recognizes the need to avoid even the perception of improper gifts or favors to

employees. Therefore, all suppliers have been asked to abide by the City’s “No Gift” standard. The “No

Gift” standard also applies to all offers of discounts or free items at any place of business targeted

toward a City employee and not available to the general public, regardless of the value. Please reference

City AP 4.10.

18. NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT.

Neither the Contractor, nor anyone in the employment of the Contractor, has employed any person to

solicit or procure the Contract nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of

any compensation in connection with the Contract. There is no contract, agreement or arrangement,

either oral or written, expressed or implied, contemplating any division of compensation for Work

rendered under the Contract or participation therein, directly or indirectly, by any other person, firm or

corporation, except as documented in the Contract. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone in the

256

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA14

pierced
Text Box
EA14



14 

employment of the Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated 

in any collusion or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive procurement in connection 

with the Contract. 

19. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY.

All Contractors that engage in contracts with the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa agree as follows: The

Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex,

color, creed, ancestry, national origin, marital status, Familia status, religion, age, disability, sexual

orientation, gender identity, genetic information, status with regard to public assistance, status as a

veteran or any classification protected by federal, state, or local law, (Protected Classes) except where

age and sex are essential bona fide occupational requirements, or where disability is a bona fide

occupational disqualification. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following; (a)

Employment, (b) Upgrading, (c) Demotion or transfer, (d) Recruitment and advertising, (e) Layoff or

termination, (f) Rate of pay or other forms of compensation, and (g) Selection for training, including

apprenticeship. The Contractor further assures that managers and employees comply with both the

spirit and intent of federal, state, and local legislation, government regulation, and executive orders in

providing affirmative action as well as equal opportunity without regard to the protected classes, as

stated above. The Contractor will include, or incorporate by reference, the provisions of the

nondiscrimination clause in every contract or subcontract unless exempt by the rules, regulations or

orders of the City's Affirmative Action Program and will provide in every contract or subcontract that

said provision will be binding upon each Contractor.

20. REGULATORY AGENCY COMPLIANCE.

Compliance with laws and regulations set forth by regulatory agencies is required. These agencies include,

but are not limited to, OSHA – Occupational Safety & Health Agency, EPA – Environmental Protection

Agency, ICC – Interstate Commerce Commission, DNR – Department of Natural Resources, DOT –

Department of Transportation, and FTA-Federal Transit Authority. The City of Cedar Falls expects that

Contractors will offer expertise on conformance of regulations applying to the products they sell and the

work performed.

21. SAFETY DATA SHEETS.

The Hazard Communication Standard (HCS) requires chemical manufacturers, distributors, and importers

to ensure that each container of hazardous chemicals leaving the workplace is labeled, tagged, or marked

and to provide Safety Data Sheets (SDS) to communicate the hazards of hazardous chemical products. It

is the chemical supplier’s responsibility to determine which products are covered and to provide SDS with

the initial shipment. It is also the chemical supplier’s responsibility to provide any updated or revised SDS,

as they become available for any products sold and delivered to the City of Cedar Falls. City of Cedar

Falls employees shall not accept a shipment of any chemical that does not have a SDS attached or

currently on file. Safety Data Sheets shall be available in alternative formats if the requestor is a person

with a disability and requires an alternative format for comprehension.

22. TAXES.

The City of Cedar Falls is exempt from sales tax and certain other use taxes. Any charges for taxes from

which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.

23. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT.

The City may terminate the Contract at any time for any reason with or without cause. In that event, all

finished or unfinished Work, reports, materials(s) prepared or furnished by the Contractor under the

257

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA15

pierced
Text Box
EA15



15 

Contract shall, at the option of the City, become its property. If the Contract is terminated by the City as 

provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Work which has been authorized, provided, and 

approved up to the effective date of termination. The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

24. WARRANTIES.

The Contractor shall perform pertaining to the Project as set forth in the Contract.

Contractor represents that the Project and all of its components shall be free of defects; shall be 

performed in a manner consistent with other Contractors in a similar industry and application; and shall 

conform to the requirements of the Contract. 

Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Work performed under the Contract. Contractor shall, promptly and without charge, provide all 

corrective Work necessary as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors, or omissions with respect to the quality 

and accuracy of the Work. 

Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors, or omissions, and for any losses or costs to repair or remedy any Work undertaken by City 

based upon the Work as a result of any such acts, errors, or omissions. 

Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either of City or Contractor. 

25. WARRANTIES - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.

Contractor represents and warrants that all the materials, goods and work produced, or provided to the 

City pursuant to the terms of the Contract shall be wholly original with the Contractor or that the 

Contractor has secured all applicable interests, rights, licenses, permits or other intellectual property 

rights in such materials, goods and work. The Contractor represents and warrants that the materials, 

goods and work, and the City’s use of same, and the exercise by the City of the rights granted by the 

Contract shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or privacy of, or constitute 

a libel or slander against, any person, firm, or corporation. Contractor further represents and warrants 

that the materials and works do not infringe upon the copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress 

patent, statutory, common law or any other rights of any person, firm or corporation or other entity. The 

Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute 

the goods and work contemplated by the Contract. 

258

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
EA16

pierced
Text Box
EA16



05.13.2020SCOPE OF SERVICES  

Project Understanding

The project scope of work for the Cedar Falls Resilience Plan 

is primarily related to community empowerment and 

Resilience plan development. Key participants in the plan 

development include the Resilience Working Group,  the 

public, the City staff and technical staff, along with 

City partners. Major themes for the plan will focus on the 

economic, environmental and social benefi ts of resilience.

Our team is prepared to deliver a Resilience Plan that 

addresses the cities key drivers:

• Unify existing, and developing initiatives and strategies

that support resilience and emission reductions.

• Identify climate action strategies, implementation plans

and metrics for measuring outputs and outcomes.

• Identify the community’s desired strategies using a

fairness and equity lens in order to ensure benefi ts for all

members and groups of the community.

• Leverage partnerships and the community towards

prioritized strategies in support of climate action.

The work will progress along the following timeline: 

• May 2020 Project Awarded

• June 2020 Project Begins

• September 2020 Project Status Update

• November 2020 Specialized Actions submitted to City

Departments for consideration during annual goal-

setting and budgeting process

• November 2020 Full Draft Report Submitted

• December 2020 Final  reslience Plan for City Council

Approval

37

City of Cedar Falls ― Resilience  Plan

SCOPE OF SERVICES  

Project Understanding

The project scope of work for the Cedar Falls Resilience Plan 

is primarily related to community empowerment and 

Resilience plan development. Key participants in the plan 

development include the Resilience Working Group,  the 

public, the City staff and technical staff, along with 

City partners. Major themes for the plan will focus on the 

economic, environmental and social benefi ts of resilience.

Our team is prepared to deliver a Resilience Plan that 

addresses the cities key drivers:

Perkins & Will  

259

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC1

pierced
Text Box
SC1



PHASE 1 — DISCOVERY
Phase 1 of the planning process will focus on developing 

a City and Community Team (CT) and Public engagement 

strategy, synthesizing previous studies, examining the 

existing conditions, and working with the stakeholders to 

defi ne opportunities for the Resilience Plan around 

mitigation, adaptation and equity.

1.1 Community and Stakeholder Engagement Plan

Deliverable: Draft Community Engagement Plan that 

clarifi es goals, roles, meeting schedule, workshop dates 

and public outreach and communication specifi cs. This 

will include a key understanding of the preparation and 

participation in key meetings and other community 

engagement activities.

1.2 Online Kick-Off and Planning Meetings with the City / 

Partners and other identifi ed key stakeholders.

Deliverable: Agenda for kick off meeting, public 

participation and communications plan, and 

summary of meeting.

Agenda for Planning Meeting and fi nalized process plan.

Start Online Engagement

1.3 Review, analyze and integrate existing plans, 

initiatives, and other relevant planning studies.

Deliverable: An understanding of the issues, plans and 

strategies developed in previous planning efforts and 

synthesis of the illustrations and recommendations from 

each study, tool or policy.

1.4 Resilience Discovery Findings 

Our early Mitigation, Adaptation, Resilience, Benefi ts, Social 

Equity, Partnerships Discovery analysis will be based on 

existing studies, available data and knowledge gained from 

interviews and workshops.

Deliverable: Resilience Discovery Findings as a slide 

deck that compiles information and summarizes fi ndings 

regarding the short and long-term opportunities for climate 

action and resilience within the city and surrounding based 

on existing plans, reports and information. This information 

will ‘set the stage’ for starting Phase 2. 

DISCOVERY

WORKSHOPS

FINAL PLAN
AND APPROVAL

DRAFT 
RESILIENCE PLAN

Workshop Series #1: Primary Stakeholder 
and Public Workshops. ResiliencePlan Op-
portunities + Options Outline 

Primary Stakeholder Workshop #2
Near Final Full Draft Plan

Kick-Off Meeting 
Start Online Engagement

1

3

PREPARE FOR 
WORKSHOPS

FINAL 
PLAN

4

2

Stakeholder Review of Near Final Full DRAFT 
Workshop #3 Open House Presentation w/ Comments
Prepare Final Plan for Approval

42

260

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC2

pierced
Text Box
SC2



PHASE 2 — ONLINE WORKSHOPS
This phase will focus on outreach and identifying solutions 

for carbon mitigation, adaptation, social equity and 

overall resilience. Our team will actively synthesize their 

professional expertise with that of local stakeholders, the 

city, and the public.

2.1 Update Online Engagement

Deliverable: Online and print media including the project 

webpage (site), social media, online surveys and news 

outlets will be used as outreach to the community.

2.2 Online Workshop Series #1: Identify 

Opportunities and Options

A stakeholder interview and workshop charrettes will be 

the primary events to establish a vision, plan options, 

preferred direction and steps towards implementation of 

the fi nal plan.

We will utilize recognized charette strategies to ensure 

that primary stake- holders and the public understand, 

contribute to, and feel ownership of the workshop options 

and concepts. This will be coupled with Rockefeller 100 

Resilient Cities techniques around identify and addressing 

chronic shocks and stressors. The charrette agenda will be 

based on the following outline:

• Online Primary Stakeholder Interviews and Workshop 

#1 occur on Day #1. The outcomes will help inform the

Workshops to be held in Phase #2. Presentation to

outline project purpose, existing conditions analysis and

feasibility studies, roles and process and opportunities

for involvement. The charrette team will elicit input on

existing conditions, values, future vision, options and

opportunities from the participants.

• Online Public Workshop. The Public Workshop follows

the Stakeholder Interviews and Workshop to inform

the Workshop. Presentation to outline project purpose,

existing  conditions analysis and feasibility  studies,

roles and process and opportunities for involvement.

Charrette team will elicit input on existing conditions,

values, future vision, options and opportunities from the

participants.

Deliverable: Organize, lead and facilitate interviews and 

workshops. Capture all outcomes and post to a location 

assessable by the Stakeholders.

2.3 Prepare a Resilience Plan Outline Draft

• The ideas that are developed and key fi ndings/

outcomes from Workshop Series #1 will be documented

and summarized in an outline form.

• The workshop outcomes will be used to inform follow-up

research, development and additions to the outline.

Deliverable: Resilience Plan Outline DRAFT 

PHASE 3 — DRAFT RESILIENCE PLAN
This phase will focus on prioritizing and synthesizing 

the options and opportunities identifi ed and 

developed in Phase 2.

3.1 Update Online Engagement

Deliverable: Update the project webpage (site), social 

media. Publish notices to news outlet.

3.2  Online Workshop #2: Prioritize Options and Scenarios

A two-workshop charrette process will be the primary event 

to establish synthesize prioritized options, opportunities and 

follow-up work from Workshop Series #1. Stakeholders will 

be invited to participate in the Community Team Workshop. 

The charrette agenda will be based on the following outline:

• Online Primary Stakeholder Workshop #2 The

charrette Team will use input from the Workshops

in Phase 2 to develop synthesized Implementation

Scenarios that identify key strategies, resources and

phasing for related actions. The implementation

strategies will also represent stakeholder and public

input to inform project objectives, measures, and

technical criteria.

Deliverable: Organize, lead, and facilitate the workshop. 

Capture all outcomes and post to a location assessable by 

the Stakeholder Team.

Scope of Services and Methodology

43

City of Cedar Falls ― Resilience  Plan

261

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC3

pierced
Text Box
SC3



Scope of Services and Methodology

3.3 Prepare Near Final Draft Resilience Plan

The workshop outcomes will be used to inform follow-

up research, development and additions to the outline. 

Follow-up will be performed by the consultant team, project 

stakeholders. 

Deliverable: DRAFT Resilience Plan for review by the City, 

stakeholders and interested members of the public.

Among many other items, the plan will identify topics, 

actions and metrics that could be developed as ordinances.

PHASE 4 — FINAL PLAN AND APPROVAL
This phase will focus on the creation of an Open House 

Presentation, comment opportunity and a Finalized Report.

4.1 Update Online Engagement 

Online and print media including the project webpage (site), 

social media and news outlets will be used as outreach to 

the community.

Deliverable: Near fi nal DRAFT Resilience Plan in the 

form of Slide Deck and outreach to the public about 

the Open House.

Online Workshop #3: Open House Presentation of Near 

Final Options and Scenarios

Workshop #3 will be structured as an iterative presentation 

in which con- tent is presented as a series of short content 

sessions, with each session followed by a question, answer 

and comment period.

Comments will be used to make modest adjustments to the 

near fi nal DRAFT as part of fi nalizing the Resilience Plan.

Deliverable:  Online Public presentation of the near fi nal 

DRAFT of Resilience plan to an Open House forum 

with comments.

Collection of fi nal comments from the City, 

Stakeholders and Public.

4.3 Finalize Resilience Plan

Deliverable: The Consulting Team will prepare a fi nal 

Resilience Plan with modest updates from the City, 

Community Team, Stakeholders and Public. Final report 

is anticipated to be a 20 to 25 page combination slide 

deck / report. 

The plan will be conceptual for use as a guidance tool. 

Implementation costs for action items (and inaction) relative 

to water resource management and carbon management 

will be defined as "High," "Medium," or "Low,"

44

262

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC4

pierced
Text Box
SC4



Featured components of our approach to community Online engagement include:

Community Workshop

A Workshop will provide a forum to involve 

local residents and other 

stakeholders in a meaningful dialogue about the 

Resilience Plan. The primary intent of the workshops 

are to augment the background analysis, brainstorm 

with the community to defi ne strengths, weaknesses 

opportunities and threats. The workshops emphasize 

hands on, interactive and fun activities. We would 

recommend three workshops.

Listening Sessions / Focus Groups

Focus group meetings will allow the  

        project team to host deeper conversations 

and receive detailed information from stakeholders who 

have an interest and knowledge of previous work or issues 

related to the Resilience Plan. These conversations will help 

the project team refi ne the plan’s vision and direction and 

ensure that the concerns of groups with specifi c issues (for 

example, city staff and departments, property/business 

owners) are included early on.

Project Website

The project website offers an opportunity 

to provide an overview of the project and 

inform members of the public. It provides an avenue to share 

project progress and to build interest and grow participation 

for the in-person workshops and open houses. We have 

generated project specifi c websites using Square Space as 

well as hosted sites such as Social pinpoint. Social media 

accounts have also be used successfully.

Communication Efforts

A key to the success of the planning 

process will be to engage the public, 

encouraging participation in the dialog at each public 

meeting. It is important the public is informed about 

the planning process and that they are familiar with the 

work that has been done to date. We will assist the City 

with preparing materials for use on the project website, 

blogs, newsletters, e-mail distribution lists, public notice 

advertisements, direct mailings, local newspapers, and 

other means of communication with the participants and 

community-at-large.

Some examples of our communication efforts include: 

Social Media: Creation of a Facebook page and Twitter 

channel can help drive visitors to the project website so 

they can view project updates and information as they are 

uploaded. Similarly, Facebook and Twitter can be used to 

share information about upcoming in-person workshops 

and increase participation at those events.

News Releases, e-Newsletters and Media Alerts: These can 

be authored and submitted to contacts at local and regional 

news outlets, websites, and public access outlets. News 

releases and media alerts can be a useful tool to update the 

public on major project milestones, community meetings, 

signifi cant fi ndings and recommendations, and overall 

project successes.

Online surveys and real time polling: These tool summarize 

responses for all involved. Real-time polling can be used 

to give a visual representation to a workshop in real time. 

On-line surveys can be authored and sent out for the 

public to comment or the project at a time that works for 

their schedule.

Scope of Services and Methodology

Tell us about ...

39

City of Cedar Falls ― Resilience  Plan

263

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC5

pierced
Text Box
SC5



Resilience and Climate Adaptation

We will focus on adaptation, resilience and social equity to 

deliver the follow outcomes as defi ned by the city:

• Adaptation, Mitigation and Resiliency: The Resilience

Plan should identify climate science predicted increased

negative climate impacts and should incorporate

appropriate mitigation, resilience and adaptation

throughout.

• Benefi ts Framing: The Resilience Plan should reinforce

the benefi ts of  resilience action and focus on how the

plan’s elements will improve community well-being. The

Resilience Plan should discuss both

the costs of inaction and discussing the costs of the

recommended action.

• Social Equity: The Resilience Plan should detail impacts

on different communities and groups in Cedar Falls, and

how the implementation will incorporate social equity

and empowerment considerations; and

• Partnerships: The Resilience Plan should incorporate

actions that partners should prioritize, and ways the

community can leverage these partnerships to initiate

stronger climate action.

The assessment will summarize the City’s existing flood risk 

reduction strategies related to extreme riverine flooding, urban 

flash flooding from extreme precipitation and possible 

groundwater level changes. assessment will summarize Cedar 

Falls trends relative to these hazards and possible future 

impacts to vulnerable City facilities, residents, businesses and 

key infrastructure.   

The Resilient Water Opportunities Plan will use the 

vulnerability assessment insights and maps to craft risk-

reduction strategies that are integrated with urban land, 

Infrastructure and amenity potential within Cedar Falls.  The 

plan will also action items and additional targeted technical 

studies to reduce long-term water based risks to the 

community, while improving the urban, neighborhood and 

ecological environments for the overall community of Cedar 

Falls.

Systems Oriented GIS Data Analysis 

As a fundamental resilience deliverable, our team will evaluate 

the intersection of long-term future scenarios surrounding 

riverine flooding and fl ashing flooding 

on infrastructure, essential amenities and vulnerable 

populations using science based systemic scenario thinking 

coupled with GIS mapping. 

We can use this same approach to explore other key topics as 

defi ned by stakeholders and workshop groups. These area 

might include evaluation of opportunities and risk areas for 

extreme heat incidents and access to cooling shelters, along 

with other equity topics such as affordable housing. Based on 

the availability of existing data sets, other factors could include 

but are not limited to areas at risk for high levels of pollution 

exposure, limited access to public transit and or city 

institutions, and city infrastructure vulnerabilities based on the 

availability of existing data sets. 

Ease of access to GIS data, and labor allowances will be used to 

maintain an appropriate scale and quantity of GIS mapping 

efforts.

Energy Analysis for Mitigation and Adaptation

We will provide a detailed ResiliencePlan using a Wedge 

analysis across multiple categories including residential energy, 

commercial energy, industrial energy, transportation, water, 

and paths toward Zero Waste. That work stream will be 

leveraged and combined with our climate adaptation 

knowledge to explore scenarios around the intersection 

of carbon mitigation, temperature change, renewable energy, 

energy effi ciency and energy security for short-term crisis 

conditions and long-term energy independence at a citywide 

and regional scale.

40

The overall resilience plan team, including the resilience 

committee, will collectively identify resilience strategies 

integrated across diverse sectors of the Cedar Falls economy, 

infrastructure and community. The intent is to generate co-

benefits and create high-value return for the overall 

community of Cedar Falls on the economic, environmental 

and social capital invested by city, the community, 

organizations, businesses and individuals. 

Water Resource Plan 

The team will listen to the City and stakeholder needs during 

the engagement phase, canvas the City’s ongoing flood risk 

reduction efforts, and the city's overall relationship with the 

river and water to develop a Water Resourcing Planning 

component to the resilience plan. This will include a Resilient 

Water Opportunities section and an Extreme Weather and 

Climate Adapted Flooding Vulnerability Assessment. The 

opportunities plan will focus on the co-benefits of adapting 

to increased flood and torrential rain risk in ways that 

collectively enhance the quality of place and life in 

Cedar Falls. 

264

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC6

pierced
Text Box
SC6



Carbon Planning

With the strong focus of carbon emissions reductions our 

approach for this portion of the work will be to:

• Defi ne Cedar Falls’ emissions reduction goal based on

the latest climate science.

• Identify mitigation strategies based on available

emissions data and / or emissions proxies.

• Leverage our community engagement process

to incorporate new strategies that represent the

community’s needs and values.

• Prioritize strategies based on a nuanced understanding

of the potential impacts on emissions, life-cycle costs,

social equity, and resilience.

• Provide implementation resources and tracking methods

that empower and engage residents, businesses, and

institutions to move from planning to action.

In addition to relying on our carbon planning experience 

and access to global best practices, our work will be 

informed by feedback from Cedar Falls stakeholders, ideas 

generated by community members, and insights from the 

concurrent work on adaptation and resilience planning.

The carbon planning scope will include the following tasks:

Develop a bold and transformative long-term vision for 

community-wide emissions.

• Based on the most current climate science, our team

will evaluate Cedar Falls current status and assist in

establishing appropriate emission reduction goals.

We will engage stakeholders to discuss topics such

as the implications of shifting to a carbon budget or

leveraging achievable near- term milestones to support

an aggressive long-term goal. We will also propose

goals by sector (e.g. transportation) and by energy

source (e.g. electricity) that refl ect feasible timelines for

transformative change.

• Our team will develop a list of strategies in the

residential, commercial, industrial, transportation, water

and waste sectors that would contribute to achieving

the community’s greenhouse gas reduction goal(s).

• Leveraging the tools and expertise we have developed

through our scenario planning experience our team

will develop a wedge analysis to demonstrate the

contribution of individual strategies toward Cedar

Falls’ overall greenhouse gas reduction targets, aiming

to demonstrate a feasible roadmap to achieving the

community’s goal.

Deliverable: 
Reduction Targets and Implementation Strategies

Utilizing the community-wide greenhouse gas inventory 
provided by the City of Cedar Falls: 

• Help develop a long-term resilience vision with

science-based targets.

• Identify implementation strategies with general

recommended timelines (short, medium, long-term).

• Quantify each proposed measure’s potential emission

reduction.

• Estimate feasibility (technical) of strategies.

• Help ensure the collective actions positively impact all

populations and move the city toward greater social

equity. (Assuming this will be strongly rooted in the

community engagement work)

• Develop a wedge analysis to understand the

contribution of individual strategies toward the overall

GHG reduction targets.

Deliverable: Toolkit for Action 

• Develop a system for monitoring and evaluating

progress utilizing CDP

• Develop standard operating procedures for completing

annual GHG emissions inventories

(Municipal & Community-wide) and provide templates

for completing.

• Develop a template for an annual report that can
easily be communicated through a variety of media.

Scope of Services and Methodology

41

City of Cedar Falls ― Resilience  Plan

•

265

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC7

pierced
Text Box
SC7



266

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC8

pierced
Text Box
SC8



Cost Proposal

Phase 1: Discovery 

Phase 2: Outline and Special Actions 

Phase 3: Draft Plan 

Phase 4: Final Plan and Approval 

SUMMARY OF SERVICES 

Engagement 

Integrative Resilience Planning 

Carbon Planning 

Water Resource Planning

Total $87,500

Includes four (4) workshop / meeting events on separate occasions. Reimbursable are 
estimated at $2,000 for travel and lodging only. Reimbursables do not include printing, 
internet / website hosting fees, special access for GIS data, event location fees,  
catering or food. 

267

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
Includes reimbursables up to $2,000 for licenses fees or similar attributable to virtual (online) services. All project workshops, meetings and presentations including public meetings and workshops will be conducted online.

pierced
Text Box
SC9

pierced
Text Box
Includes reimbursables up to $2,000 for licenses fees or similar attributable to virtual (online) services. All project workshops, meetings and presentations including public meetings and workshops will be conducted online.

pierced
Text Box
SC9



48

268

Item 13.

pierced
Text Box
SC10

pierced
Text Box
SC10



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Kate Aguiar, Payroll/HR Technician 

 DATE: May 28, 2020 

 SUBJECT: FY21 Fee Schedule 

 

 

Attached is a copy of the proposed FY21 Fee Schedule.  The Fee Schedule establishes 
fees for all City operations except Enterprise Fund fees, which are established by 
ordinance (refuse, sanitary sewer collection and parking meter fees). 
 
It is recommended that the attached FY21 Fee Schedule be adopted as proposed.  
Following adoption, staff will schedule the fees for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2020.  If you have any questions regarding proposed fees, please contact the 
department director responsible for the fee in question.   
 

 

269

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATE

Civil Service Test No charge

Civil Service Promotional Test No charge

Video Duplication $15.00 Each DVD

COPY RECORDS / DIGITAL DATA

Police Reports $15.00 Each report

Applicant Fingerprinting $10.00 1-3 cards

  Additional cards $2.00 Per card

Digital Media Duplication $15.00 Each

Photo Reprints (4x6 in-house) $1.00 Each

Photo Reprints (larger/out-source) At Cost

Junk Vehicle Certificate $10.00

Fire Incident Reports $10.00 Each report

Fire Investigative Reports (Non-Criminal) $10.00 Each report

  Copying of records – major project

Applicable fee 

above + staff 

time over 30 

minutes

House/Garage Moving Permit $40.00/hr. 1/2 hr. min.

Funeral Escort $25.00

1 Hr. of Squad Car Usage $16.50

Sale of City Code of Ordinances $200.00 Hard Cover
Includes cost of new book and mailing subsequent code 

supplements

Sale of City Zoning Ordinance $50.00 Paper Cover
Includes cost of new book and mailing subsequent code 

supplements

Sale of National/Uniform Code Books adopted by 

reference, i.e. Building, Electrical, Plumbing, 

Mechanical, Fire, Life Safety, Housing, etc.
Sold at cost

Sale of Official Financial Publications Sold at cost

Copying of City Records No Charge Five pages or less

$0.10
Black & White Copy, six 

or more pages

$0.20
Color Copy, six or more

 pages

  Copying of City Records - major projects $0.10
Black & White Copy, six 

or more pages + staff time over 30 

minutes

$0.20
Color Copy, six or more pages  + staff 

time over 30 minutes

Inspection and Design
Negotiated charges approved by 

City Council in Contract form

Copying of maps, drawings, etc. No Charge Five standard pages or less 

$0.10 Each, six or more pages

Copying of oversized maps, drawings, etc. $5.00 Each

Copy of Aerial Map per development $85.00

Copy of Aerial Map entire City $425.00

Sanitary Sewer Permit $100.00

City Banners - For "For Profit" Groups, 

Installation and removal $10.00 Each Banner

Electrical Panels For Special Events $50.00 Per Panel

$250.00 Deposit Fee

Delivery of Picnic Tables for Special Events $10.00 Per Table

Salt/Sand Mix $20.00 Each Ton

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

Aerial Lift Truck $125.00 Per hour

Traffic Control Devices Placement & Removal $100.00 Per placement

All equipment listed above:

1 Hour Minimum

Personnel:

1 Hour Minimum

Employee’s 

Effective Rate
Plus 20% Administrative Fee

SEC. 3-1

LICENSE TO DISTRIBUTE/POST ADVERTISING 

MATERIALS

$20.00

$200.00

Daily or

Annually

SEC. 3-43

SIGN PERMITS $25.00 Minimum all signs and

$1.00 Each additional sq. ft. of sign area > 

100 sq. ft.  $200.00 max.

Painter’s License $15.00 One year

Erector’s License $150.00 First year and

$35.00 For renewal

Dog or Cat Altered $6.00 Each year

Dog or Cat Not Altered $12.00 Each year

SEC. 6-46

DOG AND CAT LICENSE

SEC. 3-46

SIGN PAINTER'S OR ERECTOR'S LICENSE

ADOPTED RATE

SEC. 2-311

CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINATIONS

SEC. 2-511

CABLE TELEVSION DIVISION

SEC. 2-572

PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

SEC. 2-809

PUBLIC WORKS

SEC. 2-712

ENGINEERING SERVICES

PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE SERVICES

Page 1

270

Item 14.

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf


City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Late Licensing Doubles After March 31

Duplicate License & Tag $1.00

Tag & License Mailing Fee $1.00 Each Tag/License

SEC. 6-99

LICENSE FOR RIDING SCHOOLS OR STABLES $30.00 One year

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS

International Building Code Plan Review.  (Base 

project value of $1,000 or more)
65% of Building Permit Fee

SEC. 7-19

BUILDING PERMITS

Valuation

$1.00 TO $500.00 $24.75

$500.01 TO $600.00 $27.75

$600.01 TO $700.00 $31.00

$700.01 TO $800.00 $34.00

$800.01 TO $900.00 $37.00

$900.01 TO $1,000.00 $40.25

$1,001.01 TO $1,100.00 $43.25

$1,100.01 TO $1,200.00 $46.25

$1,200.01 TO $1,300.00 $49.50

$1,300.01 TO $1,400.00 $52.50

$1,400.01 TO $1,500.00 $55.50

$1,500.01 TO $1,600.00 $58.75

$1,600.01 TO $1,700.00 $61.75

$1,700.01 TO $1,800.00 $65.00

$1,800.01 TO $1,900.00 $68.00

$1,900.01 TO $2,000.00 $71.00

$2,000.01 TO $3,000.00 $85.50

$3,000.01 TO $4,000.00 $100.00

$4,000.01 TO $5,000.00 $114.25

$5,000.01 TO $6,000.00 $128.75

$6,000.01 TO $7,000.00 $143.25

$7,000.01 TO $8,000.00 $157.50

$8,000.01 TO $9,000.00 $172.00

$9,000.01 TO $10,0000 $186.50

$10,000.01 TO $11,000.00 $200.75

$11,000.01 TO $12,000.00 $215.25

$12,000.01 TO $13,000.00 $229.75

$13,000.01 TO $14,000.00 $244.00

$14,000.01 TO $15,000.00 $258.50

$15,000.01 TO $16,000.00 $273.00

$16,000.01 TO $17,000.00 $287.25

$17,000.01 TO $18,000.00 $301.75

$18,000.01 TO $19,000.00 $316.25

$19,000.01 TO $20,000.00 $330.75

$20,000.01 TO $21,000.00 $345.00

$21,000.01 TO $22,000.00 $359.50

$22,000.01 TO $23,000.00 $374.00

$23,000.01 TO $24,000.00 $388.25

$24,000.01 TO $25,000.00 $402.75

Page 2

271

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$25,000.01 TO $26,000.00 $413.00

$26,000.01 TO $27,000.00 $423.25

$27,000.01 TO $28,000.00 $433.75

$28,000.01 TO $29,000.00 $444.00

$29,000.01 TO $30,000.00 $454.25

$30,000.01 TO $31,000.00 $464.50

$31,000.01 TO $32,000.00 $474.75

$32,000.01 TO $33,000.00 $485.25

$33,000.01 TO $34,000.00 $495.50

$34,000.01 TO $35,000.00 $505.75

$35,000.01 TO $36,000.00 $516.00

$36,000.01 TO $37,000.00 $526.25

$37,000.01 TO $38,000.00 $536.75

$38,000.01 TO $39,000.00 $547.00

$39,000.01 TO $40,000.00 $557.25

$40,000.01 TO $41,000.00 $567.50

$41,000.01 TO $42,000.00 $577.75

$42,000.01 TO $43,000.00 $588.25

$43,000.01 TO $44,000.00 $598.50

$44,000.01 TO $45,000.00 $608.75

$45,000.01 TO $46,000.00 $619.00

$46,000.01 TO $47,000.00 $629.25

$47,000.01 TO $48,000.00 $639.75

$48,000.01 TO $49,000.00 $650.00

$49,000.01 TO $50,000.00 $660.25

$50,000.01 TO $51,000.00 $667.50

$51,000.01 TO $52,000.00 $674.75

$52,000.01 TO $53,000.00 $681.75

$53,000.01 TO $54,000.00 $689.00

$54,000.01 TO $55,000.00 $696.25

$55,000.01 TO $56,000.00 $703.50

$56,000.01 TO $57,000.00 $710.75

$57,000.01 TO $58,000.00 $718.00

$58,000.01 TO $59,000.00 $725.00

$59,000.01 TO $60,000.00 $732.25

$60,000.01 TO$ 61,000.00 $739.50

$61,000.01 TO $62,000.00 $746.75

$62,000.01 TO $63,000.00 $754.00

$63,000.01 TO $64,000.00 $761.25

$64,000.01 TO $65,000.00 $768.50

$65,000.01 TO $66,000.00 $775.50

$66,000.01 TO $67,000.00 $782.75

$67,000.01 TO $68,000.00 $790.00

$68,000.01 TO $69,000.00 $797.25

$69,000.01 TO $70,000.00 $804.50

$70,000.01 TO $71,000.00 $811.75

Page 3

272

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$71,000.01 TO $72,000.00 $818.75

$72,000.01 TO $73,000.00 $826.00

$73,000.01 TO $74,000.00 $833.25

$74,000.01 TO $75,000.00 $840.50

$75,000.01 TO $76,000.00 $847.75

$76,000.01 TO $77,000.00 $855.00

$77,000.01 TO $78,000.00 $862.00

$78,000.01 TO $79,000.00 $869.25

$79,000.01 TO $80,000.00 $876.50

$80,000.01 TO $81,000.00 $883.75

$81,000.01 TO $82,000.00 $891.00

$82,000.01 TO $83,000.00 $898.25

$83,000.01 TO $84,000.00 $905.25

$84,000.01 TO $85,000.00 $912.50

$85,000.01 TO $86,000.00 $919.75

$86,000.01 TO $87,000.00 $927.00

$87,000.01 TO $88,000.00 $934.25

$88,000.01 TO $89,000.00 $941.50

$89,000.01 TO $90,000.00 $948.75

$90,000.01 TO $91,000.00 $955.75

$91,000.01 TO $92,000.00 $963.00

$92,000.01 TO $93,000.00 $970.25

$93,000.01 TO $94,000.00 $977.50

$94,000.01 TO $95,000.00 $984.75

$95,000.01 TO $96,000.00 $992.00

$96,000.01 TO $97,000.00 $999.00

$97,000.01 TO $98,000.00 $1,006.25

$98,000.01 TO $99,000.00 $1,013.50

$99,000.01 TO $100,000.00 $1,020.75

$100,000.01 TO $500,000.00

$1,020.75 + $6.20 

for each 

additional 

$1,000.00 Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

$500,000.01 TO $1,000,000.00

$3,492.75 + $5.15 

for each 

additional 

$1,000.00
Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

$1,000,000.01 AND UP

$6,067.75 + $4.15 

for each 

additional 

$1,000.00 Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

Add: Reinspection Fee  $                                                                  75.00 

Add: Working without permit fee  $                                                               100.00 

SEC. 7-50

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION $150.00 One year

SEC. 7-50

SPECIAL ELECTRICIAN REGISTRATION $150.00 One year

   Electrical Contractors
$100,000/

$300,000

 Special Electricians
$100,000/

$300,000

Base Rate $30.00

SEC. 7-20

RESIDENTIAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION PERMIT FEES

SEC. 7-20

CONDITIONS OF CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

Page 4

273

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

New House $150.00

Rough Wiring-Openings $10.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$7.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.20 Over 30, Per additional opening

Lighting Fixtures:

Incandescent/Fluorescent/Porcelain Bases $10.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$7.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

Electrical Services:

Temporary/Permanent $15.00 Temporary Service

$20.00 To 225-ampere capacity

$30.00 Over 225-ampere capacity

$10.00 Additional replacement services

$7.00 Subpanels

Motors, Per Unit $8.00 0 to 10 HP

$10.00 Over 10 HP

Dishwasher, Disposal, Electric Dryer, Sump 

Pump, Door Opener, Water Heater, Cooking 

Equipment, Bath Fan, Etc. $5.00 Each unit

Central Heating & Cooling Unit $8.00 Each unit

 Supplemental Heating/Cooling $5.00 Each unit

Generators, Transfer Switch, Car Charging 

Station, Hot Tub, Feeder Panel, Etc. $10.00 Each Unit

Reinspection of Unapproved Work $75.00 Rename to: Reinspection Fee 75.00$                                                                 

Reinspection Fee Due To Wrong Address, No 

Address Posted, Incomplete Work, Insufficient 

Information, Unable to Enter, or for Uncorrected 

Violations. $10.00 Each Trip Delete

Add: Working without permit fee 100.00$                                                               

Certificate of Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

Base Rate $30.00

Rough Wiring-Openings $30.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$15.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.30 Over 30, Per additional opening

Lighting Fixtures: $30.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$15.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.30 Over 30, per additional opening

Electrical Services:

Temporary/Permanent $20.00 Temporary Service

$40.00
Permanent Service up to 400 

ampere

$60.00
Permanent Service 401-800 

ampere

$80.00
Permanent Service over 800 

ampere

$10.00 Additional replacement services

Motors, Per Unit $10.00 0 to 10 HP

$15.00 Over 10 HP

Transformers, Per Unit $20.00 0 to 75 KVA

$30.00 Over 75 KVA

Feeder Panels $15.00 Up to 225 A

$20.00 Above 225 A

Dishwasher, Disposal, Electric Dryer, Sump 

Pump, Door Opener, Water Heater, Cooking 

Equipment, Exhaust Fans $5.00 Each unit

Central Heating & Cooling Unit $8.00 Each unit

Supplemental Heating/Cooling $5.00 Each unit

Illuminated Signs and Outline Lighting $10.00 Each sign

Neon and All Signs Using Secondary Voltage of 

600 Volts or More $10.00 Each transformer

Special Equipment such as Generators, X-ray 

Equipment, Converters, Welders Etc. $15.00 Each Unit

Reinspection Fee Due To Wrong Address, No 

Address Posted, Incomplete Work, Insufficient 

Information, Unable to Enter, or for Uncorrected 

Violations $75.00 Each Trip Rename to: Reinspection Fee 75.00$                                                                 

Add: Working without permit fee 100.00$                                                               

In-Ground Swimming Pool/Hot Tub Bonding 

Inspection $30.00

Specialized Systems such as Solar PV Systems, 

Wind Generated Systems, Etc. $30.00

Certificate of Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

SEC. 7-170

ANNUAL PERMIT FOR PLUMBING WORK $100.00 One year

Base Rate $30.00

Water closet, urinals, bidets, tubs, showers, 

lavatories, sinks, hand sinks, floor sinks, grease 

trap, disposal, dishwasher, drinking fountain, 

laundry drain, laundry sink, sump, floor drains, 

roof drains, backwater valve, sewage eject, 

vacuum breakers, mop sinks. $8.50

Water softener, Water heater $15.00

Sewer Connections To/Or Continuation from 

Main $30.00

Multiple Sewer Stubs $15.00 Each

Additional Fixture, Trap or Trap Opening (To 

Apply Towards Minimum Fee) $8.50

Reinspection of Unapproved work $75.00

SEC. 7-20

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION PERMIT FEES

SEC. 7-170

PLUMBING FEES

Page 5

274

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Water Treatment or Storage Units $20.00

Backflow Protective Devices-Water $8.50

Reconstruction or Alteration of Drains, Stacks or 

Vents $20.00

One bathroom house $135.00

Two bathroom house $161.00

Three bathroom house $208.00

Working w/o permit $100.00
SEC. 7-232

LICENSE FEE, MOVING A BUILDING $30.00 One Week

$60.00 One Month

$100.00 Six Months

$200.00 One Year

Structure Less than 200 sq. ft. $10.00

Structure More than 200 sq. ft. and Less than 500 

sq. ft. $50.00

Structure More than 500 sq. ft. $100.00

Base Rate $30.00

New House $150.00

Apartments $70.00 Per Unit

AC 0 to 3 Ton $20.00

AC 3.5 Ton – 5 Ton $40.00

AC 5.5 Ton – 30 Ton $50.00

AC 30.5 – 50 Ton $60.00

AC over 50 Ton $3.00 Per Ton

AH 0 to 10,000 CFM $20.00

AH over 10,000 CFM $30.00

Air-to-Air Heat Exchanger $15.00

Bath Exhaust $5.00

Boiler – 0 to 100,000 $20.00

Boiler – 100,001 to 500,000 $30.00

Boiler – 500,001 to 1,000,000 $45.00

Boiler 1,000,000 to 1,750,000 $60.00 Correction on unit #: Boiler 1,000,001 to 1,750,000

Boiler over 1,750,000 $100.00

Duct Alterations $20.00

Fireplace $15.00
Higher degree of inspection is now required, to ensure code 

is met.  The proposed fee better reflects our time on this.
25.00$                                                                 

Furnace – Electric $25.00

Furnace – Gas $25.00

Furnace Vents $15.00

HPP 1-4 Outlets $0.00 No charge Delete,  not used.

HPP 5+ Outlets $2.00 Per Outlet Delete,  not used.

In-floor Heat $20.00

VAV Boxes $10.00

Ventilation – Multiple $10.00 Delete,  not used.

Ventilation – OH $10.00 Delete,  not used.

Ventilation – Type 1 Hood $50.00

Ventilation – Type 2 Hood $25.00

Working w/o Permit $100.00

Incinerator – Comm/Ind $70.00 Delete,  not used.

Incinerator – Residential $16.25 Delete,  not used.

Miscellaneous $20.00 30.00$                                                                 

NPP 1-4 Outlets $2.00 Delete,  not used.

NPP 5+ per Outlet $0.50 Delete,  not used.

Other per Hr $40.00 Per Hour Delete,  not used.

Outside Hr Change $40.00 Per Hour Delete,  not used.

Plan Review $30.00 Per Hour Delete.  This is covered in the building plan review fees.
-$                                                                      

Add: CSST Inspection up to $500 35.00$                                                                 

Add: CSST Inspection up to $501-$2,000 60.00$                                                                 

Add: CSST Inspection over $2,000 85.00$                                                                 

Add: Fuel gas piping 28.00$                                                                 

Reinspection Fee $75.00

Base Rate $20.00

1/6 hp – 1/3 hp $15.00

1/3 hp – 1 hp $20.00

1 hp or greater $30.00

Cooling Towers $20.00

Walk-in Coolers/Freezers $20.00

Unit Coolers $20.00

Industrial Refrigeration $8.00 Per hp

Condominium Conversion $400.00 Per Unit

Initial Inspection See Attached

First Re-inspection $100.00

Second Re-inspection $150.00

Third and Each Subsequent Re-inspection $200.00

Owner does not show $50.00
With verbal acknowledgement of 

appointment by owner/occupant

Inspection after normal business hours $50.00

Day Care Inspections $50.00

REFRIGERATION FEES

SEC. 7-444

CONDOMINIUM CONVERSION

   Condensing Units:

SEC. 7-247

MOVING PERMIT FEE ACCORDING TO STRUCTURE

SEC. 7-414

MECHANICAL FEES

SEC. 9-25

COMMERCIAL FIRE INSPECTION

Page 6

275

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Temporary Structure Inspection $50.00 Initial structure

$25.00 each additional temp structure

FALSE ALARMS

1st  occurrence of year $0.00

2nd occurrence of year $0.00

3rd occurrence of year $200.00

4th occurrence of year $200.00

5th-9th occurrence of year $275.00 Each

10th and above occurrence of year $425.00 Each

Evidence of Repair in Lieu of Fee Fire Chief discretion

Alarm activation without notification $200.00 Each occurrence

   One & Two Single Family Home $100.00

0-4,999 square foot $80.00 Per Floor

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00 Per Floor

7,500+ square foot $240.00 Per Floor

System Hydro Test (additional) $80.00

Re-inspections due to test failure $40.00 Per hour

Stand Pipe (additional) $150.00

Fire Pump (additional) $150.00

Kitchen Hood Permits $40.00

System installed without permit $160.00 Per system

System installed/operating w/o testing $320.00 Per system

0-4,999 square foot $80.00 Per Floor

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00 Per Floor

7,500+ square foot $240.00 Per Floor

Acceptance testing of Newly installed and/or 

modified alarm systems $40.00 Per Hour, Per Inspector

Re-inspections due to test failure $40.00 Per hour

System installed without permit $160.00 Per system

System installed/operating w/o test $320.00 Per system

0-4,999 square foot $80.00

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00

7,500+ square foot $240.00

Initial permits $100.00

Plan review and inspection $80.00

Re-inspection due to test failure $40.00

Inspection after normal hours $40.00

Passenger vehicle fire (<10,000 lbs) $150.00

Comm. vehicle fire (>10,000 lbs) $200.00

Extrication of victim from vehicle $250.00

Personnel without equipment $30.00 Per Hour, Per Person

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00

Extrication of victim from vehicle $250.00

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Additional response personnel $20.00 Each- Per hour

Expended Materials Replacement cost

Equipment Repair/Cleaning Cost (parts,labor,s/h)

Damaged Equipment/Property Cost to replace/repair

Other (incl. Contracted svcs/equip) Cost

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Specialized Technical Rescue Equip $400.00 Per incident

Expended Materials Replacement cost

Equipment Repair/Cleaning Cost (parts,labor,s/h)

Damaged Equipment/Property Cost to replace/repair

Other (incl. Contracted svcs/equip) Cost

New Location $150.00 Each Event

Repeat Location - Display Cost $1-$1,000 $50.00

Repeat Location – Display Cost $1,001 or greater $75.00

Permanent & Temporary Structure Inspection $100.00
Per inspection, per location, if not 

reimbursed by the state

Installation of new above or below ground tank
$200.00 Per Tank

Removal of above or below ground tanks $150.00 Per Tank

Modification of tanks, piping, valves and 

dispensing equipment to include reconstruction, 

tapping, tank cutting, vent pipe relocations, 

dispenser piping, repiping and tank repair of 

repiping. $75.00

Permanent LP Tank Installation $80.00 Per tank

Temporary LP Tank Installation $40.00 Per tank

32 Gallon Garbage Cart $9.00 Per month

     32 Gallon Replacement Cart $35.00

TECHNICAL RESCUE

FIREWORKS PERMIT

FLAMMABLE/COMBUSTIBLE LIQUID TANK PERMIT

   Fire Alarm Systems Construction Permits

   Clean Agent Fire Suppression System Construction Permits

VEHICLE FIRES & EXTRICATIONS

SPECIAL EVENT STANDBY

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL RESPONSE

   Solar Panel Fire Permit

SEC. 10-5

GARBAGE AND REFUSE

RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM

FIRE ALARM/SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTIONS

   Fire Sprinkler System Construction Permits

Page 7

276

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

68 Gallon Garbage Cart $17.00 Per month

     68 Gallon Replacement Cart $41.50

95 Gallon Garbage Cart $26.50 Per month

     95 Gallon Replacement Cart $48.00

95 Gallon Yard Waste Cart $10.00 Per dump

     April, October, November $5.00 Per dump

     Replacement Yard Waste Cart $58.00

     Additional Yard Waste Cart $50.00 (no more than 2)

Christmas Tree Tags $1.25 Each

Appliances $7.50 Each

Computers/Televisions $5.00 Each

Bicycle Tire $1.00 Each

Motorcycle Tire $2.00 Each

Automobile Tire $2.50 Each

     With Rim $5.00 Each

Truck/Tractor Tire $6.50 Each

     With Rim $9.00 Each

Sand Bags $0.50 Each

Extra Refuse Bag Tag $1.25 Each

Demolition Waste $59.15 Per ton

Solid Waste $57.50 Per ton

Yard Waste $29.50 Per ton

Scale Charge $3.00

Leaf Vacuum Service $50.00 Per visit

Asphalt Shingles- free of contaminants $30.00 Per ton

Asphalt Shingles- with contaminants
$59.15 

Per ton + $10.00/ton service 

charge

For information only. Fees set by Code of 

Ordinances

Permit $300.00 Per Receptacle, Per Year

Initial Inspection $50.00 Each building and

$20.00 Each additional unit

First Re-inspection

*If violations are corrected at the time of first re-

inspection; fee will be waived.

Second Re-inspection $80.00 Each unit re-inspected

Third Re-inspection $160.00 Each unit re-inspected

Fourth Re-inspection $320.00 Each unit re-inspected

Inaccessible Unit $25.00 Each unit

Tri-Annual Registration Fee $75.00 Each building

Replacement of Occupancy Permit $5.00 Each unit

Permit Unavailable During Any Inspection $25.00 Each unit

Re-scheduling fee-

*If owner/agent canceled within 48 hrs of 

inspection or does not show for inspection $50.00* Each Unit

Requested inspection outside normal cycle $50.00 *if violations exist

0-25 Students $40.00

25-50 Students $80.00

More than 50 Students $120.00

Fire Extinguisher recharge $25.00 Per extinguisher

SEC. 13-35

MOBILE MERCHANT $50.00 Per month

$500.00 Each year

SEC. 13-63

PAWNBROKER LICENSE $65.00 Each year

If a Resident Merchant

A.  The stock of goods on hand is valued at five 

thousand dollars or less. $35.00

B.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 

of five thousand dollars, but not more than fifteen 

thousand dollars. $65.00

C.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 

of fifteen thousand dollars. $110.00

If a Transient Merchant

A.  The stock of goods on hand is valued at five 

thousand dollars or less. $165.00

B.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 

of five thousand dollars, but not in excess of 

fifteen thousand dollars. $330.00

C.  The stock of goods is valued in excess of fifteen 

thousand dollars. $550.00

SEC. 13-137

FALSE ALARM CALLS
$65.00

Per call after the 5th False Alarm 

per calendar year

$100.00
Per call after the 10th False Alarm 

per calendar year

Alarm Business Permit $0.00

Alarm Agent Permit $0.00

Alarm System Permit $0.00

SEC. 14-32

MOBILE HOME PARK PRELIMINARY PLAN FEE $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

FIRE EXTINGUISHER TRAINING

SEC. 13-107

CLOSING - OUT SALE LICENSE

SEC. 10-13

TRASH DUMPSTERS OR RECEPTACLES IN CITY PARKING LOTS

SEC. 13-138

ALARM BUSINESS PERMITS OR ALARM AGENT PERMITS

SEC. 14-75

MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISIONS

$40.00* Each Unit

SEC. 11-84

MINIMUM RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION

Page 8

277

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Preliminary Plan Fee $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

Final Plan or Detailed Site Plan Fee $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

SEC. 15-5

ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES BY CITY AFTER 

NOTICE

1-Hour Minimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 

against the property for collection 

in the same manner as a property 

tax.  Together with an 

administrative expense of $5.                          

I.C.A. § 364.12(3)(a), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment

Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

SEC. 15-41

JUNK VEHICLES (IMPOUNDMENT FEE)

As per Police Division Wrecker and 

Storage Contract

ADULT PROGRAMS

Basketball Leagues $370.00 Each Team 10 games

Couples Volleyball Class $29.00 Per person 8 weeks

Volleyball League $125.00 Each team 14 games

Mini Volleyball $75.00 Each team 6 games

Softball Leagues – 14 games

Registration $355.00 Each team

Player Fees $70.00 Each team

Mixed League Softball Plus $25.00

Ball Field Rental (field as is) $8.00 Per hour

Youth Games Ball Field Rental - Non-profit

   501C3 Field Rental

      Week Day Evening $16.00

      Multiple Rentals (Max. 75 per season) $500 Max

Fall Softball League – 10 games

Registration $255.00 Each team

Player Fees $60.00 Each team

Softball Field Rental

  One Field - One Day $50.00

Complex (weekend 1 & 2 day) $110.00
Plus any additional staff cost over 

the initial field preparation

Pfeiffer (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00
Plus any additional staff cost over 

the initial field preparation

Pfeiffer (field/night, league) $60.00

Kickball League $75.00

Flag Football League – 4 on 4 $100.00 Each team

Player Fee $15.00 Each player

Dodgeball $75.00

Golf Lessons – 4 lessons N/A

Tennis Lessons – 8 lessons N/A

Tournaments Cost Plus $20.00

Open Gym Schools, residents $3.00 Or RC punch card/membership

Open Gym Schools, non-residents $6.00

Beach House (all day)

Weekend (Friday-Sunday, Holidays)

     West $100.00

     East $200.00

     Full Facility $275.00

Weekday (Monday-Thursday)

     West $62.50

     East $125.00

     Full Facility $175.00

Shelter Rental - All Day $25.00

Up to 6 hours N/A

Over 6 hours N/A

Gateway Shelter (10am-10:30pm)

Monday - Thursday $70.00

Friday-Sunday & Holidays $110.00

Racquetball League – 11 games

     Singles $35.00

Racquetball Lessons – 6 lessons $33.00

Table Tennis League $16.00

EXERCISE CLASSES

Specialty Classes
Instructor + 

$10.00

Exercise Tryouts N/A

Fitness Pass w/o Rec Membership

4 months unlimited N/A

1 month unlimited N/A

Fitness Pass w/ Rec Membership

4 months unlimited N/A

1 month unlimited N/A

Circuit Weight Training

w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $32.00

Circuit Weight Training

w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $16.00

RECREATION DIVISION PROGRAM FEES

CHAPTER 17, CEDAR FALLS PARKS AND RECREATION

Page 9

278

Item 14.

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf


City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Cardio Cycling - Per Month

w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $44.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month

w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $22.00

Rec Xfit - Monthly

w/Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week $29.00

Rec Xfit - Monthly

w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week $58.00

Special Fitness Classes (without FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month
$60.00

Special Fitness Classes (with FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month
$30.00

Teen Weight Lifting Training

(2) 2-hour classes $28.00
*RCM - Rec Center Membership

*FP - Fitness Pass

YOUTH PROGRAMS

Boys Baseball T-ball

Registration $40.00

Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 1

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 2-3

Registration $50.00

Sponsor $500.00

Boys Baseball 4-5

Registration $50.00

Sponsor $600.00

Girls Softball T-ball

Registration $40.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball Kind. & 1

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 2-3

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $500.00

Girls Softball 4-6

Registration $50.00

Sponsor $500.00

Kindergarten Basketball

Registration $34.00

Sponsor $200.00

Boys Basketball 5-6

Registration $44.00

Sponsor $500.00

Boys Basketball 3-4

Registration $39.00

Sponsor $300.00

Boys Basketball 1-2

Registration $34.00

Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 5-6 (format change)

Registration $39.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Basketball 3-4

Registration $39.00

Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 1-2

Registration $34.00

Sponsor $300.00

Summer Track

Registration $50.00

Sponsor $300.00

Volleyball 3-6 (format change) (8 weeks)

Registration $44.00

Sponsor $400.00

Flag Football K-2 (8 weeks)

Registration $44.00

Sponsor $200.00

Flag Football 3-4

Registration $44.00

Sponsor $300.00

Flag Football 5-6

Registration $44.00

Sponsor $500.00

Baseball Club - Wrecking Crew $50.00

Softball Club - Wrecking Crew $50.00

Baseball Shortstops $35.00

Softball Shortstops $35.00

Soccer K, 1 & 2

Registration $34.00

Sponsor $350.00

Golf Lessons N/A

Tennis Lessons $55.00

Tot Lot 

One Week $32.00

Page 10

279

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Six Weeks $150.00

One Day $9.00

Open Gym in schools No Charge

Special Events Cost Plus $5.00

Tournaments Cost Plus 0-10%

Indoor Park, 1-5 years $28.00

Full Session (18- 22 times) $40.00

Mini Session $18.00

Daily $3.00

Chew & View – 2 hours $6.00

Parents Night Out – 2 hours $8.00

Birthday Party $125.00

Birthday Party - Theme Package $155.00

   Add Pizza $30.00

3 on 3 Basketball Tourney $30.00 Per Team

Soccer Tournament $20.00

Hot Shot Basketball $5.00

Free Throw Contest $5.00

Karate $32.00

New Sports & Active Programs Charge Comparable

Sack Lunch Days $28.00

Tumbling - 5 sessions $32.00

Hockey – Inline

Registration N/A

Sponsor N/A

Camp Cedar Falls

One Week $120.00

Full Summer 8 weeks (1 week free) $840.00

Full Summer 9 weeks (1 week free) $960.00

Pre and Post Care

Daily $5.00

Weekly $20.00

Note: Sponsorship determined by cost of t-shirts 

adjusted up to the nearest $50.00 increment.

SWIM POOL FEES

Daily Admission – Indoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00

Youth (3-17) $5.00

Adult (18 & Up) $5.00

Daily Admission – Outdoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00

Youth (3-17) $8.00

Adult (18 & Up) $8.00

Summer

Memorial Day-1st Day of School

Family Season Pass

Resident** $210.00

Non-Resident** $260.00

*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 3 

or less children. Ea. Additional child in the 

family will be $10.00

Child Care Provider Pool Pass - Mon-Fri $70.00

Adult Season Pass

Resident $130.00

Non-Resident $160.00

Youth & Sr. (65 & Up) Season Pass 

Resident $125.00

Non-Resident $155.00

Lap Swim – Indoor

Resident $85.00

Non-Resident $95.00

**Purchase your summer swim pass prior to 

May 15 & receive a $10 discount for a family & 

$5 for an individual pass.

Winter

1st Day of School-Memorial Day

Family Season Pass (w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $55.00

Non-Resident $60.00

Family Season Pass (w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $135.00

Non-Resident $145.00

Adult Season Pass (w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $30.00

Non-Resident $35.00

Adult Season Pass (w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $100.00

Non-Resident $105.00

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under

(w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $30.00

Non-Resident $35.00

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under

(w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $80.00

Non-Resident $85.00

*RCM - Rec Center Membership

Swim Lesson – Youth $34.00

Swim Lesson – Adult $38.00

WSI N/A

Aqua Trim $34.00

Page 11

280

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Deep Water Aqua Trim $34.00

Aqua Trim Tryout $5.00

Stretching Aqua Trim $34.00

Lap Swim – Daily Indoor $5.00 Or Pass

Life Guarding $125.00

Lifeguard Recertification $86.00

Scuba Diving Cost Plus $10.00

Pool Rental ID, 1-75 people $65/hr.

Pool Rental ID, 76 or more people $80/hr.

Pool Rental OD

Zero Depth – 2 hours $220.00

Zero Depth / Lazy River /

2 Waterslides -- 2 hours
$445.00

Lap Pool / Lazy River /

2 Waterslides – 2 hours
$545.00

Lap Pool – 2 hours $345.00

Entire Facility – 2 hours

No Concessions $645.00

Concessions Sold - Resident $35.00/hr.

Cost - Programs that are listed, as cost will be 

charged on the basis of direct program costs 

excluding administration and office costs.

New programs will be charged a comparable 

fee to other similar activities

Sponsor fee may change in some cases 

depending on the registration, program 

changes or sponsor charge.

** Summer Family Swim Pass - Resident & Non-

Resident - Will be the fee listed for 1 adult or 4 

or less children or 2 adults and 3 or less 

children.  

Each additional child in the family will be 

$10.00.  Implemented Spring 2012.

RECREATION CENTER

Admission

Daily Resident

12 Grade & Under $6.00

Adult $9.00

Senior Citizen $6.00

Holiday Special Event Admission $3.00 Per person – Any age

Daily Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $6.00

Adult $9.00

Senior Citizen $6.00

Resident Yearly Memberships**

Individual

12 Grade & Under $115.00

Adult $175.00

Senior Citizen $155.00

Family $260.00

Non-Resident Yearly Memberships**

Individual

12 Grade & Under $210.00

Adult $355.00

Senior Citizen $290.00

Family $465.00

4-Month (May-August only)

Resident

12 Grade & Under $57.50

Adult $85.00

Senior Citizen $77.50

Family $130.00

Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $105.00

Adult $177.50

Senior Citizen $145.00

Family $232.50

20-Punch Card – Residents

12 Grade & Under $58.00

Adult $85.00

Senior Citizen $78.00

20-Punch Card – Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $140.00

Adult $140.00

Senior Citizen $120.00

Replace I.D. Card $9.00

Corporate Rate

Individual $235.00

Family $310.00

Racquetball

Drop-in, per hour $0.00 Each

Reservation, per hour $2.00 Each

10 Punch Card $17.00 to $20.00 Value

Child Care

2-hour stay $3.00

20-Punch Card $40.00

Rentals

Resident Non-profit Organizations

Entire facility w/ adequate approved adult 

supervision 1:20 ratio

Per Hour $100.00

Page 12

281

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Each additional hour N/A

Maximum cost (12 hr. max.) N/A

Meeting Room $10.00 Per hour

Full Room $25.00 Per hour

Gym Rental

Fit Gym $35.00 Per hour + staff cost 

½ of Old Gym $35.00 Per hour + staff cost 

All of Old Gym $70.00 Per hour + staff cost 

Activity Room $25.00 Per hour + staff cost 

*s.c. - Staff Cost (if needed) $25.00

** Memberships include free towel usage and 

all drop-in fitness classes. Members of as April 

30, 2019 wanting to get a fitness pass would 

pay the difference between the old 

membership price and the new price.

CITY EMPLOYEE WELLNESS RATES

Recreation Center Membership

Individual 30.00                                                               

Family 40.00                                                               

Summer Swim Pass, purchased after May 1

Individual 75.00                                                               

Family 115.00                                                            

*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 

3 or less children. Ea. Additional child in the 

family will be $10.00

Indoor Lap Swim Pass 45.00  - EE, Reserves, Retiree only

Winter Swim Pass, purchased after August 15

Individual w/RCM 12.50                                                               

Family w/RCM 25.00                                                               

Individual w/o RCM 47.50                                                               

Family w/o RCM 65.00                                                               

A full list of drop in fitness classes now 

included under the membership can be found 

the web at www.cedarfalls.com/fitness

   COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL

      Regular Hours:

        Monday-Friday 8am - 4pm

 Seniors citizens (over 65) Events: 

   Monday-Friday Non-Holidays 8am - 4pm

      Non-Organized Clubs No Charge

      Organized Clubs $8.00 Per hour

   Outside Regular Community Center

      Hours
$10.00 Per hour

All Other Non-Profit Events:

Non-Holiday weekdays 8am-4pm 

 Area of facility (Includes Staff Cost):

 Minimum 1 1/2 hour Rental

    Main Hall $50.00 Per hour

    Dance Floor $25.00 Per hour

    Main Hall and Dance Floor $60.00 Per hour

Weekends, Holidays & Outside of Regular 

Hours - 

Minimum 1 1/2 hour Rental

 Area of facility (Includes Staff Cost):

    Main Hall $60.00 Per hour

    Dance Floor $30.00 Per hour

    Main Hall and Dance Floor $75.00 Per hour

Security Deposits for Weekends, Holidays & 

Outside of Regular Hours:

   Non-Beer and/or Wine Events $250.00

   Events with Beer and/or Wine $500.00

HEARST CENTER FOR THE ARTS:

Regular Business Hours:

Tuesday & Thursday  10am - 9pm

Wednesday & Friday  10am - 5pm

    Saturday & Sunday 1pm - 4pm

Members of Friends of the Hearst receive 10% 

off space rental

Qualifying nonprofit or educational groups 

receive 50% off space rental

Equipment and staffing fees are the same for 

everyone

Mae Latta Hall 45.00                      Per hour

Hearst Reading Room 20.00                      Per hour

Nancy Price Meeting Room 15.00                      Per hour

Rownd I & Rownd II Classrooms 35.00                      Per hour for one room

50.00                      Per hour for both rooms

McElroy Classroom 35.00                      Per hour

Corning Patio 40.00                      Per hour

20.00                      

Per hour if rented in addition to 

classroom

Sculpture Garden 350.00                    up to four hours

50.00                      each additional hour

Equipment Use and Service:

Piano 45.00                      

Room Set-Up 30.00                      for events fewer than 25

45.00                      for groups 26-100

Additional Fees:

Page 13

282

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Staff member if event takes place outside 

center hours
$30.00 Per hour

An additional fee will be deducted from the 

security deposit if the space requires cleaning.

A nonrefundable deposit of 50% of the rental 

fee is due at the time the reservation is made

All events during which food or beverages will 

be served require a security deposit of $250.00

Beer and wine may be served only 

in compliance with the Hearst Center's 

alcoholic beverage policy and will require a 

$500 security deposit. Hard liquor is not 

allowed

VISITOR CENTER RENTAL

During Regular Business Hours:

     Monday-Friday 8am - 5pm
30 people maximum & use of 

conference room and patio only

         Half Day (4 hours) $150.00 Flat Fee

         Full Day (8 hours) $300.00 Flat Fee

   Saturday 9am - 4pm & Sunday Noon-4pm $75.00

Per hour, during open hours, 30 

people maximum & use of 

conference room and patio only

  Outside Regular Visitor Center Hours $100.00
Per hour, 30 people maximum & 

use of conference room and patio 

only

Usage Fees

Annual

First Dog $15.00

Each Additional Dog $15.00

Daily $2.00 Per dog

Memorial Brick $75.00

Services

Adult Spaces, Flush Marker Section $675.00

Adult Spaces, Monument Section $800.00

Infant Spaces 2’ X 5’ $250.00

Infant Spaces 2.5’ X 5’ $260.00

Adult Open and Close – Weekday $750.00

Adult Open and Close – Saturday  a.m. $900.00

Adult Open and Close – Saturday p.m. $950.00

Adult Open and Close – Less than 8-hour 

Notice
$925.00

Infant Open and Close – Weekday

Without Tent $335.00

With Tent $385.00

Infant Open and Close – Saturday

Without Tent $425.00

With Tent $500.00

PM - Add $50.00

Cremains – Weekday

Without Tent $350.00

With Tent $400.00

Cremains – Saturday

Without Tent $425.00

With Tent $500.00

PM - Add $60.00

Winter Cremains – Weekday with Tent $625.00

Winter Cremains – Saturday a.m. with Tent $725.00

Winter Cremains – Saturday p.m. with Tent $775.00

Services before 9:00 a.m. $175.00 Additional

$200.00 Additional and

$50.00 Each hr after 4:00 p.m.

Disinterment – Adult $1,250.00

Disinterment – Infant/Cremains $550.00

Foundation and Marker Permit (Charged to 

Monument Company)
$65.00

Cemetery Lot Ownership and Deed Changes $60.00

NOTE: No Tent Service Available for Interments 

which Require a Vault

SEC. 16-99

HAZARDOUS WASTE SPILLS $50.00 Min. per Incident

SEC. 17-232

TREE TRIMMER’S LICENSE $55.00 Each year 

  Bond or Evidence of Insurance $5,000.00

  Certificate of Liability Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

SEC. 17-247

FAILURE TO DESTROY NOXIOUS WEEDS & OTHER 

VEGETATION

CEMETERY FEES

Services entering Cemetery after 3:00 p.m.

VETERANS PARK

PAW PARK

Page 14

283

Item 14.



City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

1-Hour Minimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 

against the property for collection 

in the same manner as a property 

tax.                          

I.C.A.§364.12(3)(g), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment

Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

SEC. 19-176

SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REMOVAL PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 19-183

REPAIR OF DEFECTIVE SIDEWALKS

For Hire Contractor Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

These costs shall be assessed 

against the abutting property for 

collection in the same manner as a 

property tax.                          

I.C.A.§364.12(2)(b), (e)                                                                            

SEC. 19-185

REMOVAL OF SNOW & ICE FROM SIDEWALKS

1-Hour Minimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 

against the property for collection 

in the same manner as a property 

tax.                          

I.C.A.§364.12(3)(g), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment

Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

SEC. 19-214

DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 19-217

DRIVEWAY CONTRACTOR'S BOND
$5,000.00 Renewable annually

SEC. 19-2  

STREET MEETINGS
Use of barricades for block parties or street 

closures
$25.00 Block - up to Maximum of $100.00

SEC. 19-74(d)

TABLES, CHAIRS AND/OR BENCHES PERMIT
$25.00 Annually

SEC. 19-74(e)

TEMPORARY SIGNS PERMIT FOR DOWNTOWN 

SIDEWALK $25.00 Annually

SEC. 19-96

SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT

$50.00

$250.00

Annually

Cash deposit

SEC. 19-100

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT
$1.00

Per square foot of public sidewalk 

within sidewalk café area

SEC. 19-134

EXCAVATION PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 20-34

APPROVAL OF MINOR PLAT
$150.00

SEC. 20-59

APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY PLAT
$300.00 Plus $5.00 per acre

SEC. 20-104

APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT
$300.00

SEC. 20-144

PROCESSING FEES FOR DEDICATION, VACATION 

OF CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY

$200.00

UTILITY EASEMENT VACATION $200.00

PARKING METER Fees Covered By Ordinance

SEC. 23-359

IMMOBILIZATION OF VEHICLES
$50.00

SEC. 23-413

PARKING PERMITS
$35.00 per month

SEC. 23-413

PAID PARKING RATES
$.50/$3.00 per hour/per day until 5 pm

$3.00 after 5 pm

SEC. 23-654

ISSUANCE OF BICYCLE REGISTRATION TAG
$2.00

Septic Tank Discharge Fee $13.00
per 1,000 gallons of tank truck 

capacity

Hydro-Cleaner $150.00 Per Hour

Sludge Truck $150.00 Per Hour

Sewer Televising  Apparatus $150.00 Per Hour

Utility Truck $75.00 Per Hour

Pump $50.00 Per Hour

All equipment listed above:

   1-Hour Minimum

Personnel:

   1-Hour Minimum

Employee's 

Effective Rate
Plus 20% administrative fee

Subdivision plat or initial land development $50.00 Per acre exposed

Subsequent development of lot or parcel of 

original tract of land
$100.00 Single family unit

SEC. 24-304

STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN APPLICATION 

CHAPER 24 UTILITIES

SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL

CHAPTER 23

TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Page 15

284

Item 14.

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_rates_16.pdf


City of Cedar Falls  tmp1E35.tmp

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$50.00
Per residential unit for multiple 

unit complex

$10.00
Per 1,000 sq. ft. of impervious 

surface

  SEC. 25-30 License Fee $110.00 Each year before March 31

$165.00 after March 31

$30.00 Each vehicle before March 31

$45.00 after March 31

Vehicle replacement/substitution $10.00
Each vehicle/

Each occurrence

SEC. 25-35

APPLICATION FOR DRIVER LICENSE $12.00 Each

SEC. 25-41 

Renewal of License $6.00 Each renewal before March 31

$12.00 Each renewal after March 31

Rezoning Request $500.00

Board of Adjustment – Variances $350.00

Board of Adjustment – Special Exceptions $350.00

Land Use Permits $25.00

Many permits take 30-60 minutes to help the customer, 

outside the time to review and process the permit.  It is 

proposed to continue gradually increasing this each year, 

also keeping better pace with inflation.
30.00$                                                                 

Land Use Permits for Commercial and Multi-

family (over 2 units), when no Site Plan Review is 

applicable

Add category.  In some cases, P&Z/CC review does not 

apply to a development, however it is still reviewed in 

detail by staff for compliance with Zoning and Stormwater 

ordinances, site circulation/access, and more.  Staff can be 

involved in drafting easement agreements or other 

arrangements for these sites.
150.00$                                                               

Site Plan Review
  - Façade Review for commercial & minor 

residential improvements
$50.00

  - Residential Review, Single Family & Two-Family 

Residential
$100.00

  - Commercial Review including multi-family 

residential facilities
$300.00

SEC. 26-134    

Communication Towers $200.00

Small Wireless Facility 

Initial Application Fee
$500.00

5 or more, $500/first + $100/each 

additional

Annual Usage Fee $270.00 per year, per facility
SEC. 26-138

Wind Energy Facilities $200.00

The purpose of this ordinance is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life, health, property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, 

construction, quality of materials, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of all nonresidential businesses, buildings and structures within this jurisdiction and 

certain equipment specifically regulated by the adopted Fire Code of the City of Cedar Falls. 

SEC. 26-4

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT (TEXT OR MAP)

COMMERCIAL FIRE INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE

SEC. 25

VEHICLES FOR HIRE

Page 16

285

Item 14.



286

Item 15.



287

Item 15.



288

Item 15.



289

Item 15.



290

Item 15.



291

Item 15.



292

Item 15.



293

Item 15.



294

Item 15.



295

Item 15.



296

Item 15.



297

Item 15.



298

Item 15.



299

Item 15.



300

Item 16.



301

Item 16.



302

Item 16.



303

Item 16.



304

Item 16.



305

Item 16.



306

Item 16.



307

Item 16.



308

Item 16.



309

Item 16.



310

Item 16.



311

Item 17.



312

Item 17.



313

Item 17.



314

Item 17.



315

Item 17.



316

Item 17.



317

Item 17.



318

Item 17.



319

Item 17.



320

Item 17.



321

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 

 

 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: June 1, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Updating of Hearst Center monument sign on West Seerley Blvd. 

 

Summary 
The original monument sign in front of the Hearst Center for the Arts dates to 1989 and still 
retains the original logo for the organization. The logo was redesigned in 2016. The proposed 
update of the sign includes removal and repainting, application the current logo, and 
reinstallation.  

Funding 
Friends of the Hearst, the Hearst Center’s 501(c)3 support organization,  will cover all expenses 
for the project. Estimated cost is $1690.00. Funding from Friends is generated through 
membership dues and charitable donations from the community. 

Permitting 
The signage upgrade is exempt from the permit requirement per City Code Section 3-42:   
The following shall not require a sign permit; however, the exemption from obtaining a permit 
shall not relieve the owner of a sign from the responsibility of erecting and maintaining such a 
sign and from compliance with the provisions of this article: 
 (1) Servicing, painting, repairing or cleaning of an existing sign or the change of the 
advertising copy or message on a sign, unless a larger structural change is made. 

Approvals 
The Art and Culture Board approved the project on May 27, 2020. The Board recommends 
Council approve the updated monument sign at the Hearst Center. If approved, the project is 
anticipated to be complete by the end of June 2020. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 

 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Kim Manning, Visitors and Tourism Bureau/Cultural Programs Manager 
 

322

Item 18.



323

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 

 

 TO: The Honorable Robert Green and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: June 1, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Amended Contract with Sculptor Gillian Christy 

 
Please find attached an amended contract with sculptor Gillian Christy. The Public Art project 
described below was originally scheduled for installation at City Hall in June of 2020, and was 
approved by City Council at the January 20, 2020 meeting. I am requesting approval of the 
amended contract with extended deadlines and an installation schedule for June of 2021.  
 
Due to ongoing disruptions caused by COVID-19, the artist was not allowed to continue work on 
fabrication of the sculpture in her Boston studio, and is currently still under ‘stay home’ orders. 
Concurrently, the cancellation of the 2020 Sturgis Falls celebration made it impossible to 
continue with the original installation and dedication plans for June of 2020.  The attached 
amended contract reflects a revised schedule of work leading to an installation and public 
dedication of the final work during the 2021 Sturgis Falls celebration. 
 
Project Review:  The attached contract with Gillian Christy is for the design and fabrication of a 
sculpture to be installed at the west side of City Hall, at 220 Clay Street, near the main 
entrance.  The City will complete the site work and foundation for the artwork. Electricity is 
available at the site and the City will provide uplighting. Site work will be funded through the 
Public Works budget ($2,000.00). The Cedar Falls Public Art Committee (PAC) actively 
fundraised through their Cedar Falls Community Foundation account, receiving a large donation 
from the Crews family and additional donations from the community, to meet the project 
budget of $20,000.00. The Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board approved $5,000.00 of board 
funds to support the project in July 2019, and PAC will contribute $2,000.00. The remaining 
$13,000.00 was raised through private donations at the Community Foundation, including 
$1,000.00 from the Cedar Falls Rotary. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Kim Manning, Visitors and Tourism Bureau/Cultural Programs Manager 

324

Item 19.



AGREEMENT BETWEEN SCULPTOR AND CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 22nd day of May, 2020, by and 
between Gillian Christy, whose mailing address for purposes of this Agreement is 11 Humphreys 
Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02125 (hereinafter referred to as the "Sculptor") and the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, whose mailing address for purposes of this Agreement is c/o City Clerk, 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (hereinafter referred to as the "Owner"). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, Owner desires to have a public sculpture completed, to be displayed on its 
property at the prepared sculpture site on the west side of City Hall, at 220 Clay Street,  in Cedar 
Falls, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the “Site”): and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sculptor has prepared a description of the sculpture and an artist's plan and 
has delivered the same to Owner; and  
 

WHEREAS, Sculptor has prepared plans and specifications for the sculpture’s 
foundation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Owner has approved said description of sculpture and artist's sketch and the 
plans and specifications for the foundation, and desires to commission the sculpture; and 
 
            WHEREAS, under the circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic, completion of a 
previous agreement between the Owner and the Sculptor dated December 5, 2019 could not be 
completed, so the parties have agreed to rescind that previous agreement and enter into a new 
agreement; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have reached agreement on this matter and desire to reduce their 
agreement to writing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS 
HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
  

1. Scope of Work.   
 

(a) The Sculptor shall produce, deliver and install at Sculptor’s sole 
cost and sole risk a sculpture (hereinafter referred to as the "Art Work") as 
described in the Sculptor's description of sculpture, plan sketch and model, 
attached hereto and marked Exhibit "A."  The parties agree that the Art Work 
shall consist generally of stainless steel, at approximately 9’h x 8’ w x 45”d, 
and will be delivered as portrayed in the attached renderings. The exact 
location of the Art Work will be determined by Department Director with 
consideration of ongoing site planning and City Hall renovations; final 

325

Item 19.



 2 

placement will be near the building entry on the western-facing façade of City 
Hall. 

 
(b) The Owner shall locate and produce at the Site the necessary 

foundation for the Art Work as described in the Sculptor’s plans and 
specifications for the foundation. At its option, the Owner shall produce 
lighting and landscaping at the Site.   

  
 
Owner shall perform the necessary work to complete the foundation as called for 
in the plans and specifications for the foundation, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, 
within thirty (30) days prior to completion and delivery of the Art Work to the 
Site. Sculptor shall notify the Owner a reasonable amount of time in advance of 
when the Art Work will be delivered to the Site, so that Owner may arrange for 
the remaining foundation work to be performed in a timely manner. 

 
 2. Time Schedule.   

 
(a). Owner agrees that the Art Work installation is dependent on the     
            placement and fabrication of the foundation and that this requires the 

foundation to be completed at a reasonable time before the sculpture 
installation can be finalized.  

(b.) Sculptor agrees that the Art Work to be produced pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement shall be commenced upon receipt of the first payment as 
set forth in Paragraph 4 of this Agreement, and shall be delivered to and 
installed at the Site no later than June 7, 2021. 

  
3. Delay in Time Schedule. The parties agree that if Sculptor is delayed at any time 

in the progress of producing the Art Work by an act or neglect of Owner, or by 
labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, or other 
causes beyond Sculptor's control, or by other causes which Owner in its sole 
discretion determines may justify delay, then the time for performance under this 
Agreement shall be extended for such reasonable amount of time as Owner, after 
consultation with Sculptor, may determine in Owner's sole discretion.   Sculptor 
agrees that any claim of delay shall be communicated to Owner by written notice 
within ten (10) days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim of 
delay. 

 
4. Consequences of Delay in Time Schedule. Sculptor acknowledges that time is of 

the essence of this Agreement. The parties agree that if the Art Work is not 
delivered to and installed on the Site in accordance with the time schedule set 
forth in Paragraph 2 of this Agreement, then a penalty shall accrue based on the 
following schedule, with the amount of said penalty deducted from the 
consideration otherwise payable for the Art Work. 
 

326

Item 19.



 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
 

If Art Work is not Delivered to and Installed on 
the  Site by the Following Date: 

The Following Penalty (Stated as a Percentage 
of the Consideration) Shall Apply: 

 
July 5, 2021 
August 2, 2021 
September 27, 2021 

 
Ten (10) percent 
Fifteen (15) percent 
Twenty (20) percent 

  
  
  
  
The parties agree that if the Art Work is not delivered to and installed on the Site by October 25, 
2021 Owner shall be entitled to cancel this Agreement upon written notice to Sculptor, 
whereupon this Agreement shall be canceled, rescinded and terminated, and Sculptor shall be 
obligated to repay Owner all sums previously paid to Sculptor under the terms of this 
Agreement.. Owner shall thereupon have no further responsibility to Sculptor under this 
Agreement. 

 
The parties agree that any delay approved by the Owner pursuant to Paragraph 3 of this 

Agreement shall extend the above-described deadlines by a period equal to the length of the 
delay approved by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 3 of this Agreement. 
 

5. Acceptance and Approval of Art Work. Owner shall inspect and give written 
notice of approval or disapproval that the Art Work conforms to the design 
specified in this Agreement within fifteen (15) days after the Art Work is fully 
completed, delivered to and installed on the Site. If a written notice of approval or 
disapproval is not given to Sculptor within fifteen (15) days after completion and 
installation of the Art Work at the Site, then the Art Work shall be considered 
approved. Any notice of disapproval shall set forth the specific grounds thereof, 
and Sculptor shall then have a reasonable time, not to exceed thirty (30) days, to 
remedy Owner's objections and complete the Art Work, after which Sculptor shall 
give written notice of completion to Owner.  Owner shall then proceed to inspect 
the Art Work and give written notice of approval or disapproval that the Art Work 
conforms to the design specified in this Agreement within ten (10) days after 
receipt of written notice of completion from Sculptor. After Owner's second 
inspection of the Art Work, if Owner reasonably believes the Art Work fails to 

327

Item 19.



 4 

conform to the design specified in this Agreement, the parties shall attempt to 
resolve their differences, failing which either party may resort to legal action to 
resolve the dispute.  Owner is not responsible for any damage, destruction, theft 
or other casualty to the Art Work prior to final acceptance by Owner. 

 
6. Consideration.  Owner agrees to pay Sculptor the total consideration of Twenty 

thousand Dollars ($20,000) for completion of the Art Work and all related 
expenses of producing the Art Work, including transportation and delivery to the 
Site, and installation as provided in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement. Said 
consideration shall be paid to Sculptor in the following installments: 

 
(a) Fifty percent (50%) of the consideration shall be paid to Sculptor prior to 

commencement which payment is acknowledged by Sculptor to have been 
paid on January 21, 2020. (Check no. 133277) 

 
(b) Fifty percent (50%) of the consideration shall be paid to Sculptor as final 

payment only upon delivery of the Art Work to the Site, final notice and 
approval thereof by Owner, and completion of installation of the Art Work 
at the Site. 

 
 7. General.   
 

(a) Sculptor’s Costs.  Sculptor shall be responsible for the following costs: 
 

(1) His or her own labor; 
 
(2) The cost of purchase of all materials. 
 
(3) The cost of fabrication; 
 
(4)        The costs of transporting all materials either to the Sculptor’s  
             studio or to the Site, or both; 
 
(5) The cost of labor and materials for installation of the Art Work at 

the Site, excluding the cost of labor, equipment, materials, and 
operation and rental of boom truck/crane to construct the 
foundation. 

 
(6) Insurance during construction and installation of the Art Work; and 
 
(7) All associated studio costs. 
 

(b) Owner’s Costs. Owner shall be responsible for the following costs: 
 

(1) Installation assistance once sculpture elements are at the Site; 

328

Item 19.



 5 

 
(2) Cost of operation and rental of boom truck/crane to construct the 

foundation; 
 

(3) The cost of labor and materials to construct the concrete 
foundation, and at the Owner’s option, the cost of lighting, and 
landscaping to accompany the Art Work at the Site. 

 
(c) Sculptor shall personally supervise the installation of the Art Work  

at the Site. 
 
(d) Upon final installation of the Art Work and final payment to Sculptor, the 

Art Work shall become the property of Owner. 
 

 8. Insurance and Indemnification. 
 

(a) Access to City Hall Grounds Granted to Sculptor; Insurance Requirements. 
 

 The City agrees that the Sculptor shall have access to City Hall Grounds at the 
site of placement of the artwork for installation. The City of Cedar Falls shall 
cause the Sculptor to furnish adequate insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance, if applicable, and other insurance coverages and amounts protecting the 
City against liability to Sculptor or third parties in connection with any personal 
injury or property damage occurring on City-owned property while Sculptor is 
performing the installation, as follows: 

 
A. General Liability     $1,000,000 

Shall include Personal and Advertising Injury coverage 
 

i. Additional Insured 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and 
appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its 
boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees and volunteers 

ii. Waiver of Subrogation 
iii. Governmental Immunities Endorsement (see attached 

Exhibit “C”) 
 

B. Automobile    $1,000,000 
 

C. Standard Workers’ Compensation  
Employers Liability: 
 Each accident    $500,000 
 Each employee – Disease  $500,000 

329

Item 19.



 6 

 Policy Limit    $500,000 
 

If Sculptor is a sole proprietor without workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage, or does not qualify to carry such insurance coverage, Owner shall cause 
Sculptor to waive all rights of subrogation against the City with respect to any 
personal injury incurred by Sculptor arising out of the work performed at the site 
of installation while Sculptor is on city-owned property. 
 
(b) Indemnification of Owner. Sculptor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the Owner against any and all liability, and to pay for any and all 
damages, losses, claims, or expenses incurred by Owner in connection 
with Sculptor's negligence or failure to fully perform Sculptor's 
obligations under the terms of this Agreement. This indemnification shall 
include indemnification of Owner for reasonable expenses of enforcing 
this Agreement, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees.  

 
 9. Reproduction Rights. 
 

(a) General. Sculptor retains all rights under the Copyright Act of 1976,  
17 United States Code Sections 101 et seq., and all other rights in and to 
the Art Work except ownership and possession of the Art Work, and 
except as such rights may be limited by this subparagraph. Because the 
Art Work in its final form shall be unique, Sculptor agrees not to make 
any additional duplicate reproductions of the Art Work, nor shall Sculptor 
grant permission to any third person or entity to do so, without the express 
written permission of Owner in advance. Sculptor grants to Owner, at no 
additional cost, an irrevocable license to make a sufficient number of two-
dimensional reproductions of the Art Work for educational purposes, 
including, but not limited to, reproductions used in advertising, calendars, 
posters, brochures, media, publicity, catalogs, and development projects, 
or other similar publications, provided that Owner's exercise of these 
rights is carried out in a professional and reasonable manner.  

 
(b) Notice. Owner agrees that all reproductions of the Art Work shall contain 

a credit to Sculptor and a copyright notice substantially in the following 
form:  "© Gillian Christy 2020.” 

 
(c) Credit to Owner. Sculptor shall use his best efforts to give credit to Owner 

in any public showing of reproductions of the Art Work under Sculptor's 
control, reading in substantially the following form:  "An original Art 
Work owned and commissioned by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa." 
Nothing contained in this subparagraph shall vary the limitations placed 
on Sculptor's rights under paragraph 10(a) of this Agreement. 

 

330

Item 19.



 7 

(d) Registration. Sculptor shall cause a copyright of the Art Work to be 
registered with United States Register of Copyrights in the name of 
Sculptor, at Sculptor's expense. 

 
(e) Injunction. The parties agree that an action for money damages may be an 

inadequate remedy for breach by either party of the terms of this 
paragraph, and accordingly the parties agree that in the event of the breach 
by either party of its obligations under this paragraph, the other party shall 
be entitled to seek a temporary or permanent injunction against the other 
party to enjoin violations of this Paragraph 10. 

 
10. Legal Compliance. Sculptor and Owner agree to comply fully with all applicable 

laws, federal, state and local, applicable to this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, provisions for Equal Employment Opportunity and Occupational 
Safety and Health.  Sculptor agrees to comply with all ordinances, regulations and 
rules of Owner while on Owner's premises.  
 

11. Sculptor an Independent Contractor. The parties agree that the nature of the 
relationship between Owner and Sculptor is that of principal and independent 
contractor, and Sculptor shall in no way be considered an employee of Owner.   

 
12. Integration. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between Owner and Sculptor, and there are no promises, undertakings or other 
representations between the parties except as set forth in this Agreement, or in the 
exhibit or exhibits referred to in this Agreement.  This Agreement is binding upon 
and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, and their respective successors and 
assigns. 

 
13. No Assignment. Neither party shall assign its rights or obligations under this 

Agreement to any other party or person. 
 
14.     Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Iowa, and any judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be 
instituted in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, in Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
15.      Notices.  Notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be 

in writing and sent by ordinary mail to the other party at the respective addresses 
set forth in the introductory Paragraph of this Agreement, or sent by way of email 
to the email addresses set forth immediately below: 

 
            Owner:  City of Cedar Falls          Sculptor:  Gillian Christy 
   220 Clay Street   11 Humphreys Street 
   Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613  Boston, MA 02125 
 

331

Item 19.



332

Item 19.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: May 26, 2020 

SUBJECT: Land Maintenance Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and 
Thomas Greiner 

 
 
As you may recall the City of Cedar Falls acquired approximately 200 acres of land from 
the Rieger family and from Artesian Earthworks just west of the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park in 2019 (see attached location map). The City has begun planning for the 
development of this property as part of the expansion of the industrial park, however 
because of interest by several industrial companies looking at a large portion or all of 
the property for their projects, site work for the original concept of the property is on hold 
until it is known whether these projects will locate in Cedar Falls. 
 
Recently, city staff has had discussions with Thomas Greiner, who lives adjacent to the 
property at 2536 S. Union Road, regarding the maintenance of the property during the 
summer months. This property was farmed last year, but is not being farmed this year 
due to the status of the above-mentioned projects looking at this property for industrial 
purposes.  
 
Mr. Greiner would like to maintain the property for the City by planting cover vegetation, 
while also doing soil erosion control and weed control on the property. There would be 
no fee involved, as Mr. Greiner would maintain the land for the City at his expense on 
the condition that he is able to remove the cover vegetation from the property later this 
summer. 
 
Staff believes that the property would benefit from the conservation of the property by 
enacting soil erosion controls and noxious weed measures while the property is 
awaiting development, and it would benefit the City by avoiding the time and expense 
for city staff to enact these same measures.  
 
City Attorney Kevin Rogers has prepared the attached Land Maintenance Agreement 
between Thomas Greiner and the City of Cedar Falls. Thomas Greiner has reviewed 
the agreement and is agreeable to the terms and conditions.   
 

333

Item 20.



Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council adopt a Resolution approving and 
authorizing execution of a Land Maintenance Agreement between Thomas Greiner and 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 
 

334

Item 20.



Venture Way

Technology Pkwy

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Capital Way

S U
nio

n R
d

W Viking Rd

Existing
Industrial Park

City-Owned Property
In Question (200 Acres)

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Land Maintenance
Agreement Property I

335

Item 20.



336

Item 20.



337

Item 20.



338

Item 20.



339

Item 20.



340

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 

 DATE: May 26, 2020 

 SUBJECT: The Arbors Preliminary Plat Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve an amendment to The Arbors Preliminary Plat 

 
PETITIONER: Midwest Development Co., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located north of Viking Road and west of Arbors Drive 

 
 
PROPOSAL 
The Arbors subdivision has been active in single family residential development for the past few 
years. In total, there are six (6) phases of development. The first three phases have been 
approved and are located on the east half of the subdivision. The remaining three phases will 
continue at the northwest corner and proceed to the southwest corner of the plat. 
 
The developer has decided to increase the density of this subdivision by adding 39 additional 
lots to accommodate two-unit dwellings along the western and southern edge of the subdivision. 
Another important change included in this plat is a second street connection to the west that is 
planned in the Arbors Sixth Addition. Therefore, a change in the RP zoning plan for the Arbors 
to increase the overall number of lots from 204 to 243 with new street alignments are being 
considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
  
BACKGROUND 
In April 2014 the City Council approved rezoning this property from A-1 Agricultural to RP 
Planned Residential District, as well as approving a Preliminary Plat for this subdivision (82.5 
total acres). The RP District plan and Preliminary Plat showed a future build-out for up to 204 
one- and two-family dwellings in six “phases”. Arbors First Addition was approved by the City 
Council in April 2015 and included 30 residential lots. The Arbors Second Addition was 
approved by the City Council in September 2016 included 30 residential lots. The third addition 
was approved by the City Council in November 2017 includes 33 residential lots. The first three 
phases of this subdivision occupy the eastern one-half of the 82 acres. These three phases are 
developed according to the approved preliminary plat. 

341

Item 21.



 
After the first three phases of development was underway, the developer submitted a revised 
plat to the Planning and Zoning Commission in the spring of 2018. The phasing plan for the 
Fourth, Fifth and Sixth was adjusted to continue with the development in the northwest corner 
and proceed to the southwest corner of the subdivision. This phasing plan was shifted to 
accommodate the change in the street connections to the adjacent property. According to the 
original preliminary plat, a street connection (Woodbury Drive) was identified to access the 
property to the north of this plat. At that time, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City 
Council determined that a street connection was no longer needed due to the future 
development of a playground along the north side of the Fourth Addition. Additionally, the 
western street connection was shifted to the south from Maple Grove Drive to Autumn Woods 
Drive. This provides one street connection to the western edge of the subdivision. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
Midwest Development Co. continues with the development of the Fourth, Fifth and Sixth 
addition of The Arbors subdivision. The development will continue in a counterclockwise 
direction with the Fourth addition at the northwest corner of the subdivision. The developer’s 
engineer submitted construction plans for the Fourth Addition and will present the final plat to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission in the coming months. 
 
Recently, the developer requested a change in the number of lots that were originally approved 
in the preliminary plat. They intend to construct several duplex units along the western and 
southern edge of the subdivision. This increased the original number of lots from 204 to 239 or 
39 lots. The following table shows the number of lots in the final three phases of this subdivision. 
 

Phase No. of Single Unit 
Lots 

No. of Duplex lots Total Lots Original No. of Lots 

Fourth 43 10 53 45 

Fifth 32 16 48 36 

Sixth 23 26 49 31 

Total 98 52 150 112 

 
The creation of these additional lots formalizes the ownership of the land under each duplex 
dwelling. From the start of the original preliminary plat, the developer intended to construct one- 
and two-family dwellings. During the first three phases of this subdivision, there were only 
single-family dwellings constructed. Now the developer has identified where they intend to 
construct the two-family dwellings along the western and southern edge of the subdivision. The 
proposed density of this subdivision with the additional duplex dwellings will increase from 2.48 
dwellings per acre to 2.96 dwellings per acre. This is a modest increase that is still considered 
low density residential.  
 
Along with this density change a new street layout is proposed for the Sixth Addition. The 
original preliminary plat showed Timber Cove Drive curving to the north with a short cul-de-sac 
in the southwest corner of the subdivision. This essentially cut off the access for a future street 
to the west. City staff has been working with the developer to come up with an alternate plan 
that will allow additional lots as well as a street connection to the west. The developer reviewed 
this option and presented the revised plat with a new street layout by eliminating the curve and 
cul-de-sac by extending Timber Cove Drive to the westerly edge of the subdivision. This will 
create two street connections to the western edge of the plat for future development. 

342

Item 21.



 
Additionally, a pedestrian connection in the Fourth Addition is identified between Lots 14 and 15 
to accommodate a sidewalk connection from Arbor Ridge Road to the future playground on the 
north side of the subdivision. 
 
At the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting on April 15th, a Commission member questioned 
if there were housing need projections for different housing types and values housing within the 
Comprehensive Plan. Staff reviewed the Comprehensive Plan and found that there isn’t any 
specific information regarding the valuation of homes. However, it does indicate that over a 20-
year period (2010-2030), there will be a need for 3,778 housing units, or 189 units per year. Of 
these units, approximately 70% will be single family detached units, 10% will be single family 
attached townhomes or duplexes, and 20% will be multi-family. These estimates follow similarly 
to data found between 2000 and 2010.  
 
When looking at the entire Arbors Subdivision (1st through 6th Additions), there are shown a total 
of 192 single family units and 26 duplex units. This equates to a percentage of 13.5% duplex 
units within the entire subdivision, which is close to the percentage of duplex units as indicated 
in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Some concern was indicated by the public at the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting about 
the proposed zero lot line dwelling units, and what impacts they may have on the neighborhood. 
In order to maintain the residential character and quality of the neighborhood, staff recommends 
that the development agreement, which was approved when the property was rezoned to RP 
Planned Residential District in 2014, be amended to include some additional stipulations 
regarding the zero lot line dwellings, as listed below:  
 

1. A variation in siding color between each adjacent two-unit dwelling; 
2. At least two different building models will be used, including a one-story and two-story 

model; 
3. A variation in design elements between each adjacent two-unit dwelling, such as 

doorway designs, sidelight windows, entranceway canopies, pilasters, pediments, brick 
and stone accents, raised entry cornices, trim colors, and similar; 

4. Front yard paving shall be minimized to the extent feasible to provide adequate space for 
front yard landscaping and a safe public sidewalk environment; 

5. The driveway width as measured at the streetside lot line shall not exceed 18 feet; 
6. Garages shall not exceed 22 feet in width; and 
7. Minimum driveway spacing from the intersection of a collector street or arterial street 

shall be 75 feet. 
 
Based on the proposed stipulations regarding the development of the zero lot line dwellings 
within the subdivision, staff believes that these units will maintain the residential character and 
quality of the neighborhood. A copy of the Addendum to Development Procedures Agreement is 
included in your materials. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. 
 
The developer will need to make the necessary accommodations for temporary a turnaround at 

343

Item 21.



the west end of Autumn Woods Drive in the Fifth Addition and Timber Cove Drive and Timber 
Creek Circle in the Sixth Addition. This subdivision includes a four-foot public sidewalk across all 
lot frontages. 
 
The subdivision will route the stormwater through the back of the lots to the northwest corner of 
the Fourth Addition the empty into Tract A, a stormwater management area. This Tract is the 
fourth detention basin for the entire Arbors development. The plan is to convey the stormwater 
through a series of easements and storm sewers. The Fourth Addition will be graded to flow the 
storm water to the northwest corner of the subdivision and the Fifth and Sixth Additions will be 
graded to flow to the east into the existing basins found in the First and Second Addition. A 
stormwater maintenance and repair agreement has been submitted to the City for the 
management of these areawide stormwater basins. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department has reviewed this amended preliminary plat and 
recommends approval. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
04/22/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. He explained that the plat is located west of Arbors Drive and north 
of Viking Road and the new Aldrich Elementary School and provided information 
regarding the original preliminary plat approved in 2014. He explained revisions 
made in 2018 with regard to the locations of the plats and discussed the newly 
proposed revisions, which includes creating a public easement, creation of 
additional smaller size lots for duplexes, removal of a cul-de-sac and necessary 
street redesign. He provided renderings of the proposed duplexes and their 
designs. At this time, the item is being brought to the Commission for discussion 
and public comments, noting that staff is comfortable with a decision tonight if 
the Commission prefers to do that. 
 
Kevin Fittro, Skogman Homes\Midwest Development, provided the perspective 
of the developers on the proposed changes. The phasing will be changed to 
accommodate the school and he explained that the timing will be dependent on 
the sales. He stated that the building types were changed based on market 
demand. The intention is to blend the duplexes into the single-family homes in 
the neighborhood, and noted that the street extension to the west was requested 
by the City.  
 
Amy Rube, 2932 Timber Cove, stated that when they first built their home they 
believed that there would only be single-family homes and stated her concerns 
with the home values. She also asked about the phases and when they will 
begin and whether these will be owner occupied or rental units. Mr. Fittro stated 
that they don’t have a specific time yet, but as the sixth addition his best guess 
would be based on each addition taking roughly a year to a year and a half and 
there would be three additions before that one. He stated that he doesn’t believe 
that the duplexes will affect the home values. Ms. Rube asked if a clause can be 
added that would not allow rentals. Mr. Fittro stated that they would have to 
speak to their attorney as they would not be able to tell a single-family 
homeowner that they could not rent, so it may not be an option with the 
duplexes.  

344

Item 21.



 
Ms. Prideaux asked about the projected population and price range for the 
housing needs. Ms. Howard stated that staff can look into that information. Mr. 
Larson asked what makes the decision on whether or not a vote needs to go 
through two meetings as opposed to one. Ms. Howard stated that the decision is 
up to the Commission. Typically there are two meetings to allow the public to get 
more information and have discussion.  
  
Mr. Leeper stated that it seems that homeowners seem to be unclear on what is 
allowed in certain zoning districts when they purchase their homes. He asked if 
there is anything that can be done to help homeowners understand what is 
possible with the zoning codes. Ms. Howard provided clarification on the zoning 
and plan development. Mr. Larson suggested getting information to realtors with 
regard to zoning and potential development so they can pass that information on 
to potential buyers. 
 
This item will be brought back and discussed at the next Planning & Zoning 
Commission meeting. 
 

Vote    
05/13/2020   

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. He explained that the item was discussed at the previous meeting 
and gave a brief recap of the project. He discussed the original plat from 2014, 
revisions made in 2018 and he then described the changes being proposed. He 
displayed potential duplex designs for the area and the price ranges, and 
discussed the proposed addendum to the Original Development Procedures 
Agreement. Staff recommends approval of the amended preliminary plat subject 
to conformance with staff recommendations and any additional comments from 
the Commission. Mr. Holst asked about the requirements based upon the 
zoning, and whether the density is changed much.  

 
Kevin Fittro discussed that the market drives the need for these duplex style 
homes.  

 
Amy Rube, 2932 Timber Cove Drive, commented that it would be helpful for 
developers to explain to potential buyers the potential changes that could come 
in the neighborhood and have transparency with regard to the kinds of housing 
that could be built. She also noted that she would like to have some assurance 
that the values of the new construction would not decrease and stated that she 
would prefer that steps be taken to keep these units from becoming rentals.  
 
Mr. Fittro stated that he understands the concerns of the homeowners, but noted 
that as developers and builders, it is also in their best interest to keep a quality 
neighborhood so they are doing things in a way in which it will be good for all 
parties. 
 
Mr. Larson asked about the one and two story units and how the need for either 
is driven. Mr. Graham stated there is nothing in the code that specifies a need for 

345

Item 21.



a certain percentage of one or the other. Mr. Fittro stated that it would be market 
driven. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked staff it is reasonable to consider recommendations for getting 
zoning information out to the public and homebuyers so they are aware of what 
kinds of projects are allowed in different areas. Ms. Howard noted that education 
for realtors is an option, but the City cannot be certain of how information will be 
passed on from that point. There is no guarantee that things won’t change down 
the road. Staff would be willing to work with anyone who has questions. 
 
Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Prideaux), and 0 nays. 

 

346

Item 21.



W Viking
Industrial

Park

Aldrich
Elementary

School

Ed
en

 W
ay

Donald Dr

Venture Way

Ashworth Dr

Ap
ple

wo
od

 Ln Me
ad

ow
lar

k L
n

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Vera Way

Eth an
Ct

Sa
ma

nth
a C

ir

Ironwood Dr

Arbors Dr

Arbor Way Blvd

Gl
ori

a S
t

Flynn Dr

Kara Dr

Reese Rd

Blythe Blvd

Timber Cove Dr

Andy Ave

Erik Rd

Pr
od

u c
tio

nD
r

Red O ak
Ln

Boxwood Dr

BarkwoodDr

Capital Way

Co
he

nC
t(P

lan
ne

d)

University Ave

W Viking Rd

RP

R-1

M-1M-1-P

MU

RP

R-3

A-1
A-1

A-1

A-1
A-1

The Arbors Preliminary Plat Amendment
W Viking

Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

CenterS t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vik ing

Rd
W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 R
d

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rse
e R

d

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
June 1, 2020

347

Item 21.



SW

NW

TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH,
RANGE 14 WEST

N

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

62
2\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
\5

62
2 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

.d
wg

 - 
Co

ve
r P

ag
e 

1-
5 

-  
05

-2
1-

20
 - 

2:
03

pm
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA THE ARBORS ADDITION
1 OF 5

5622

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
NCB

SJC

MCH 03-09-2020

03-04-2020

11-26-2019

27

NE

SE

PHASE LOTS TRACT

4 53 "A" & "B"

5 48 "A" & "B"

6 49 "B"

TOTAL 150

A. - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
B. - STREET RIGHT OF WAY

TRACTS

LEGEND

SIGN

X X X X

105

W (*) W

San(*) San

StS (*) StS

M

C C

G (*) G

OH E OH E

E (*) E

T(*) T

T T

THE ARBORS FOURTH, FIFTH, AND SIXTH ADDITION
 PRELIMINARY PLAT

CEDAR FALLS, IA
MAY 2020

THE NORTHEAST  14 OF THE SOUTHEAST 14 AND PARCEL "B" ALL IN SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.,
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.  MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

ALL OF THE NORTHEAST 14 OF THE SOUTHEAST 14 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M. AND PARCEL
"B" RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT #2014-13132 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT THE ARBORS
FIRST ADDITION RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT #2015-19403, THE ARBORS SECOND ADDITION RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT #2017-6104,
AND THE ARBORS THIRD ADDITION RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT #2018-10409 ALL RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, CONTAINING 41.84 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OWNERS OF RECORD
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT CO.
411 FIRST AVENUE SE
CEDAR RAPIDS, IA

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

ZONING INFORMATION:
RP (UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT CO.
411 FIRST AVENUE SE
CEDAR RAPIDS, IA

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
MARC C. HOODJER, P.L.S.
DARYL ALBERSTSON, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S.
OBSERVATIONS USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN
NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN

THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF CLOSURE
REQUIREMENT

- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF
CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

SURVEY LEGEND
GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )     RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET

ID CAP #22634
SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC

1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC ID CAP #22634

AS NOTED ON PLAN

FLOOD ZONE
(ZONE X )
PANEL # 19013C0276F
EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 18, 2011

SETBACK DATA
FRONT YARD = 25 FT
REAR YARD =  30 FT
SIDE YARD* = 5 FT. (*)EXCEPT AS NOTED

*LOTS MAY BE SPLIT OR DIVIDED TO PROVIDE FOR MORE
LOT AREA BY BEING ADDED TO AN ADJOINING LOT.  SIDE
YARD SETBACKS SHALL BE BASED ON
OWNERSHIP/PROPERTY LINES RATHER THAN PLATTED LOT
LINES.

RESTRICTIONS
(SEE DEED OF DEDICATION)

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

O
F E

N

EIS

ES O

ANO
I

L
WA I

GN

EDL

P
R

20477

EIC NS

E
R

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Signature Date

My license renewal date is December 31, 2020

Iowa License Number 20477

Daryl D. Albertson, PE

I hereby certify that this engineering document was
prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision
and that I am a duly licensed Professional Engineer
under the laws of the State of Iowa.

LA

R
Y

D
A

D. EB
RTL

SO
N

Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of Iowa.
my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
and the related survey work was performed by me or under
I hereby certify that this land surveying document was prepared

date
Iowa License Number 22634
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2018

Marc C. Hoodjer, PLS

NE SEDIL C

WAI O

P
R

O
F

E
SS IONAL L AND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

OH

RE

JDO.CCRA
M

22634

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

PROJECT AREA

1 REVISE STREET NAME SJC 05-21-20

348

Item 21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS (BUSHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN (TYPE AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEHIVE INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL BOX/TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS (BUSHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN (TYPE AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEHIVE INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL BOX/TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL



Lo
t 3

8

Lo
t 3

7

Lo
t 3

6

Lo
t 3

5

Lo
t 3

4

Lo
t 3

3

Lot 12

Lot 11

Lo
t 4

Lo
t 8

Lo
t 7

Lo
t 6

Lo
t 5

Lo
t 3

Lo
t 2

Lo
t 1

W

W

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

W

WWW

W
W

W
W

(C
)

W
W

W
W

W
W

(C
)

W
W

W
W

W
(C

)
W

(C
)

W
(C

)

W(C
)

W
W

WW

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San

San

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San

San

SanSanSan
SanSanSan

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San

San

San

Sa
n(

C)

San(C)San(C)San(C)San(C)San(C)

Sa
n(

C)
Sa

n(
C)

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San San

Sa
n

SanSan

Sa
n

Sa
n

San

W
W

W
St

S

St
S

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

StSStS

StS

StS

St
S

St
S

St
S

StSStS

StSStS

StS

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

StS

StSStS

St
S

StSStS

W
W

W
W

W

W W W

W

W

St
S

St
S

StS

St
S

StS

St
S

St
S

StS

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

Sa
n

W(C) W(C) W(C) W(C) W(C) W(C) W(C) W(C)

WWW

W

W

St
S(

D)

StS(D
)

St
S(

D)

StS StS StS

StSStS

StS

St
S(

D)

StS(D)

St
S

Sa
n(

C)
Sa

n(
C)

Sa
n(

C)

Sa
n(

C)
Sa

n(
C)

Sa
n(

C)

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San San San

W W W W

W
W

W
W

San San San San San San
San San San

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SDSDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

ARBORS   DRIVE

PO
PL

A
R

H
O

LL
O

W
 L

A
N

E

TI
M

B
ER

  C
O

V
E 

 D
R

IV
E

FERNWOOD DRIVE

A
U

TU
M

N
  W

O
O

D
S 

 D
R

IV
E

ARBORS  DRIVE

RED  OAK  LANE

ER
IK

  R
O

A
D

A
R

B
O

R
 W

A
Y

  B
LV

D
.

A
M

B
ER

  V
A

LL
EY

  R
O

A
D

LO
T 

8

LO
T 

20

TIMBER  CREEK
DRIVE

TRACT A

STORM W
ATER

MANAGEMENT A
REA

TRACT A

STORM W
ATER

MANAGEMENT A
REA

LO
T 

30
LO

T 
1

LO
T 

29
LO

T 
2

LO
T 

3

LO
T 

6

LO
T 

4

LO
T 

5

LO
T 

8

LO
T 

7

LO
T 

9

LO
T 

10

LO
T 

6

LO
T 

1

LO
T 

5

LO
T 

10

LO
T 

7

LO
T 

15
M

ID
W

ES
T

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T

CO

LO
T 

9

LO
T 

11LO
T 

12

LO
T 

13

LO
T 

1

LO
T 

2

LO
T 

3

LO
T 

4

LO
T 

5

LO
T 

6

LO
T 

7

LO
T 

26
LO

T 
25

LO
T 

24

LO
T 

22
BR

AD
 M

HO
FF

M
AN

AN
D

BE
TH

AN
N 

L
BI

BL
ER

LO
T 

21
RO

BE
R 

Z 
GU

O
AN

D 
QI

N 
XI

A

LO
T 

23
GA

RY
 A

ND
PE

GG
Y

W
IT

TH
OF

T

LO
T 

20
IS

M
ET

 A
ND

SU
ZA

NA
SU

M
AR

LO
T 

1

LO
T 

2

LO
T 

3

LO
T 

4

LO
T 

5

LO
T 

11

LO
T 

12

LO
T 

14
LO

T 
15

LO
T 

17
LO

T 
18

LO
T 

19
LO

T 
21

LO
T 

22
LO

T 
12

TH
AD

 W
 A

ND
ST

EP
HA

NI
E 

M
FE

VE
R

LO
T 

15

LO
T 

16
M

IC
HA

EL
 J

AN
D

CH
EL

SE
A 

R
AN

DE
RS

ON

LO
T 

17
AM

Y 
M

 A
ND

M
IC

HA
EL

 K
RU

BE

LO
T 

18
FR

AN
K 

M
AN

D 
GI

NA
SN

YD
ER

LO
T 

19
RO

BE
RT

 A
AN

D
KA

TH
ER

IN
E 

M
PE

TE
RS

LO
T 

26
NA

TH
AN

IE
L

JA
M

ES
 A

ND
SA

RA
H 

LY
NN

CO
M

PT
ON

LO
T 

27
BL

AK
E 

L 
AN

D
BR

IT
TA

NY
 N

DA
VI

S

LO
T 

28
SH

AN
E 

R 
AN

D
M

ON
IC

A 
D

RO
GA

N

LO
T 

29
BR

AD
LE

Y 
S

AN
D 

LE
EA

NE
YE

AR
LI

NG

LO
T 

22
JA

M
ES

 D
 A

ND
BR

AN
DI

E 
J

W
HI

TE

LO
T 

23
CH

AS
E 

L
BU

RT
NE

SS
AN

D 
JO

RD
AN

C 
KO

LA
RI

K

LO
T 

24
DA

NI
EL

 E
 A

ND
JA

N 
E 

BR
OW

N
RE

VO
CA

BL
E

TR
US

T

LO
T 

19
AU

TU
M

N 
M

AN
D 

M
IC

HA
EL

A 
CL

AR
K

LO
T 

20
DA

VI
D 

AN
D

HE
AT

HE
R

LO
CA

SH
A

LO
T 

21
JA

SO
N 

A 
AN

D
TI

FF
NE

Y
M

C 
DO

NA
LA

D

LO
T 

18
LJ

IL
JA

NA
VU

KM
IR

OV
IC

LO
T 

17
JA

M
ES

 R
 A

ND
TO

NY
A 

S
M

UL
LE

R

LO
T 

16
BR

IA
N 

J
NO

W
AC

K

LO
T 

19
M

ID
W

ES
T

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T

CO

LO
T 

20
M

ID
W

ES
T

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T

CO

LO
T 

21
M

ID
W

ES
T

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T

CO

LO
T 

18
DE

BR
A 

K
M

C 
CA

LL
EY

LO
T 

17
NA

TH
AN

 A
ND

CO
LL

EE
N

BA
LD

US

LO
T 

16
M

ID
W

ES
T

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T

CO

LO
T 

51
LO

T 
50

LO
T 

49
LO

T 
48

LO
T 

47
LO

T 
46

LO
T 

45
LO

T 
44

LO
T 

43

LO
T 

42

LO
T 

32

LO
T 

33
LO

T 
34

LO
T 

35
LO

T 
36

LO
T 

37
LO

T 
38

LO
T 

39
LO

T 
40

LO
T 

41

LO
T 

14
SU

SA
N 

M
SI

M
M

ON
DS

LO
T 

31
LO

T 
30

LO
T 

29
LO

T 
28

LO
T 

27
LO

T 
26

LO
T 

25
LO

T 
24

LO
T 

23

LO
T 

13
IS

AA
C 

L 
AN

D
KA

TH
RY

N 
S

BO
ET

TG
ER

LO
T 

15
LO

T 
14

LO
T 

34

LO
T 

33

LO
T 

32

LO
T 

31

LO
T 

29
LO

T 
28

LO
T 

25

LO
T 

26

LO
T 

8
LO

T 
9

LO
T 

10

LO
T 

11 LO
T 

27
LO

T 
30

LO
T 

3

LO
T 

4

LO
T 

24

LO
T 

2

LO
T 

23

LO
T 

22

LO
T 

28

LO
T 

11

LO
T 

14
LO

T 
13

LO
T 

12

LO
T 

30

TRACT "A
"

ST
ORM

 W
ATER

M
ANAGEM

ENT A
REA

TRACT A

STORM W
ATER

MANAGEMENT A
REA

LO
T 

27

LO
T 

25
JA

NE
T 

J 
AN

D
RI

CH
AR

D 
W

LA
KI

N

R
ED

  O
A

K
  L

A
N

E

ARBORS  DRIVE

M
A

PL
E 

 G
R

O
V

E 
 D

R
IV

E

LO
T 

16

A
R

B
O

R
 R

ID
G

E 
R

O
A

D

LO
T 

13

LO
T 

52
LO

T 
53

LO
T 

6

LO
T 

7

LO
T 

8

LO
T 

9

LO
T 

10

UNPLATTED

U
N

PL
A

TT
ED

CI
TY

 O
F 

CE
DA

R 
FA

LL
S

CE
DA

R 
FA

LL
S 

CO
M

M
UN

IT
Y 

SC
HO

OL
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST
BECK BYPASS TRUST

PROPERTY

CL
AR

K 
AN

D 
M

AR
IL

YN
 U

HL
PR

OP
ER

TY

UNPLATTED

U
N

PL
A

TT
ED

JO
HN

 &
 N

AN
CY

 M
UN

CY
PR

OP
ER

TY

U
N

PL
A

TT
ED

A
-1

A
-1

A A

A
-1

FUTURE: T
HE

ARBORS
FIFTH A

DDIT
IO

N

FUTURE: T
HE

ARBORS

SIX
TH A

DDIT
IO

N

NO
RT

H 
LI

NE
 O

F 
TH

E 
SE

 1 4 O
F 

SE
C 

27
-8

9-
14

NO
RT

H 
LI

NE
 O

F 
TH

E 
S 

1 2 O
F 

TH
E

SE
 1 4 O

F 
SE

C 
27

-8
9-

14

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST
BECK BYPASS TRUST

PROPERTY

EAST LINE OF THE SE 1
4 OF SEC 27-89-14

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San San San San San

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S St

S
St

S

THE A
RBORS

FOURTH

ADDIT
IO

N

THE A
RBORS

FIR
ST A

DDIT
IO

N

THE A
RBORS

SECOND A
DDIT

IO
N

THE A
RBORS

THIR
D A

DDIT
IO

N

33
3.

16
'

N
89

°1
0'

08
"E

64
4.

15
'

N
89

°1
0'

08
"E

817.11'
S0°54'49"E 327.30'

N0°36'22"W

34
0.

00
'

S
89

°1
8'

38
"W

515.00'
N0°36'22"W

58
0.

00
'

S
89

°1
8'

38
"W

74
1.

82
'

S
89

°1
8'

38
"W

657.50'
N0°52'11"W

699.92'
N0°52'11"W

696.33'
N0°52'11"W

916.48'
S0°36'22"E

512.06'
N0°54'49"W

68
6.

83
'

N
89

°1
0'

08
"E

25
3.

40
'

LO
T 

58

LO
T 4

LO
T 5

LO
T 6

LO
T 7

LO
T 8

LO
T 

60
LO

T 
61

LO
T 

62
LO

T 
63

LO
T 

64
LO

T 
65

LO
T 

66
LO

T 
67

LO
T 

59
LO

T 
57

LO
T 

56
LO

T 
55

LO
T 

54
LO

T 
53

LO
T 

52

LO
T 

44
LO

T 
45

LO
T 

46
LO

T 
47

LO
T 

48
LO

T 
49

LO
T 

50
LO

T 
51

TR
A

C
T 

"A
"

LO
T 

1
LO

T 9

LO
T 

16

LO
T 

17

LO
T 

18

LO
T 

19

LO
T 

20

LO
T 

21

LO
T 

22

LO
T 

23

LO
T 

24

LO
T 

25

LO
T 

26

LO
T 

27

LO
T 

28

LO
T 

29

LO
T 

30

LO
T 

31

LO
T 

32

LO
T 

33

LO
T 

34

LO
T 

35

LO
T 

36

LO
T 

37

LO
T 

38

LO
T 

39

LO
T 

40

LO
T 

41

LO
T 

42

LO
T 

43

LO
T 

68
LO

T 
69

LO
T 

70
LO

T 
71

LO
T 

72
LO

T 
73

LO
T 

74
LO

T 
75

LO
T 

76
LO

T 
77

LO
T 

78
LO

T 
79

LO
T 

80
LO

T 
81

LO
T 

82 LO
T 

83
LO

T 
84

LO
T 

85
LO

T 
86

LO
T 

87
LO

T 
88

LO
T 

89
LO

T 
90

LO
T 

92
LO

T 
93

LO
T 

94
LO

T 
95

LO
T 

96
LO

T 
97

LO
T 

91

LO
T

10
LO

T
11

LO
T

12
LO

T
13

LO
T

14
LO

T
15

LO
T 3

LO
T 2

FERNWOOD DRIVE

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

200'100' 300'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

62
2\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
\5

62
2 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

.d
wg

 - 
Ov

er
al

l 2
-5

 - 
 0

5-
21

-2
0 

- 2
:0

3p
m

 - 
sj

c3
25

CGA THE ARBORS ADDITION
2 OF 5

5622

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
NCB

SJC

MCH 01-16-2020

03-04-2020

03-09-2019

DESIGN COMPLETED AND APPROVED

TRACT "B"
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

TR
A

C
T 

"B
"

PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y

TR
A

C
T 

"B
"

PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y

TR
A

C
T 

"B
"

PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y

TR
A

C
T 

"B
"

PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y

TR
A

C
T 

"B
"

PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y

TR
A

C
T 

"B
"

PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y

TRACT "B"
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAYFERNWOOD DRIVE

1 REVISE STREET NAME SJC 05-21-20

349

Item 21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV



350

Item 21.



351

Item 21.



W
(C

)
W

(C
)

Sa
n(

C)
Sa

n(
C)

Sa
n(

C)

Sa
n(

C)
Sa

n(
C)

Sa
n(

C)

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SDSDSDSD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD SD

SDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SDSDSDSDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SDSDSDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

TI
M

B
ER

  C
O

V
E 

 D
R

IV
E

FERNWOOD DRIVE

A
U

TU
M

N
  W

O
O

D
S 

 D
R

IV
E

A
R

B
O

R
 W

A
Y

  B
LV

D
.

A
M

B
ER

  V
A

LL
EY

  R
O

A
D

TIMBER  CREEK
DRIVE

UNPLATTED

UNPLATTED

U
N

PL
A

TT
ED

A A

A
-1

FUTURE: T
HE

ARBORS

FIFTH A
DDIT

IO
N

FUTURE: T
HE A

RBORS

SIX
TH A

DDIT
IO

N

PR
OP

OS
ED

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

20' BLDG SETBACK

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

20' BLDG SETBACK

20
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K25' BLDG SETBACK

20
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

30' BLDG SETBACK

10' UTILITY ESMT

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

10' UTILITY ESMT

10' UTILITY ESMT

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

74
1.

82
'

S
89

°1
8'

38
"W

657.50'
N0°52'11"W

699.92'
N0°52'11"W

696.33'
N0°52'11"W

10.00'

LO
T 

58

LO
T 

4
LO

T 
5

LO
T 

6
LO

T 
7

LO
T 

8

LO
T 

60
LO

T 
61

LO
T 

62
LO

T 
63

LO
T 

64
LO

T 
65

LO
T 

66
LO

T 
67

LO
T 

59
LO

T 
57

LO
T 

56
LO

T 
55

LO
T 

54
LO

T 
53

LO
T 

52

LO
T 

44
LO

T 
45

LO
T 

46
LO

T 
47

LO
T 

48
LO

T 
49

LO
T 

50
LO

T 
51

TR
A

C
T 

"A
"

LO
T 

1
LO

T 
9

LO
T 

16

LO
T 

17

LO
T 

18

LO
T 

19

LO
T 

20

LO
T 

21

LO
T 

22

LO
T 

23

LO
T 

24

LO
T 

25

LO
T 

26

LO
T 

27

LO
T 

28

LO
T 

29

LO
T 

30

LO
T 

31

LO
T 

32

LO
T 

33

LO
T 

34

LO
T 

35

LO
T 

36

LO
T 

37

LO
T 

38

LO
T 

39

LO
T 

40

LO
T 

41

LO
T 

42

LO
T 

43

LO
T 

68
LO

T 
69

LO
T 

70
LO

T 
71

LO
T 

72
LO

T 
73

LO
T 

74
LO

T 
75

LO
T 

76
LO

T 
77

LO
T 

78
LO

T 
79

LO
T 

80
LO

T 
81

LO
T 

82

LO
T 

83
LO

T 
84

LO
T 

85
LO

T 
86

LO
T 

87
LO

T 
88

LO
T 

89
LO

T 
90

LO
T 

92
LO

T 
93

LO
T 

94
LO

T 
95

LO
T 

96
LO

T 
97

LO
T 

91

LO
T 

10
LO

T 
11

LO
T 

12
LO

T 
13

LO
T 

14
LO

T 
15

LO
T 

3
LO

T 
2

25' BLDG SETBACK
10' UTILITY ESMT 25' BLDG SETBACK

10' UTILITY ESMT

30' BLDG SETBACK
30' BLDG SETBACK

22' DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT
22' DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT

PR
OP

OS
ED

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PR
OP

OS
ED

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PR
OP

OS
ED

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

10.00'10.00' 10.00'10.00'

22
' D

RA
IN

AG
E 

AN
D 

UT
IL

IT
Y 

EA
SE

M
EN

T
30

' B
LD

G 
SE

TB
AC

K

10.00'10.00'

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

25
' B

LD
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

SM
T

97
0

97
1

97
2

97
3

97
4

97
5

974

973

967968 967968
966

968

972

968 969 970 971 972 973 974 975 974 973 972

970 970

97
1

97
2

97
3

97
4

97
5

97
6

977 97
6

97
5

97
4

97
4

97
3

97
2

97
1

97
0

97197
0

97
6

97
5

97
4

97
3

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

96
3

96
2

96
1

96
0

972

973

974

97
4

97
3

97
2

97
1

97
0

97
2

97
1

97
0

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

97
1

97
0

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

96
5

96
4

96
3

97
1

97
0

96
9

96
8

96
7

96
6

965

96
4

96
3

96
2

FERNWOOD DRIVE

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

120'60' 180'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

62
2\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
\5

62
2 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

 C
on

to
ur

s.
dw

g 
- S

he
et

 5
 o

f 5
 - 

 0
5-

21
-2

0 
- 2

:0
7p

m
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA THE ARBORS ADDITION
5 of 5

5622

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
NCB

SJC

MCH 03-09-2020

03-04-2020

11-26-2019

14
0.

00
'

14
0.

00
'

14
0.

00
'

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
4 

OF
 5

GRADING NOTES
THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL
CONSIST OF TRACT "A" STORMWATER MANAGEMENT,
TRACT "B" ROADWAY GRADING, LOT GRADING, AND
SWALE GRADING THROUGHOUT LOTS.

1 REVISE STREET NAME SJC 05-21-20

352

Item 21.



 

 

 

 

ADDENDUM TO THE  

DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURES AGREEMENT FOR ARBORS FOURTH, FIFTH, 

AND SIXTH ADDITIONS LOCATED WITHIN THE RP PLANNED RESIDENCE 

ZONING DISTRICT 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this           day of                            , 2020, by and 

between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called “City” and Midwest Development Co., 

hereinafter called “Midwest”, for the purpose of outlining procedures to be followed for the 

development of The Arbors Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Addition, containing approximately 41.84 

acres, being owned by Midwest Development Co., said land legally described as follows:  

   

THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF THE SOUTHEAST ¼ AND PARCEL “B”, ALL IN SECTION 27, 

TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5
TH

 P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. MORE PARTICULARILY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ALL OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 89 

NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5
TH

 P.M. AND PARCEL “B” RECORDED IN 

INSTRUMENT #2014-13132 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK 

COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT THE ARBORS FIRST ADDITION RECORDED IN 

INSTRUMENT #2015-19403, THE ARBORS SECOND ADDITION RECORDED IN 

INSTRUMENT #2017-6104, AND THE ARBORS THIRD ADDITION RECORDED IN 

INSTRUMENT #2018-10409 ALL RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, CONTAINING 41.84 ACRES. SUBJECT TO 

EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY. 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of Midwest to amend the approved preliminary plat of the 

Arbors Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Additions in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, located within the RP, 

Planned Residential Zoning District; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to insure that said development proceeds in an 

orderly manner and in accordance with the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and the 

provisions of the RP - Planned Residence District. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the City 

and Midwest agree to amend the Master RP Plan executed on March 13, 2014, to add the 

following allowances and stipulations:  

 

1. Zero lot line dwellings shall be allowed on Lots 1-10 of The Arbors Fourth Addition, 

Lots 28-43 of The Arbors Fifth Addition, and Lots 2-27 of The Arbors Sixth Addition, as 

shown on the preliminary plat. 

 

2. In order to provide a pleasing variation in the building design of the zero lot line 

dwellings and to maintain the residential character of the neighborhood, the building and 

353

Item 21.



 

 

site elements along the street frontage shall be distinguished through the following 

methods: 

a. A variation in siding color between each adjacent two-unit dwelling; 

b. At least two different building models will be used, including a one-story and 

two-story model; 

c. A variation in design elements between each adjacent two-unit dwelling, such as 

doorway designs, sidelight windows, entranceway canopies, pilasters, pediments, 

brick and stone accents, raised entry cornices, trim colors, and similar;  

d. Front yard paving shall be minimized to the extent feasible to provide adequate 

space for front yard landscaping and a safe public sidewalk environment;  

e. The driveway width as measured at the streetside lot line shall not exceed 18 feet; 

f. Garages shall not exceed 22 feet in width; and 

g. Minimum driveway spacing from the intersection of a collector street or arterial 

street shall be 75 feet. 

 

3. The foregoing conditions shall be binding upon Midwest, its successors and assigns and 

shall apply to the above described real estate and shall run with the land. The approved 

Preliminary Plat for The Arbors Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Additions, attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, shall be part of this Amendment 

and shall be part of the Master Plan for the area described herein.  

 

Signature page to follow 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

354

Item 21.



 

 

      THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
      By: ____________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

DEVELOPER: 

Midwest Development Co. 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Kevin Fittro, Vice President 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 

                       )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2020, by Kevin Fittro, Vice President, Midwest Development Co., an Iowa company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

355

Item 21.



To Arbors Neighbor,  

 

I wanted to reach out in regards to the P and Z meeting and questions we received in regards to 

the update of our plat for the 4th through 6th additions.  We understand any time changes are 

made there is a sense of unknown and therefore concerns over any effect these changes may have 

on your property.  We understand that for all of our neighbors in every price range that their 

home is the biggest investment that will be made.  When we develop a community that consists 

of multiple styles of homes and price ranges, we understand that the single most important factor 

is curb appeal. Factors like makeup of households with differing family sizes, style of homes 

available, and the overall appearance of the homes and pride shown are critical to a 

neighborhoods success. We can control some of that with development and building practices 

and the other is on our owners as neighbors and hopefully protected through the 

covenants.  Understanding this, we have always made decisions that keep trends up to date, yards 

completed with landscape for full sod, and exterior siding and stone amenities when budgets 

allow.  Doing this gives a neighborhood the best opportunity to maintain housing values.    

 

The makeup of a large plat can be difficult to predict. Our neighborhoods are always comprised 

of multiple price points for houses.  The only change may be doing so with a single family one 

unit or doing so with single family two unit homes.  Knowing this change may happen from time 

to time we find it most important to group things as best as possible and provide subtle 

transitions from one addition to another.  One way is distancing the new product away from 

current owners. This provides like housing around, and the mixed housing would be further into 

the plat where all buyers understand what that addition is expected to be when purchasing.   

 

Current market conditions are calling for a need in housing from $250,000 to $280,000. This is 

the range we are looking to assist with duplex units.  This price range actually makes up 25% of 

our buyers.  This is a very important price range.  If you look in the community, homes ranging 

$250,000 to $450,000 and even higher exist together in neighborhoods throughout Cedar Falls 

and Iowa.  We have proven our vision of the condos and single family can exist together in 

communities.  Quail Ridge is a great example of this as we see great success of resale every 

year.   

 

Closing I would like to make sure that all know that our company’s goal is to continue its 

success in our area in developing neighborhoods that support continued sales of homes even after 

we are done building.  We will do this through strong elevations, completed yards, with nice 

landscaping.  As you know we don’t let any home have the same color siding next door to each 

other.  We are constantly looking to utilize new trends in exteriors from craftsman style with 

tapered columns and stone, to farm house with board and batten or shake, and most recently 

contemporary looks.  This will continue in the 4th, 5th, and 6th additions. I would also ask you to 

remember we both develop and build. So just as you are concerned about selling your home, we 

are concerned about selling both the condos and single family around in that addition. We will 

have lots priced in the $50s if not higher and move in ready homes available. If we have 5 move 

in ready homes with an average price of $325,000 and at least 10 lots at $50000 we have $2.1 

million dollars invested in homes or lots looking for buyers. Creating an addition that does not 

appeal to the highest number of community members is not beneficial to us either. We are with 

you each day sharing the risk till the last home is sold.   

356

Item 21.



 

A rental restriction was posed as an acceptable protection in the p and z meeting. I do not foresee 

this happening. The city of Cedar Falls has a very restrictive rental application process. We as a 

builder are looking to sell as owner occupied and not to investors.   

 

I hope this answers or eases your concerns, but if you would like to discuss anything further 

please let me know. 

 

 

Kevin Fittro  

VP of Skogman Homes/Midwest Development 

 

357

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: May 27, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs 
  Amendment to INRCOG Contract for Grant Administration and Technical 
  Services related to CDBG-CV funding 
  Project Number BL-000-CD 
 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  Part of the Act 
provides additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support 
activities occurring through CDBG such as service agencies, low- and moderate-income 
community projects, and more.  Cedar Falls is receiving $160,662 for CDBG-CV.  HUD 
requires an amendment to our Annual Action Plan for Federal Fiscal Year 2019 to 
allocate to specific activities/program areas.  A separate memo and action have been 
provided to Council for that.   
 
To implement the added activities, the City would like to contract additional time with 
INRCOG.  The proposed administrative cost increases may be attributed to program 
monitoring preparation and CARES Act integration and implementation, including 
amending the existing FFY 2019  Annual Action Plan and completing necessary 
reporting, allocating, and managing these additional CDBG funds. 
 
Attached is a proposed amendment to Attachment A-Scope of Services of INRCOG’s 
July 2019 contract, increasing their time in Agency Awards Program by $2,500 (total 
$7,500) and Plan and Report Development by $4,500 (total $12,000).  Staff 
recommends amending the contract with INRCOG, increasing it by $7,000.  The costs 
would be covered through CDBG-CV funds, of which 20% ($32,132) may be used for 
administrative costs of City staff and INRCOG.   All other contract provisions remain the 
same. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 

358

Item 22.



City’s mission. 
 
Staff recommends approving these contract amendments, allowing the City to work with 
INRCOG on activities related to CDBG-CV. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 

359

Item 22.



360

Item 22.



361

Item 22.



    

Exhibit A 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 
Housing and Community Development Projects; HOME Program: Technical 

Services for Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number BL-000-CD 

 

   
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
CDBG GRANT ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL SERVICES FOR HOUSING 

PROJECTS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
Overview 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) is proposing to 
continue administering the City of Cedar Falls’ (City) Housing Rehabilitation, Housing 
Repair, and Agency Grant programs, all of which are funded through the City’s 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement allocation. 
 
 
Qualifications 

 

Housing Rehabilitation and CDBG Experience 
 
As a public agency created under Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code, INRCOG serves a six-
county area. The City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing our staff has built a 
solid relationship with the City’s staff. We are located in close proximity to Cedar Falls 
City Hall and we are very familiar with the community, including its infrastructure, 
services and its elected and appointed officials.   
 
Our agency is proud of the working relationships we have built with numerous federal 
and state departments, as we have administered numerous programs on behalf of our 
local government members. Included amongst those agencies are the US Department of 
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; US Department of Agriculture; 
Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations; Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; Iowa Economic Development Authority; Iowa Department of Transportation; 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources; Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management; and the Iowa Finance Authority. INRCOG also provides staff and 
oversight for several regional bodies including the Black Hawk County Metropolitan 
Transportation Organization; Regional Transportation Authority; Regional Transit 
Commission; Regional Economic Development Commission; and Regional Housing 
Council. Further, our agency has acted as the procurement and fiscal agent for multi-
county emergency management regions. Through our work, our agency has developed 
relationships with several non-profit organizations, including administration of housing-
related grants which involves working directly with several entities such as The Salvation 
Army, Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity, Cedar Valley Friends of the Family, 

362

Item 22.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

Operation Threshold, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging; 
Northeast Iowa Community Action Corporation; Community Based Services; and House 
of Hope. 
 
INRCOG has extensive housing rehabilitation and repair experience under the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority’s (IEDA) Housing Rehabilitation and Iowa Finance 
Authority’s (IFA) Local Housing Trust Fund programs.  IEDA’s program is funded 
through the CDBG program, as administered by the US Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, and the IFA program is funded through the State Housing Trust 
Fund. We also have a familiarity with the HOME Investment Partnership Program as 
administered by the US Department of Housing and Development. INRCOG has 
administered housing trust fund grants for the Iowa Northland Regional Housing Council 
since 2003 and since 2014 for the Waterloo Housing Trust Fund. Through the trust 
funds, our staff has developed and administered annual homeowner repair programs 
that serve approximately ten individual households per year. In addition to administering 
the individual home improvement programs, INRCOG has managed numerous housing 
acquisition programs, as funded by the Hazard Mitigation Grant and CDBG Programs, 
following disasters in 1993, 1999, 2000, 2008, and 2016. 
 
Our staff writes the grants for these programs for our member local governments and we 
performs all administrative tasks relative to construction, finance, and professional 
service functions associated with the programs.  We have completed all IEDA basic and 
updated trainings associated with administering CDBG funds, specifically those 
associated with environmental assessments, Davis-Bacon (prevailing wage) compliance, 
historical preservation review and approval, Section 3 (hiring practices) compliance, fair 
housing standards, lead-based paint testing and certification, radon testing, and 
contractor procurement. INRCOG is accustomed to developing the necessary contracts, 
developing file and program management techniques, assisting with city audits, 
successfully preparing for and completing IEDA monitoring reviews, conflict mediation, 
financial management, and closeout processes associated with CDBG projects. 
 

Primary INRCOG Staff Members 
The primary contacts for this proposal and program are 

o Brian Schoon, Director of Development (bschoon@inrcog.org);  
o Cindy Knox, Housing Planner II (cknox@inrcog.org);  
o Rose Phillips, Housing Planner II (rphillips@inrcog.org).   

 
Brian Schoon has been employed by INRCOG since September 1991 and is currently 
serving as the Director of Development. He is a member of the American Institute of 
Certified Planners. His responsibilities include supervision, project administration, budget 
oversight, and planning functions associated with INRCOG’s housing, planning, and 
economic development efforts, including numerous CDBG projects funded by the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA).  Schoon also oversees the Iowa Northland 
Regional Housing Council and its local Housing Trust Funds and staffs the Waterloo 
Housing Trust Fund and its financial programs. He is currently providing planning 
services to the City, including updating the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans 
related to its current HUD CDBG Entitlement Program. Schoon has a Bachelors’ degree 
in Landscape Design from South Dakota State University and a Masters’ degree in 
Community and Regional Planning from Iowa State University. 

363

Item 22.

mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org
mailto:cknox@inrcog.org
mailto:rphillips@inrcog.org
mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org
mailto:cknox@inrcog.org
mailto:rphillips@inrcog.org


 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 
Cindy Knox has worked as a housing program specialist for INRCOG for 13 years. 
Knox has administered nearly two dozen CDBG housing rehab programs, as well as 
other housing programs awarded to our member communities from the US Department 
of Agriculture, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Iowa Finance Authority. She has managed 
homebuyer and down-payment assistance programs; housing inspection programs; and 
emergency and rural repair programs for our regional Housing Council. Knox is a 
Certified Lead-Based Paint Sampling Technician and has knowledge of Iowa Minimum 
Housing and Housing Quality Standards. Knox has a Bachelor’s degree in Design and 
the Human Environment from the University of Northern Iowa. 
 
Rose Phillips has been with INRCOG since early 2017 and is responsible for managing 
CDBG housing rehabilitation programs for our member communities. She also develops 
housing needs assessments and manages post-disaster housing acquisition programs 
for our member local governments. Phillips has a Bachelors’ degree in Environmental 
Studies from Mount Holyoke College and a Masters’ degree in Urban and Regional 
Planning from the University of Iowa. 
 
Richard Dewater (INRCOG Subcontractor) will serve as an independent contract 
employee of INRCOG, as he has for over two dozen of our rehabilitation projects.  His 
expenses, which are flat-fee, are included in the Technical Services budget of this 
proposal.  He will perform all initial rehabilitation and lead-based paint inspections, as 
well as draft bid specifications which outlines work to be completed on each selected 
unit.  Dewater will perform all inspections of work by contractor(s), mediate disputes, and 
make himself available for meetings and technical assistance. 
 
 
Description of Technical Services, Grant Administration, and Organizational 
Capacity 
 
INRCOG, through its existing staff, will administer the City’s Fiscal Year 2019 Housing 
Rehabilitation and Housing  
 
Repair Programs and the Agency Grant program, as funded by the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). As part of a subsequent contract, INRCOG will 
complete rehabilitation projects and repair homes in the same manner that INRCOG 
currently provides to non-entitlement CDBG communities, and will assist with providing 
agency grants, all under the supervision of City staff. Included in each housing 
rehabilitation project, INRCOG will provide general and technical administrative services, 
which includes income verifications, construction management, vendor procurements, 
lead tests, and oversight of radon testing, as is necessary.  INRCOG will propose per 
unit expenses for each home, including staff time and benefits, travel time and 
expenses, recording, mailing, and other ancillary expenses associated with the program. 
 
INRCOG will be responsible for providing all inspections and for preparing initial project 
descriptions as may be associated with the programs addressed under this proposal. 
INRCOG will prepare procurement and contract documents as is necessary for each 
rehabilitation and/or repair project. We will then manage each home project including 
preparation of a prioritized list of projects, contracts, and implementation of each 

364

Item 22.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

contract.  INRCOG will present any necessary approvals or reports to the City’s staff.  
Further, as HUD’s subrecipient, the City will be responsible for obtaining HUD 
reimbursement for all expenses under this proposal with INRCOG assisting with 
obtaining said reimbursements. Likewise, INRCOG will assist the City with any 
necessary HUD or CDBG reports, as requested. 
 
 
Budget 
 
INRCOG is prepared to offer the administrative services for a not-to-exceed price for 
each unit or task completed during the City fiscal year, as outlined below.  Said 
administrative expenses will be billed on an hourly basis, using rates that will be defined 
in the contract between the City and INRCOG. 
 

o General Administration-Environmental Review and Release of Funds 
o INRCOG: $3,000 

o Single-Unit Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 $33,500/Unit (Includes all Tech Services, Construction, and Program 
expenses) 

o INRCOG Technical Services Expense: $5,500/Unit 

o Agency Awards Program (to City-Determined Agencies) 

 Approximately $5,500/Agency to Six (6) Agencies (Includes all Administration 
Procurement, Monitoring, and Award expenses) 

o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 

o Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements: Sewer Lining Project 

 Construction Management and Davis-Bacon Compliance 
o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 

o Neighborhood Access: Sidewalk Replacement Project 

 Construction Management and Davis-Bacon Compliance 
o INRCOG Expense: $5,000 

o Plan and Report Development 

 Annual Action Plan, CAPER, and Reports (i.e. Section 3, MBE/DBE, SF 425) 
o INRCOG Expense: $12,000 

 
o HOME: Single-Unit Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 $33,500/Unit (Includes all Tech Services, Construction, and Program 
expenses) 
o INRCOG Technical Services Expense: $5,500/Unit 

 
If accepted by the City, INRCOG is willing to negotiate a contract utilizing the City’s 
standard agreement.  INRCOG currently meets the City’s insurance requirements and 
has attached a certificate as evidence.   
 
As with prior contracts, INRCOG will provide monthly invoices to the City for services 
provided by our staff.  Services covered by the agreement will be assigned an individual, 

365

Item 22.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

unique program number through which expenses will be tracked and monitored within 
INRCOG’s monthly financial reports and annual independent audit.  INRCOG shall make 
all financial records available to the City upon request. 

 

Time of Performance 
Work under this proposal would begin upon execution of an agreement and completion 
would be no later than June 30th, 2020.  INRCOG may propose an extension to the 
negotiated agreement, in the event it is unable to complete the services defined above.  
Accordingly, the completion date may be extended for a period of up to six (6) months 
upon written request of INRCOG documenting a good faith effort to complete 
performance in a timely manner. 

 

Project Review 
At least annually, but not later than May 1st, 2020 during the contract timeframe, the City 
and INRCOG will meet to review INRCOG’s performance with regard to the services 
provided to the City.  Extending the existing agreement for future years(s) may also be 
discussed at that time.  
 
 
 

366

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer  
 
 DATE: May 28th, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill  
  Project No. SW-000-3223 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, May 26th, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2020 
CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. A total of three (3) bids were received, with Boulder 
Contracting the apparent low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $105,800 

Boulder Contracting $69,608.45 

Cobalt Contracting $89,481.35 

Lodge Construction $96,461.90 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $105,800.00. Boulder Contracting of 
Grundy Center, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $69,608.45. Attached is a 
bid tabulation for your reference. The project will be funded through a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG).  
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Boulder Contracting in the amount of 
$69,608.45. On June 15th, 2020, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be 
submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 David Wicke, City Engineer   
  

367

Item 23.



TABULATION OF BIDS
2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill 
Project Number: SW-000-3223

UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED
PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.Y. 84.0 $15.00 $1,400.00 $8.00 $672.00 $21.20 $1,780.80 $7.00 $588.00 12 $1,013.60
2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDTH L.F. 168.0 $10.00 $1,900.00 $14.00 $2,352.00 $9.90 $1,663.20 $10.00 $1,680.00 11 $1,898.40
3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. 626.5 $45.00 $31,300.00 $39.50 $24,746.75 $48.60 $30,447.90 $61.00 $38,216.50 50 $31,137.05
4 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 134.5 $60.00 $9,000.00 $42.00 $5,649.00 $50.80 $6,832.60 $66.00 $8,877.00 53 $7,119.53
5 PLACE DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS S.F. 160.0 $50.00 $8,900.00 $30.00 $4,800.00 $29.80 $4,768.00 $42.00 $6,720.00 34 $5,429.33
6 PLACE CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDE, P.C.C., CLASS "C" L.F. 168 $35.00 $6,600.00 $24.00 $4,032.00 $29.50 $4,956.00 $30.00 $5,040.00 28 $4,676.00
7 CLASS 10 EXCAVATION C.Y. 340.5 $15.00 $5,700.00 $19.00 $6,469.50 $13.70 $4,664.85 $10.00 $3,405.00 14 $4,846.45
8 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 384.00 $30.00 $12,800.00 $20.00 $7,680.00 $44.20 $16,972.80 $42.00 $16,128.00 35 $13,593.60
9 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING S.F. 20696.0 $0.75 $17,300.00 $0.20 $4,139.20 $0.60 $12,417.60 $0.40 $8,278.40 0 $8,278.40

10 SURFACING, 1 INCH ROADSTONE TONS 20.0 $30.00 $700.00 $45.00 $900.00 $36.10 $722.00 $21.00 $420.00 34 $680.67
11 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNITS 51.0 $58.00 $3,300.00 $28.00 $1,428.00 $53.60 $2,733.60 $27.00 $1,377.00 36 $1,846.20
12 INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER L.F. 54.0 $20.00 $1,200.00 $10.00 $540.00 $10.30 $556.20 $6.00 $324.00 9 $473.40
13 UNSTABLE MATERIAL, OVER EXCAVATION C.Y. 34.0 $20.00 $800.00 $50.00 $1,700.00 $13.70 $465.80 $12.00 $408.00 25 $857.93
14 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 3333 $3,333.33

TOTAL $105,800.00 TOTAL $69,608.45 TOTAL $89,481.35 TOTAL $96,461.90 $85,183.90

Bid Security (5%) X X X

Bidder Status Form X X X

Non-Collusion Affidavit X X X

BID AVERAGE
May 26, 
2020 @ 
2:00 PM

BASE BID

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
Boulder Contracting

606 E 1st St
Grundy Center, Ia 50638

Cobalt Contracting
31064 Spring Ave

New Hartford, Ia 50660

Lodge Construction
PO Box 459

Clarksville, Ia 50619

368

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: May 27th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  J Davis Properties, LLC (Slumberland Site Parking Lot Improvements) 

Parcel F in the College Square Mall First Addition, Minor Subdivision 
Plat 

 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the Cedar Falls Gospel Hall parking lot site, 
owned by J Davis Properties, LLC located at Parcel F in the College Square Mall First 
Addition, Minor Subdivision Plat, Cedar Falls, Iowa and finds it in accordance with City 
Code. The Engineering Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City 
Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

369

Item 24.



370

Item 24.



371

Item 24.



372

Item 24.



373

Item 24.



374

Item 24.



375

Item 24.



376

Item 24.



377

Item 24.



378

Item 24.



379

Item 24.



380

Item 24.



381

Item 24.



382

Item 24.



383

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE – City Engineer 
 
 DATE: May 27th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Iowa Department of Transportation - Transfer of Jurisdiction  
  TJ-218-7(165)—2M-07, Agreement No. 93-TJ-009 

Quitclaim Deed -Center Street (Old US Highway 218) from 1st Street (IA 
Highway 57) to North City Limits.  

 
 
The Iowa Department of Transportation has recorded with Black Hawk County 
Recorder’s Office the Quitclaim Deed along the Center Street Corridor from 1st Street to 
the North City Limits, approximately 2.61 miles for the Transfer of Jurisdiction from Iowa 
DOT to the City of Cedar Falls, IA in accordance with Iowa Code, Section 306.42. This 
is the final step in the transfer as previously approved by City Council in 1994.   
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the enclosed documentation and recommends 
City Council to accept the Quitclaim Deed as recorded at the Black Hawk County 
Recorder’s Office for the Transfer of Jurisdiction to be finalized.  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  
 

384

Item 25.



 

 

 

 
Address: 
800 Lincoln Way, Ames, IA  50010 
 

allyssa.myers@iowadot.us 
www.iowadot.gov 515-233-7859 (fax) 

 

515-239-1757 

  

 
May 26, 2020  When communicating, refer to: 
 Black Hawk County 
 Transfer of Jurisdiction 
 TJ-218-7(165)--2M-07 
 Agreement No. 93-TJ-009 
 
 
 
Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St. 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Dear Ms. Danielsen: 
 
Enclosed are the recorded Quitclaim Deed conveying a portion of U.S. Highway 218, which is 
known as First Street, to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The original acquisition documents with 
plats will be mailed to you.  These documents are provided to complete the above referenced 
Transfer of Jurisdiction in compliance with Iowa Code Section 306.42.  Please deliver them to the 
appropriate office. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

  
Allyssa Myers 
Fiscal & Title Section 
Right of Way Bureau 
 
aem 
Enc. 
c:  Jon Ranney, District Engineer 
     Nick Humpal, Assistant District Engineer 
     Randy Taylor, Maintenance Manager 
     Miranda Eilders, District Land Surveyor  
     Brent Christian, Advertising Management 
     Hannah Beach, Agreements Specialist 
     Katie Johnson, Production Coordinator 
     Eric Wright, Title & Closing Supervisor 
      Matt Buttz, Property Management Right of Way Agent 

385

Item 25.



386

Item 25.



387

Item 25.



388

Item 25.



389

Item 25.



390

Item 25.



391

Item 25.



392

Item 25.



393

Item 25.



394

Item 25.



395

Item 25.



396

Item 25.



397

Item 25.



398

Item 25.



399

Item 25.



400

Item 25.



401

Item 25.


	Top
	1.	Regular Meeting of May 18, 2020.
	200518MINUTES

	2.	PH-Citizen Participation Plan Amendments
	1. Council PH for CPP amendment CDBG-CV 5-21-20
	2. Citizen Participation Plan Amendment CLEAN

	3.	PH-Consolidated Plan-CDBG & HOME Programs
	1. PH for Con Plan amendment CDBG-CV 5-21-20
	2. Administration (with CARES Act Amendment) (Draft 5-21-2020)
	3. Strategic Plan (Final with CARES Act Amendment) (Draft 5-11-2020)

	4.	PH-Annual Action Plan (FFY19) Amendment
	1. Council PH for AAP amendment CDBG-CV 5-21-20
	2. FFY 2019 Annual Action Plan (with CARES Act Amendments)(Draft 5-21-2020)

	5.	PH-Vacate ROW Prairie Parkway
	1 CC staff report for Western Home.kh
	2 - Prairie Pkwy Vac Plat SS Rev1.w easements described
	3 - Ordinance to Vacate ROW

	6.	Ord. #2966-Rezoning
	2966-Rezoning-Ind Park

	7.	Proclamation - Cedar Falls Trails Day
	2405_001

	8.	Monthly Report-April 2020
	Monthly Report - April 2020

	9.	Temporary Sign for Black Hawk Hotel
	1_115 Main Street sidewalk sign permit cc memo 6-1-20
	2_Application &amp; Accompanying Materials

	10.	Tobacco Permits 06/01/2020
	06012020 Tobacco Applications

	11.	Liquor-Beer 6-1-20
	Liquor Beer 6-1-20

	12.	Bonds-Electronic Bidding & OS
	1-bond sale council sale &amp; OS.mem
	2-bond sale council PH.mem
	3-Cedar Falls (178) - elec-os 2020 GO CLN (01723216x7F7E1)
	4-POS-06-01-2020

	13.	Resilience Plan
	3-resilience plan 2020 contract council.mem
	4-FINAL-DRAFT_Cedar Falls_Resilience-Plan_ContractANDScope_PW-05-28-2020

	14.	FY21 Fee Schedule
	1 FY21FeeSchedCouncilMemo
	2 FY21 Fee Schedule Draft

	15.	2307 W 3rd - Assessment
	2307 W 3rd St-CC supporting docs

	16.	1934 Main St - Assessment
	1934 Main St-CC supporting docs

	17.	1009 State St - Assessment
	1009 State St-CC supporting docs

	18.	Hearst Center sign
	Hearst Center Sign

	19.	Amended Agreement-Christy
	Christy_PAC Memo_Updated 05.22.2020
	Gillian Christy Contract (amended and signed) 5.22.2020

	20.	Land Maintenance Agreement
	1_Council Memo for 06-01-20
	2_Location Map
	3_EXECUTION VERSION Greiner Land Maintenance Agreement

	21.	Res-The Arbors Amendment of Preliminary Plat
	1_City Council Report for the Arbors revised plat on 06-01-20
	2_Location Map
	3_FINAL Preliminary Plat - 05-22-20
	4_FINAL Dev Procedures Agr - The Arbors 4th 5th 6th Additions
	5_Skogman Letter to Neighborhood

	22.	INRCOG Contract Amendment-Grant Administration and Technical Services related to CDBG-CV funding V2
	1. Council memo May 2020 CDBG-CV
	2. Amendment #1 5-27-20
	3. CIty-INRCOG.Attachment A-Scope of Services V2 (Amended) 5-27-20

	23.	Bids-2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill
	1. Low Bid - 2020 CDBG Sidewalk Infill
	2. Bid Tabulation_2020.05.26

	24.	M&R-Slumberland Site Improvements
	1. Memo MRA Slumberland Site Improvements
	2. MRA Slumberland Site Improvements

	25.	Deed-Center Street Transfer of Jurisdiction
	1. Memo Old US 218 Transfer of Jursidiction
	2. Quitclaim Deed
	3. Resolution - Agreement of Transfer of Jursidicton

	Bottom

